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About us

With pleasure, we present this Annual Report
of the activities and performance of Southern
Rural Water in 2017-18. We respectfully
acknowledge the Traditional Owners and
custodians of the land on which we operate
across southern Victoria, and we pay our
respects to their Elders, past, present and
emerging.

Southern Rural Water (SRW) is experiencing a period of once-
in-a-generation transformation, with the modernisation of major
infrastructure and services, upgrading our irrigation districts and
preparing them for a more climate resilient future.

The transformation does not stop in the field: new ICT projects,
customer interfaces, business systems and people and culture
processes are helping us to develop a future-ready organisation.
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Message from the Chairman and
the Managing Director

Our strategy

The board and executive have worked together to renew our
vision: “Excellence in rural water management, driving growth
and customer productivity in southern Victoria” and to develop
a new corporate strategy to deliver that vision. We remain
committed to our core strategic outcomes of affordable prices,
customer growth and productivity, sustainable water resources
and financial sustainability.

We are continuing our focus on enhancing services for our
customers, increased production, modernised assets, business
growth and new revenue and improved asset management.
We have added a focus on climate resilience, environmental
improvement and also on creating a culture of excellence and a
safe, healthy, diverse and caring workplace.

In the east, the $60m MID2030 project is bringing 32km of new
pipeline and 28km of upgraded channels to the customers

on the Macalister Irrigation District’s (MID) Southern Tinamba
supply system. By the end of calendar year 2018, it will be
halfway through the four-stage, five-year program, and has
progressed with strong support from our customers. This work
provides more efficient delivery and additional water to our
customers, which improves their productivity and the regional
economy.

In the west, $29m has been funded by the state government
and irrigators to modernise the Werribee Irrigation District (WID)
and Bacchus Marsh Irrigation District (BMID), with significant
milestones achieved during 2017-18, including the installation of
a header tank to replace the Maddingley basin. These projects
will also drive improved production and productivity and provide
future environmental entitlements to enhance the health of the
Werribee River.

Across the state, we have made good progress on
implementing Automated Meter Reading for our unregulated
surface and groundwater areas. Over the course of the year, we
installed 643 readers, with almost 1,200 now automated. The
rollout of this program will bring customer data benefits in the
years to come.

These works are about more than just modernisation of assets.
They are securing the future for southern Victoria’s high-value
agriculture and horticulture, and protecting the environment

as a key outcome. The works are being done in partnership
with, and with joint funding from, the farmers and growers at
the heart of these industries. Removing inefficient century-old
channels is unlocking the future for the farmers and growers
who are finally able to modernise their own on-farm irrigation
practices, and grow their businesses.
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Our season

Despite being drier than usual, the 2017-18 season provided
sufficient water supply to meet customer demand. In the MID,
we delivered customers’ full entittement and additional spill, with
a total of 189,000 megalitres (ML) delivered — the highest volume
since 1992.

Growers in the Werribee basin received 45% of their high
reliability water share (HRWS) this season, but there was also
11 gigalitres (GL) of carryover from the previous year, meaning
most had enough water for their needs.

Importantly, the benefits of the initial modernisation works
already completed are bringing delivery efficiency improvements
in two irrigation districts: Werribee (62%, up from 59%), Bacchus
Marsh (76% up from 73%). In the MID, we were able to further
improve on last year’s record with 79% efficiency.

Conditions in our unregulated areas were exceptionally dry in
the last half of the year, with many surface water systems on
heavy restrictions or bans.

Our objective of getting more water into production continues,
with a focus on water trading between customers and education
to reduce inactive licences. We have also continued our
program of using water savings for permanent and allocation
sales in the MID and allocation sales in Bacchus Marsh.

Our service

We measure service in each part of our business, and each
has either met its service targets or demonstrated significant
improvement. This year’s customer survey showed continued
improved results with 90% of the customers surveyed reporting
being overall satisfied or very satisfied.

After three successful years of auctions and sales from water
savings created by the modernisation works in the MID, we
completed a water share distribution in late 2017. This meant
that all MID customers, who are jointly funding the works, had
the opportunity to add a further 5% to their entitlement base.
Customers valued the fact that this honoured the commitment
SRW made when the MID2030 strategy was first developed.

Our customer engagement process was recognised by the
Essential Services Commission (ESC) with a rating of ‘Leading’
in the PREMO assessment undertaken as part of the 2018
Pricing Submission. This is the highest rating possible for
customer engagement.

We kept to, or dropped below, our planned price path from
Water Plan 3. Based on our pricing submission work, we are
confident that we can better our commitment to customers of
modernising their irrigation districts with no more than a 10%
real price increase over 20 years.
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Our business

We achieved an excellent operating profit before statutory
adjustments this year of $2.08m. During the year we delivered
$31m of capital works, up from our highest ever capital spend
last financial year of $23m.

Our continued strong performance and projections in operating
performance and cash position provides us with confidence in
the ongoing financial sustainability of the corporation.

Our pricing submission for 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2023 period
was largely accepted without change by the Essential Services
Commission and the corporation received a rating overall as
‘Advanced’ — one of only a handful in the water industry.

Our future projects

We are always seeking opportunities to generate new revenue,
to mitigate costs, to fund modernisation works and to keep
prices low for customers.

The expertise of our dam engineering staff is being sought
externally. They were contracted to undertake assessments of
local government dams across the south of the state, and have
started developing an operations and maintenance manual for
South Gippsland Water.

We have made a bold pledge to have zero carbon emissions
by 2025, and will be the only water corporation to do so. We
have progressed with opportunities for renewable energy, the
first of which is rooftop solar at our Maffra office, which will be
completed during 2018.

Our people and culture

A modernised business needs a workforce that has the right
roles and skills and is ready to embrace the opportunities that
change brings. Our People and Culture processes have been
refined over the past year, providing structures and procedures
for training, recruitment, safety and staff development.

Our ongoing commitment to diversity and inclusion has brought
two significant achievements:

e being awarded bronze status in the AWEI diversity and
inclusion awards in 2018, one of only a handful of small
employers to achieve this recognition.

e improving our gender diversity, with the overall proportion
of women steadily increasing by 50% since 2013, from 20%
to 30%, and women in the executive team rising from 0%
to 38%.
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About us

We would like to thank our staff who all work hard to achieve
great results for our customers and the business.

As always, we value the support from customers, stakeholders,
and communities who work with us to provide great service,
particularly the highly committed people on our customer
consultative committees.

Thank you, also, to the Minister for Water for her continued
interest in, and support for, the sector.

We’d also like to thank long time board member and outgoing
Chairman Terry Burgi for his 14 years of service to the
corporation. Terry oversaw significant change to the corporation
and has left the organisation in a strong financial position poised
to create further value for the state of Victoria.

In closing, we would like to thank our directors and staff for their
work over the course of the year in delivering these outcomes.

Buans 6{%%

DIANE JAMES AM
Chairman

Q@
CLINTON RODDA

Managing Director
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Responsible Body Declaration

In accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994, | am
pleased to present Southern Rural Water’s Annual Report for the

year ending 30 June 2018.

@m,@ 6'%”%
DIANE JAMES AM

Chairman
Gippsland and Southern Rural Water Corporation
Dated on 5 September 2018
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Introduction to Southern Rural Water

Gippsland and Southern Rural Water Corporation (trading as
Southern Rural Water - SRW) manages rural water across
southern Victoria, from the Great Divide to the coast, and from
the South Australian border to the New South Wales border.

Our customers are principally the farmers, graziers, and growers
of southern Victoria. SRW also manages bulk entitlements on
behalf of those entitlement holders.

SRW manages three irrigation districts, the state’s largest
groundwater operation, and its second largest non-metropolitan
headworks business.

SRW is a statutory water corporation established under the
Water Act 1989. The responsible minister during 2017-18 was
the Hon Lisa Neville MP, Minister for Water.

The responsible minister appoints a skills-based board, which is
responsible for setting SRW'’s strategic direction.

Vision
Excellence in rural water management, driving growth and
customer productivity in southern Victoria.

Our goals

For customers

e adaptive, efficient and sustainable irrigation districts
o affordable prices

e communication, convenience and customer control
e growth and increased productivity.

For us

e safe, healthy and caring workplace

e culture of excellence and high performance

e diverse and inclusive

e |eadership at all levels

e Qagile and future ready people

e financially sustainable.

For all

e climate resilient

e sustainable water resources

e environmentally responsible

e strong and respectful relationships

e safe dams.
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Trademark behaviours
e United

e Customer first

e Ambitious

e Results driven

e Innovative

e Respectful.

History

In 1992, the Rural Water Corporation and its five regions, each
with its own board of management, underwent a review.

On 1 July 1994, the five regional boards became independent
rural water authorities — including the Gippsland Rural Water
Authority and Southern Rural Water Authority. On 1 July
1995, these two were merged to form what is today known as
Southern Rural Water, the trading name of the Gippsland and
Southern Rural Water Corporation.

Our services

Our main business centres are located in Maffra, Werribee,
Ringwood and Warrnambool, with smaller offices scattered
across our region of responsibility. SRW employs 174 people,
and its area covers 37% of the state. Refer to SRW'’s area
coverage map on page 6.

Irrigation

SRW manages the delivery of water to the Werribee, Bacchus
Marsh and Macalister irrigation districts and maintains the
channels, pipelines, and drains for these districts.

Large dams

SRW harvests, stores and manages water in Glenmaggie,
Narracan, Blue Rock, Melton, Merrimu, Pykes Creek and
Rosslynne reservoirs. This water is then supplied to irrigators,
urban water corporations and power generators, or retained for
the government.

SRW also manages recreational facilities at some water
storages and weirs.

Groundwater and rivers

SRW implements government regulations and policy for
groundwater and surface water management in accordance
with delegated powers from the Water Act 1989. We assess
licence applications, issue licences to construct new farm
dams and bores (if approved) and manage new and existing
groundwater and surface water licences.

SRW is also the appointed Resource Manager for a range of
surface water catchments (mostly in Gippsland) and provides
administrative support to the Drillers’ Licensing Board Victoria.
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At a glance
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Irrigation districts

Water supply to irrigation districts is the largest component

of operations, accounting for 65% of gross annual turnover.
SRW operates the Macalister, Werribee and Bacchus Marsh
irrigation districts, and is responsible for seven storages in its
region, together with a number of smaller regulating structures.
The storages include Blue Rock Lake, Lake Glenmaggie, Lake
Narracan, Melton Reservoir, Merrimu Reservoir, Pykes Creek
Reservoir and Rosslynne Reservoir.

From these storages, SRW harvests and stores water for
irrigation customers, urban water corporations and the Latrobe
Valley power generators in accordance with the provisions of
Bulk Entitlement Orders.

Water Supply East

Water Supply East manages the delivery of water to customers
in the MID and on the Macalister and Thomson rivers and
Rainbow Creek.

The main storage (Lake Glenmaggie) and diversion weirs (on
the Thomson and Macalister Rivers) provide water to about
1,000 customers. The bulk of this water is delivered via gravity
irrigation from 15 August to 15 May. River customers who pump
direct from waterways can order water 365 days a year.

The 2017-18 irrigation season opened with an allocation on 1
July 2017 of 45% HRWS, which was increased to 50% HRWS
on 2 August and 85% HRWS on 29 August.

With low demand and continued inflows to Lake Glenmaggie,
the seasonal allocation was increased to 100% of HRWS on 13
September.

Significant rain on 2 December led to Lake Glenmaggie filling,
with spill entitlement declared on 12 December. 54,112ML was
delivered as spill entitlement.

Several dry spells were interspersed with some good rainfalls
and SRW was able to allocate a welcome 20% low reliability
allocation on 24 April.

SRW's share of the Thomson Dam started with a volume of
33,703ML. Usage for the season totalled 11,264ML.

Irrigation deliveries to MID customers this season totalled
188,904ML. This was the highest delivery volume since 1992
(and 36,355ML above our five-year average). Lake Glenmaggie
closed the season with a volume of 42,936ML or 24.2% storage
capacity, of which 19,629ML was unused allocation.
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Water Supply West

Water Supply West manages the delivery of river water to
customers in the WID, the BMID, river diverters along the
southern stretches of the Werribee River and recycled water to
customers in the WID.

The 2017-18 season was quite dry overall and Pykes Creek and
Melton reservoirs did not fill. There was 11GL of water carried
over from the 2016-17 season but the allocation reached only
45% of HRWS.

The summer was again drier than usual, with the volume of
water delivered being:

Werribee Irrigation District 5,245
(river water)

Werribee Irrigation District 5,130
(recycled water)

Bacchus Marsh Irrigation 2,016
District

River diverters 173

The Werribee season ended with the storages down to about
45% full. There is still approximately 8GL of water to be carried
over into the 2018-19 season. However, much of this is held in
accounts that are not being used and many irrigators may be
short of water if inflows do not improve.

With modernisation works underway in both the BMID and WID,
the water delivery efficiency figures improved from 73% to 76%
in the BMID and from 59% to 62% in the WID.

Headworks

Water Supply East manages three large dams and three
diversion weirs on the Latrobe, Tanijil, Thomson and Macalister
rivers.

These dams supply water to Victoria’s power generators,
the Macalister Irrigation District, Gippsland Water and the
environment.

Water Supply West manages four large dams and five diversion
weirs in the Werribee Basin and one in the Maribyrnong Basin.



Groundwater and Rivers

The Groundwater and Rivers business manages SRW'’s
delegated licensing and regulatory functions.

There were many highlights and challenges in 2017-18,

especially the considerable improvements on our service targets

both in the field and in administration functions (see tables
below).

We are continuing to investigate opportunities to provide more
customer control and convenience, including:

e automating our rosters and restrictions - including
improving notifications and displaying the information
online, expected to be piloted in 2018-19

e developing an online trade assessment process
e automating how we produce information statements

e creating an online hub for our customers to access their
information when and how they want.

More water for production

SRW is working with customers and stakeholders to find
ways to have more water available for production without
compromising environmental health. This includes being
more active in promoting opportunities for water trading and
developing more flexible rules.

In 2017-18, our field staff continued to spend more time with
customers to encourage water trading, which assisted those
who required more water during the dry summer and autumn

period. SRW also continued to develop local management plans
that introduce more adaptable and flexible rules for customers.

In line with government policy, SRW has developed a process
for selling unallocated water in unregulated systems. This
provides new revenue that can be used for future resource
appraisals or strategic projects with agreement from the state
government.

Encouraging more water to be used for production will remain
a focus for the business over the next few years, with the aim to
establish an expanded water market, which assists in moving
water to its highest value to encourage economic benefits and
employment.

Current and future challenges

Adding value for customers is a high priority for SRW.
Customers can now enter and access their water usage
information directly in SRW’s online systems.

The next step is to capture this information in the most cost-
effective way while providing information that can make a real
difference to how customers run their business.

Following a successful 2015-16 pilot of Automated Meter
Reading technology in the Warrion Water Supply Protection
Area, a four-year rollout of the technology began across our
region running through to 2019-2020.

Groundwater and Rivers administration performance against target 2017-18

Measure Target % Actual %
Applications (processed within standard timeframes) 100 93
Applications (processed within target timeframes) 75 90
Customer satisfaction (applicant feedback) 98 100
Information statement errors 0 0
Groundwater and Rivers field performance against target 2017-18

Measure Target % Actual %
Compliance (enforcement actions completed within defined timeframes) 95 100
Inspect.iong (10% of new Domestic and stock bores, all other new bores, dams and 08 100
extraction licences)

Engagement (actions completed) 100 100
Customer satisfaction (survey result) 80 88
Stakeholder satisfaction (survey result) 80 82
Metering program (meters compliant with metering plan) 80 96

@ Southern Rural Water Annual Report 2017-18
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Irrigation district performance against target 2017-18

Macalister
Target % Actual %
Channel Performance - pool height consistency 75 69
Orders delivered within one day of request 97 98
Orders delivered at right time of day (am or pm) 75 88
Delivery reliability 100 100
Delivery efficiency 80 79
Customer satisfaction (survey result) 80 80
Irrigation districts performance against target 2017-18
Werribee Bacchus Marsh
Target % Actual % Target % Actual %
Volume accuracy 94 97 95 97
Orders delivered within one day of requested 80 96 70 90
Delivery reliability 100 99 100 100
Delivery efficiency 60 62 66 76
Customer satisfaction (survey result) 70 67 80 62
Drought resilience 64 100 20 45
Water quality (recycled water) 100 100 NAI NAI
1 Recycled water is not available in Bacchus Marsh.
Storage operation performance against target 2017-18
Blue Rock Lake
Target % Actual %

Orders released on time 98 100
Release availability 100 100
Release accuracy 87 94
Customer satisfaction 83 75

Storage operation performance against target 2017-18

Merrimu Reservoir

Rosslynne Reservoir

Target %
Orders released on time 99
Release availability 97
Release accuracy 95
Customer satisfaction 78

Actual %
100

100

98

76

Target % Actual %
95 100

100 100

93 oL

78 76
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Governance

Organisational Structure

Mr Lincoln
Eddy
Manager Strategy
and Performance

MINISTER FOR WATER

The Hon Lisa Neville MP

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Ms Diane James AM
Chairman

Mrs Kate Calvert
Deputy Chairman

Ms Naomi Cleary
Director

Mr Angus Hume
Director

Ms Peta Maddy
Director

Mr Michael Malouf
Director

Mrs Naomi Pye
Director

Mr Terry Swingler
Director

MANAGING DIRECTOR

Mr Clinton Rodda

Ms Nicole
Griffin
General Manager
Technical and
Environment

Mr Craig
Parker
General Manager
Customer Service

Ms Joanna
Giannini
Manager People
and Culture
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Ms Bernadine
Phelan
Communications
and Engagement
Manager

AUDIT, RISK and
GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

Mr Terry Swingler
Chairman

Mrs Kate Calvert
Ms Naomi Cleary
Mr Michael Malouf

Mrs Naomi Pye

Mr Michael
Piko
Chief Information
Officer

Mr Stuart
Wrigglesworth
Chief Financial

Officer and
Corporation
Secretary
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Director profiles

Ms Diane James AM
Chairman

Ms James has a background in business ownership and
currently works in leadership development. She recently retired
as Chair of the Bellarine Bayside Committee of Management
and is a former Chair of the Victorian Coastal Council, a role
she held for over a decade. She is a former Director of Barwon
Water, GenU and St Laurence Community Services. She was
formerly a member of the EPA of Victoria Advisory Board.

Ms James is an accredited Executive Coach, a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors, and has a Graduate
Certificate in Innovation and Entrepreneurship. In 2011, she was
awarded a Member of the Order of Australia. She is currently
Chairman of the Order of Australia Victoria Branch and is

a member of the Great Ocean Road Task Force. She was
appointed to the board on 1 October 2015.

Mrs Kate Calvert
Deputy Chairman

Ms Calvert has extensive experience in natural resource
management and has previously held various roles in the
sector. She and her family run a sheep and cropping enterprise
in western Victoria. Ms Calvert has a Master of Science
(Environmental Management) and a Graduate Diploma of
Education. She is a graduate of the Australian Institute of
Company Directors. Ms Calvert was appointed to the board on
1 October 2015.

Ms Naomi Cleary
Director

Ms Cleary has extensive experience in the property sector. She
is the former Chief Financial Officer of the Elmstone Property
Group, and a current director of SANB Valhalla, a property
investment vehicle. Ms Cleary is a director of Sports Climbing
Australia. She holds a Bachelor of Business Studies and is a
Graduate of the Australian Institute of Company Directors. Ms
Cleary was appointed to the board on 1 October 2015.
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Mr Angus Hume
Director

Mr Hume holds qualifications in education and company
directorship. He is the Chairman of the Victorian Catchment
Management Council, and formerly Co-Chairman of the
Gippsland Lakes Coordinating Committee and Chair of the
West Gippsland Catchment Management Authority (WGCMA).
Mr Hume has a strong understanding of natural resource
management through his dairy farming experience and with
the Department of Primary Industries, and as a past CEO
of WGCMA. He is also a past board member of the East
Gippsland Catchment Management Authority and inaugural
Chair of AFL Commission, Gippsland.

Ms Peta Maddy

Director

Ms Maddy has a background in water engineering and
management including her current role as an associate at the
consulting firm Aither. She is a past President of the Victorian
branch of the Australian Water Association and comes to SRW
from Grampians Wimmera Mallee Water where she was a
director for the past two years and chaired its Water Resources
Committee. She has been chairing the interdepartmental
reference group for the Victorian Rural Drainage Strategy and
is currently a member of the Victorian Catchment Management
Council. Ms Maddy has a Bachelor of Chemical Engineering,

a Bachelor of Science (Pharmacology and Toxicology) and is a
Graduate of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Mr Michael Malouf

Director

Mr Malouf is the director of Malouf Management Services Pty
Ltd and is a Sessional Member at Planning Panels Victoria.

He is also the chair of the Kardinia Park Stadium Trust and is
a Director on the Western Victoria PHN. During his career, he
has held CEO positions at Melbourne, Geelong and Wyndham
City Councils, was the CEO of the Carlton Football Club, held
executive roles for Pratt Holdings and more recently was the
Managing Director at Barwon Water. Mr Malouf is a director at
Western Victoria Primary Health Network. He has a Master of
Business Administration, Bachelor of Civil Engineering and is
a Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company Directors, the
Institution of Engineers and the IPAA. He was appointed to the
board on 1 October 2015.
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Mrs Naomi Pye
Director

Ms Pye is a dairy farmer at Bessiebelle. She is a director of the
Gardiner Dairy Foundation (appointed 2016) and was a director
of the Glenelg Hopkins Catchment Management Authority
(2006 — 2011) and has previously held board and committee
roles with the Victorian Farmers Federation (1999 — 2007),
WestVic Dairy Regional Development Program of Dairy Australia
(2000 — 2006) and Australian Dairy Farmers (2005 — 2006).
Before her appointment to the board of Southern Rural Water,
she was a member of the Southern Groundwater and Rivers
Forum, a customer consultative committee of SRW. Ms Pye has
a Diploma of Teaching and an Advanced Diploma of Agriculture;
she is a Graduate of the Australian Institute of Company
Directors. Ms Pye was appointed to the board on 1 October
2011,

Mr Terry Swingler

Director

Mr Swingler has vast experience in the water industry having
held senior roles as Yarra Valley Water’'s General Manager
Finance and Company Secretary (1995-2012) and Corporate
Secretary with Melbourne Water (1986-1995). He has also been
a Director of Equipsuper Pty Ltd (2012-2016) and the Victorian
Government’s nominated Director on the Joint Government
Enterprise Ltd (trading as Water for Rivers) (2012- 2015). Mr
Swingler has a Diploma of Business (Accounting) and is a
Fellow of CPA Australia, Governance Institute of Australia and
the Australian Institute of Company Directors. Mr Swingler was
appointed to the board on 1 October 2013.

Mr Clinton Rodda

Managing Director

Mr Rodda joined SRW in 2005 after spending 17 years in the
utility sector and ten years in management consulting. He has
previously held senior management roles with Energy Brix

and Eastern Area Power Grid and has worked nationally and
internationally as a consultant. He holds a Bachelor of Business,
a Master of Business Administration, and a Diploma in
Ontological Coaching and is a member of the Australian Institute
of Company Directors. Mr Rodda was appointed Managing
Director on 4 July 2009 and reappointed in March 2014 for a
further five years effective from July 2014.
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Governance

Mr Terry Burgi OAM
Chairman (2011 - 2017)

Mr Burgi is a fruit grower in the Yarra Valley. He has more

than 30 years’ experience representing farmers in industry
organisations at regional, state and federal levels and is a CFA
volunteer with more than 45 years of active service. Mr Burgi
has a degree in Engineering (Agricultural) from the University of
Melbourne and has previously worked in the water industry. He
is a Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company Directors and
a Member of the Institution of Engineers Australia. In June 2016,
Mr Burgi was awarded an Order of Australia Medal for services
to agriculture and the community. Mr Burgi was appointed to
the board on 1 July 2004. Mr Burgi was appointed Deputy
Chairman in August 2010 and Chairman in October 2011
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Role of the board

In accordance with the Water Act 1989 the SRW board is
responsible for:

® the strategic planning of the corporation
® the management of the affairs of the corporation.

In doing so, the board must be mindful of the sustainable
management principles for water corporations; it must also act
as efficiently as possible, consistent with commercial practice.

Membership of the board

® The responsible Minister appoints the Chairman in
accordance with the Water Act 1989.

®  The responsible Minister similarly appoints directors.

®  The Deputy Chairman, one of the appointed directors, is
appointed by the board.

® The board appoints the Managing Director.

® Directors are appointed by their qualifications and
experience; they do not represent any particular
constituency.

®  The responsible Minister sets remuneration.
Board committees

Board committees are established by the board to assist in the
detailed examination of matters and to make recommmendations
to the board.

Audit, Risk and Governance Committee

The Audit and Risk Policy Committee became the Audit, Risk
and Governance Committee on 1 October by incorporating
corporate governance responsibilities. The committee assists
the board in discharging its responsibilities for:

® the integrity of the annual financial statements and financial
reporting

®  exposure to legal and business risk and associated risk
management

® the effectiveness of the external and internal audit functions

® the adequacy and effectiveness of financial management,
financial control systems, and other internal controls

www.srw.com.au

®  monitoring compliance with laws and regulations
® fostering excellence in corporate governance.
Committee members

Mr Swingler was appointed as Chairman of the committee,

and Ms Calvert, Ms Cleary, Mr Malouf and Mrs Pye were
appointed to the committee on 12 October 2017. Mr Swingler
was Chairman and Ms Cleary, Mr Malouf and Mrs Pye were all
members of the former Audit and Risk Policy Committee, which
operated until 30 September 2017.

Asset Governance Committee

The Asset Governance Committee advises the board on policy,
strategy and performance of asset management to ensure it
meets the needs of the corporation.

Committee members

Ms Maddy was appointed to the committee on 18 August 2018.
Mr Hume and Ms James AM were appointed to the committee
on 12 October 2017. Mr Malouf (Chairman) and Ms Calvert were
appointed to the committee on 12 November 2015.

Remuneration Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee

The Remuneration Committee was formed in October 2017.
Previously known as the Remuneration and Corporate
Governance Committee, the committee was renamed after the
transfer of its governance responsibilities to the Audit, Risk and
Governance committee.

The Remuneration Committee fosters excellence in
remuneration practice, specifically to ensure that executive
remuneration policies and procedures comply with government
requirements and better practice.

Committee members

Ms James AM was appointed as Chairman of the committee,
and Ms Calvert, Mr Malouf and Mr Swingler were appointed

to the committee on 12 October 2017. Mr Swingler was
reappointed as a committee member on 12 November 2015.
Ms James and Mrs Pye were appointed to the committee on
12 November 2015. Mr Burgi OAM was Chairman and Mrs Pye,
Ms James AM and Mr Swingler were all members of the former
Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee, which
operated until 30 September 2017.
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Organisational Culture Committee

The Organisational Culture Committee was formed to advise
the board on policy, strategy and performance of organisational
culture. All members of the board were members of the
Organisational Culture committee. From October 2017, these
responsibilities were incorporated into the board agenda.

Werribee Office Site Redevelopment Committee

The Werribee Office Site Redevelopment Committee oversees
the Werribee Office Redevelopment Project.

Committee members

Ms Cleary (Chairman), Mr Malouf and Mr Rodda were all
members of the committee throughout the year.

Customer Consultative Committees

Directors also attend the scheduled customer consultative
committees throughout the year, with one regular attendee and
a second director attending as available.

Werribee Bacchus Marsh Customer Consultative
Committee — Naomi Cleary

Macalister Customer Consultative Committee — Angus
Hume

Southern Groundwater and Rivers Forum — Naomi Pye
Board activities for the year
Development opportunities in the past year included:

® attendance at the VicWater annual conference, held on 14-
15 September 2017

® attendance at the VicWater Finance conference, held on
3-4 May 2018

®  participation in the Water Industry Director Information
Sessions on Dam Safety and Risk Management, held in

March 2018

® attendance at various Australian Institute of Company
Directors updates throughout the year

®  participation in the DELWP Governance program held in
March 2018.
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Governance

Board stakeholder engagement

Board members regularly represent SRW at a range of
stakeholder meetings and events thoughout the water sector
and broader regional development industry.

Board meetings are held at strategic locations across southern
Victoria, providing the opportunity for inspection tours, meetings
with customers and stakeholders to further extend relationships
and to gain exposure to customer priorities and industry trends
in development.

In the past year, the board has had meetings with:

® |ocal stakeholders and members of the Werribee Bacchus
Marsh Customer Consultative Committee, a visit to the
Lerderderg Weir to review recent safety and productivity
improvement projects

®  Southern Groundwater and Rivers Forum to discuss
current initiatives and priorities in groundwater and surface
water across southern Victoria

® East Gippsland stakeholders and customers, and a tour
of vegetable growing operations in the Lindenow Valley
region.
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Board meetings

Directors attended the following scheduled meetings.

Board and board committee meetings attendances 2017-18 summary

Terry Burgi OAM
(to Sept 2017)

Diane James AM
Kate Calvert!
Naomi Cleary

Angus Hume
(from Oct 2017)

Peta Maddy
(from Oct 2017)

Michael Malouf
Naomi Pye
Terry Swingler
Clinton Rodda

Board meetings

20f2

9of9
7 0of9
9o0f9
7 of 7

7of7

9of 9
9of9
9 of 9
90of9

Audit and
Risk Policy
Committee

20f2

20f2
20of 2
2 0of 2

Audit, Risk and
Governance

10f3
3of3

20of3
30f3
30f3

Asset
Governance
Committee

1o0of1

20of 3
1of 1

3of3

3of3

40of4

Remuneration
and Corporate
Governance
Committee

1of1

1of1

1of1
1o0of1

Werribee

Office Site
Redevelopment
Committee

50f5

50f5

50f5

10n board approved leave.
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Leadership team

The SRW leadership team includes the Managing Director and
the following members:

Mr Lincoln Eddy

Manager Strategy and Performance

Mr Eddy joined SRW in 1997 as a Project Accountant and has
held numerous positions.

He was appointed Manager People and Performance in late
2009 and most recently as Manager Strategy and Performance
in 2014. He previously worked in the education sector and has
experience running his own business. He has a Bachelor of
Business.

Ms Joanna Giannini
Manager People and Culture

Ms Giannini joined SRW in January 2017 having held senior
human resources positions with the Department of Health and
Human Services. Before this, she worked with community
service and private organisations providing human resources
leadership and leading organisational reform. She brings a
strong background in organisational development, employee
relations and leadership and management coaching. She holds
a Bachelor of Business (Human Resources).

Ms Nicole Griffin
General Manager Technical and Environment

Ms Griffin joined SRW in May 2018 having spent five years at
Gippsland Water as General Manager Assets and Commercial
Business and, before that, General Manager of Business
Development.

Before joining the water industry, Ms Griffin spent some years

in the Biotechnology sector working for Monsanto both in
Australia and the Asia Pacific region. She worked in the cotton
industry for some years and understands the important role that
irrigation plays in the health of regional economies.

Ms Griffin has a Bachelor Degree in Agricultural Science and
Graduate Diploma in Environmental Management. Nicole is also
a graduate of the Australian Institute of Company Directors and
is currently completing an Executive MBA.
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Mr Craig Parker
General Manager Customer Service

Since joining the water industry in 2000, Mr Parker has
worked from field officer to executive levels across the SRW
regions. He has also acted as CEO at the East Gippsland
Catchment Management Authority, adding a new perspective
to his management of water resources. As General Manager
Customer Service, Mr Parker is committed to better customer
outcomes in all parts of the business. This includes making
water trading more accessible, making transactions such as
renewals cheaper and easier and facilitating customers’ ability
to access their data to help run their business. Also, Mr Parker
is accountable for ensuring our modernised assets lead to
increased service opportunities for customers. He is a member
of the AICD and has business qualifications from Mt Eliza
Business School and UQ.

Ms Bernadine Phelan
Communications and Engagement Manager

Ms Phelan joined SRW in January 2017, bringing more than 30
years’ experience in media, communications, engagement and
corporate development. She started her career in Australia and
held senior leadership roles for a global media group in the UK
for 19 years. Since returning to Gippsland in 2007, Ms Phelan
has worked across Australia as an integrated media consultant
for clients in the private and public sector, including in the water,
natural resources and education sectors and for a Traditional
Owners/State Government joint initiative.

Mr Michael Piko

Chief Information Officer

Mr Piko is a seasoned CIO with more than 30 years of
experience. He has led ICT teams in a variety of government
and private organisations, including water corporations in
Victoria and New South Wales. He has also held executive roles
in the higher education and health sectors. Mr Piko has a strong
background in ICT strategies, service delivery and project
management.

Mr Stuart Wrigglesworth
Chief Financial Officer and Corporation Secretary

Having grown up on a family farm supplied from the Macalister
system, Mr Wrigglesworth joined SRW as Finance Manager in
late 2005 and was appointed Chief Financial Officer in March
2011. He has six years’ experience working in professional
practice for Price Waterhouse Coopers in Melbourne and South
Africa, as well as having more than five years’ experience in the
UK working in Finance and Accounting roles for commercial and
public sector businesses. Mr Wrigglesworth holds a Bachelor

of Commerce and is a member of the Institute of Chartered

Accountants.
www.srw.com.au



Reporting

SRW is focusing its attention on improving performance in
relation to the Minister’s Letter of Expectations. The following
pages provide SRW’s performance against the key performance
indicators relevant to the priority areas as set out in Water for
Victoria.

Climate Change

Provide services that minimise environmental impacts, mitigate
climate change and put in place adaptation strategies.

Key Performance Indicator

E2 Emission reduction pledges. Pledges to commit to specific
actions to achieve net zero emissions.

Definition
Net tonnes of CO, equivalent emissions (scope 1 and scope 2
emissions only) for the whole business and its activities.

Measure
Total net CO, emissions equivalent tonnes. (Baseline
established in 2016-17).

Performance
See page 34.

Key Performance Indicator

E3 Climate Adaptation. Apply the Guidelines for Assessing the
impact of Climate Change on Water Suppliers in Victoria and
demonstrate adaptation by:

Rural water corporations develop low flow contingency plans
that include an appropriate range of climate scenarios.

Definition
Planning for adaptation to the warmer, drier climate conditions
predicted for the future.

Measure
Baseline established in 2016-17. Report on progress towards

commitments.

Performance
See pages 07-08, 29-30
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Letter of Expectations

Customer and community outcomes
All aspects of delivery will be customer and community centred.
Key Performance Indicator

C3 Appropriate engagement methods used when working with
communities.

Definition
Use of DELWP community charter or equivalent best-practice
engagement methods.

Measure
A strategy that demonstrates approaches to community
engagement that are open, honest and occur frequently.

Performance
See pages 21-24.

Key Performance Indicator
CR4 Billing/payment issue complaints.

Definition
Number of billing/payment issue complaints per 100 customers.

Measure
Reduced number of complaints year on year.

Performance
See page 98.

Water for Aboriginal cultural, spiritual
and economic values

Recognise and support Aboriginal cultural values and economic
inclusion in the water sector.

Key Performance Indicator

AC1-1 Effective engagement of Aboriginal communities for
involvement in business opportunities and access to water for
economic development.

Definition

Explore and develop opportunities for business arrangements
with Traditional Owners and Aboriginal enterprises to deliver
value for money catchment and water services.

Measure

A strategy that demonstrates how SRW will build capability and
understanding of procurement processes to address barriers for
Aboriginal enterprises to supply goods/services to SRW.



Performance

SRW is committed to upholding the highest standards of probity
in all procurement related activities, in line with SRW’s Probity
Guidelines and best practice.

In May, SRW signed a multi-agency partnership agreement with
the Gunaikurnai Land and Waters Aboriginal Corporation, which
sets out mutual objectives and an action plan to:

®  poost employment opportunities for Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islander Peoples in Gippsland

® develop training, capability-building and skills-sharing
programs

® review tender documentation to promote training and
inclusion of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Peoples

® {0 extend cultural competency training, and promote
acknowledgment, Welcome to Country and other
ceremonial events

®  support GLaWAC to develop priority economic
opportunities.

Key Performance Indicator

AC1-2 Effective engagement of Aboriginal communities for
involvement in business opportunities and access to water for
economic development.

Definition

Inform Traditional Owners when opportunities arise to

access water entitlements within existing framework. Provide
opportunities for cross-cultural learning in the water sector, as
well as skills training and employment for Aboriginal Victorians.

Measure

Number of sponsorships of Aboriginal people in relevant
study and training courses, including scholarships, vocational
education and traineeships.

Staff have undertaken a cross-cultural training course (by
relevant Traditional Owner) in the last five years.

Performance
See above, and:

®  SRW staff undertook awareness training at various
locations throughout 2017-18, including at culturally
important sites.
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Letter of Expectations
Reporting

®  SRW project and field staff working on external sites
including excavation have also undertaken specific cultural
awareness training.

SRW is currently preparing a strategy for engaging with the
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander community which will
include:

®  delivering further cultural awareness training

® developing a work placement program for high school and
TAFE level students

®  ensuring Traditional Owner groups are informed whenever
water entitlements are available.

See page 23 for more detail.
Key Performance Indicator

AC2 Effective engagement of Traditional Owners for inclusion of
Aboriginal Values in water planning.

Definition
Incorporate traditional ecological knowledge into water planning
and management using Aboriginal Waterway Assessments and

other tools developed by Traditional Owners. Notify and engage
with Traditional Owners to achieve shared benefits.

Measure
Number of engagements with Traditional Owners in water

planning and management and report on outcomes.

Number of pilot programs to test different ways to achieve
shared benefits.

Performance

SRW has engaged with GLaWAC and the Gunaikurnai
Traditional Owner Land Management Board in early discussions
on potential future economic development opportunities.

See page 23 for more detalil.

Resilient and liveable cities and towns

Contribute to healthy communities by supporting safe,
affordable, high-quality services and resilient environments.

Key Performance Indicator

L1 Enabling local government and communities to realise
liveability outcomes.

www.srw.com.au



Definition
Facilitating local government and community projects with
liveability benefits.

Measure
Engagement with local councils and sponsorships of integrated
water management programs.

Performance
SRW participates in the 10 Integrated Water Management
forums across its region in various capacities.

SRW is a funding partner and member of the Grow West
initiative, which has delivered revegetation projects in the
Werribee River catchment area (including council land) and
annual community planting days.

Transfer of SRW land at Lake Glenmaggie to facilitate ongoing
recreation at Blores Hill Mountain Bike Track.

Transfer of land to City of Wyndham at Galvin Park, building on
existing recreational facilities.

SRW undertook a pre-feasibility study to examine the potential
for irrigation expansion in the Macalister, Thomson and Latrobe
basins with the potential to provide an opportunity for economic
development from agriculture.

Recognising recreational values

Support the wellbeing of rural and regional communities by
considering recreational values in water management.

Key Performance Indicator

Explicit inclusion of recreational values in planning and reporting
activities.

Definition
Recognise and support recreational values in water/waterway
planning, information provision and infrastructure.

Measure

Report on efforts taken to work with community members

and other government agencies to explore cost-effective
opportunities to provide complementary social, recreational and
economic benefits.

Performance
See page 24.
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Leadership and Culture

Water Corporations reflect the needs of our diverse
communities.

Key Performance Indicator

G1 Gender and cultural diversity in workforce including gender
equity in executive leadership.

Definition
Development of a Diversity Inclusion Plan/s that cover gender
equity and cultural, indigenous inclusion.

Measure

®  Diversity Inclusion Plan/s provided to DELWP to establish
baseline.

® Follow up on annual basis for predicted increase in the
number of females occupying senior executive positions
over projected five year period.

® Adopt a one per cent target for Aboriginal people in the
business consistent with Vic government policy1 and
commit to a stretch target of three per cent by 2020
(DELWP policy2).

® |ncrease capacity of Traditional Owners to participate in
boards and committees.

Performance
See page 25-26 of this report or visit www.srw.com.au

Key Performance Indicator

G3 Health and Safety.

Definition

Sustained annual improvement against Health and Safety

performance benchmarks (AS/NZS standard 4801).

Measure
Performance indicators adopted to monitor Occupational Health
and Safety in line with FRD 22H, section 5.10.

Performance
See page 28.
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Financial Sustainability

Delivering safe and cost-effective water and wastewater
services in a financially sustainable way.

Key Performance Indicator

F1 Interest cover

F2 Gearing ratio

F3 Internal financing ratio
F4 Current ratio

F5 Return on assets

F6 Return on equity

F7 EBITDA margin

F8 Credit rating

Definition

Financial indicators as prescribed by performance reporting.

Measure
Maintenance or improvement in credit rating.

Performance
See pages 95-97 of the financial report for F1 - F7.

F8 - The Department of Treasury and Finance determined a
credit rating of 'A' for debit facilities undertaken by SRW in the

2017-18 financial year.
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Engagement objectives

Strong customer and stakeholder relationships underpin SRW’s
ability to achieve its strategic objectives and vision.

These relationships have been built through decades of
customer and stakeholder engagement, developing a range

of ways for customers to work with us to guide and inform our
decision-making, and to help us shape future strategy and
policy.

SRW'’s corporate strategic focus includes growth and customer
productivity, affordable prices, sustainable water resources
and financial sustainability. These require a close understanding
of drivers that are external to SRW, and which impact on our
stakeholders and customers.

Our core engagement objective is to ensure that our customers
have a wide range of opportunities to engage with us

regarding the services we offer, our capital projects including
modernisation programs and new revenue projects, and other
factors involved in the cost of water delivery. We also want them
to understand how their needs guide our priorities, and to find it
easy to raise issues or suggestions with us.

In addition to our offices providing frontline support and our field
staff maintaining on-farm relationships, our Business Services
team provides phone support and live online chat, and we
maintain active social media pages, groups and e-newsletters.

We use the International Association for Public Participation
Australasia (IAP2) engagement model, which is widely used

in the public sector as part of best practice engagement. The
engagement spectrum outlines the approach and outcomes
expected at the different levels of engagement: Inform, Consult,
Involve, Collaborate and Empower.

Customer engagement
Consultative committees:

We met regularly with our four Customer Consultative
Committees to ensure we also provide a formal process for
customer participation in operational and long-term planning.
They fulfil their duties responsibly, and are often called upon
to help represent SRW’s customers at other community and
industry events.

e Macalister Customer Consultative Committee (MCCC)

e Werribee Bacchus Marsh Customer Consultative
Committee (WBMCCC)

e  Southern Groundwater and Rivers Forum (SGRF)
e *Wellington Community Salinity Committee (WCSC).

The Wellington Community Salinity Committee held its final
meeting in May, with the ongoing responsibility for salinity
management to be absorbed into the functions of the MCCC.
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These committee members sometimes augment working
groups and other committees as required. For instance, we
have co-opted representatives from customer committees
onto the Project Control Groups for major capital works, which
demonstrates the key role they play in the decision-making
process.

The members on these groups are selected based on the
knowledge they bring to the committee and their ability to reflect
the diversity of the customer sector they represent. These
committees are responsible for:

e helping to shape and approve future plans, prices,
investments, budgets and performance indicators

e providing input into system and service improvements

e providing feedback on tariff structures, pricing and billing
arrangements

e monitoring customer communication strategies and
activities

e providing a customer’s perspective on business issues,
with input into problem-solving

e linking the organisation to the customer communities it
serves.

In the more intensive areas of groundwater and surface water
use, SRW maintains local area committees to review aquifer and
river response. These meet annually, or as needed.

Further customer engagement:

In addition to routine core group meetings, we maintain regular
contact with various industry and farmer groups. SRW staff are
also frequently involved in individual on-farm communications.

Over the course of 2017-18, we have used: project update
meetings for specific customer groups, significant individual
consultation on-farm, field days and industry events, tours,
workshops and group forums.

We continue to develop our digital engagement tools,
particularly in the use of online surveys and encouraging opt-in
self-selection to receive regular e-newsletters on the subjects
that interest them.

Our internal Customer First team provides a regular forum for
staff from across the business to share their perspectives and
promote ways to improve customer service. This includes field
staff, customer service staff, billing and revenue staff, as well
as management and executive representatives. This team also
visits a range of customer sites to better understand customer
priorities and concerns.
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Pricing submission

In June 2017, our Pricing Submission for 2018-2023 was
approved largely unchanged by the ES), which accepted our
overall rating of ‘Advanced’, with a Customer Engagement rating
of ‘Leading’ under the PREMO ratings. We were one of only a
handful of water corporations to achieve a Leading rating — the
others being larger and with more resources.

The price submission reflected our focus on keeping customers’
bills down, while delivering the infrastructure and services our
customers need and deserve. A wider engagement program
allowed us to invite broader participation from across our
customer base, and included information gathering, deliberative
workshops on a series of customer proposals, detailed
exploration and validation phases. Their participation and
priorities largely helped formulate the final ESC submission.

The ESC determination found that: “The influence of SRW’s
engagement on its proposals supports the objectives in our
pricing framework relating to efficiency and the interests of
consumers.”

Hardship and drought

SRW knows that a range of personal and external issues
—including a hot and dry summer, market fluctuations and
personal hardship — often affects many of its customers’
businesses.

SRW has a Customer Charter, which includes a section on
customer hardship.

Where customers experience hardship, SRW will seek to
understand their situation and find solutions that are mutually
acceptable.

Solutions will be tailored that assist the customer and do not
negatively affect SRW’s financial performance (such as waivers
or rebates) or require a cross-subsidy from other customers.

Customer service improvements

SRW has several cross-business customer service improvement
projects underway, as part of our customer experience program
including:

e acustomer hub to make all online customer interfaces
available through one login, providing tools to make it easier
for customers to access their information and orders.

e acustomer relationship management system.

e further automation of transactions, supported by a data
synchronisation project to improve data integrity for
customer-related information.

e facilitating trade of unused water and improving water
availability.

e continuing our work on improving processing times for
customer orders and improving consistency of irrigation
flow rates.
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Stakeholder engagement

SRW’s region includes Melbourne Water, six metropolitan
retail water corporations, three retail urban corporations,
five catchment management authorities, more than 25 rural
municipalities and many more councils in urban Melbourne.

SRW also works closely with State Government, chiefly the
DELWP in its delegated licensing functions, as well as the
Environment Protection Authority, Department of Health and the
Essential Services Commission.

We have regular scheduled meetings with the urban water
businesses, power companies and government departments
who hold bulk entitlements in the storages we manage. These
meetings provide an opportunity to discuss strategic and
operational matters, including: service expectations, pricing,
planned works, environmental matters and policy.

Some of the many other stakeholders we engage with:
e the Minister for Water and her staff
e Department of Treasury and Finance

e primary industry groups such as the Victorian Farmers
Federation and relevant commodity groups, United
Dairyfarmers of Victoria, along with peak horticultural
industry bodies

e Water industry groups
e Environment Victoria

e Federal Government agencies such as the Bureau of
Meteorology

e the Energy and Water Ombudsman of Victoria
e environmental and sustainability groups

e regional development organisations and community-based
progress groups.

Our stakeholder engagement plan includes senior leadership
team meetings with:

e VicWater
e  Gippsland Regional Water Alliance

e  Gippsland Environmental Alliance (GEA) — MDs forum and
Women in Leadership Group and the GLaWAC Working
Group

e Wellington Shire Council for the MID2030 and Lake
Glenmaggie; Baw Baw Shire Council (Blue Rock Lake) and
other councils in our region on an as-needed basis

e Melbourne Water

e Western Water, Wannon Water, East Gippsland Water and
Gippsland Water

e West Gippsland Catchment Management Authority and
East Gippsland Catchment Management Authority

e East Gippsland CEO’s network
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e Victorian Environmental Water Holder

e  Bulk entitlement holders for the Latrobe and Werribee/
Maribyrnong systems

e  Corangamite Catchment Management Authority and
Glenelg Hopkins Catchment Management Authority
regarding environmental flows

e Barwon region IWM
e Regional Development Victoria
e DEDJTR/Agriculture Victoria.

SRW has a less-structured but close dialogue as need arises
with other municipalities, water corporations and catchment
management authorities across southern Victoria.

Measurement

SRW measures the effectiveness of its service, communications
and engagement activities and encourages feedback from its
customers and stakeholders in several ways, including:

e customer committees feedback

e regular surveys of customers across all businesses
e Dbiennial stakeholder surveys and ‘pulse checks’

e feedback forms sent to all licence applicants

e regular stakeholder engagement at various levels
throughout the organisation

e talking to customers on-farm

e customer feedback via our website, including live online
chat with Customer Service

e board meetings being conducted across the state, involving
visits and meetings with customers and stakeholders

e social media pages - including specific groups for irrigator
districts and groups of storages

e email, online and e-news responses.

Customers who feel that a complaint has not been satisfactorily
resolved can contact the Energy and Water Ombudsman
Victoria (EWOV) on 1300 500 509.

Indigenous engagement

We strive to improve our understanding and recognition
of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Peoples’ cultural
connection to Country.

We continue to seek opportunities to implement the Water for
Victoria Plan goals of recognising Aboriginal values of water, and
building capacity to support Aboriginal participation in water
planning and management.

In May 2018, we signed a unique multi-agency partnership
agreement between the Gunaikurnai Land and Water Aboriginal
Corporation (GLaWAC) and 12 other organisations working
across the natural resources sector in Gippsland, including
DELWP and Parks Victoria, and other water corporations.
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The idea of a multi-agency agreement was proposed through
the Gippsland Environmental Agencies (GEA) alliance, of which
SRW is an active partner. The agreement includes Victorian
Government departments, water corporations, catchment
management authorities, the EPA and other non-profit
organisations. The joint signing event was attended by John
Bradley, the DELWP Secretary.

The agreement recognises that Traditional Owner groups often
do not have the resources to negotiate separate agreements
with individual agencies. The GLaWAC management team
worked together with GEA to create a common set of objectives
and incorporate each organisation’s initiatives and align them
with the Gunaikurnai Whole of Country objectives.

Other activities and engagement initiatives at SRW in 2017-18
have included:

e developing a draft structure to support further Aboriginal
participation in employment at SRW

e participating in Victorian Aboriginal Heritage Council
stakeholder meetings

e The official ceremony in NAIDOC Week 2017 that
launched the Maffra head office meeting rooms with their
corresponding Gunaikurnai names, as approved by the
GLaWAC Board and Elders Council. An Acknowledgment
of Country is also carried across the boardroom wall image

e  Cultural Awareness Training sessions, both internal and
external

e engagement with GLaWAC. the Gunaikurnai Traditional
Owner Land Management Board and with cultural heritage
consultants in discussions about ongoing modernisation
works, and studies into potential future projects

e exploring further opportunities to develop our relationships
with other Registered Aboriginal Parties across our region.

SRW continued to meet its commitment to consult with
indigenous groups when planning any major project works and
to support NAIDOC Week activities.

We have established a joint working party to oversee the
implementation of the GLaWAC agreement actions across each
organisation.

SRW’s guidelines on the Involvement and Acknowledgement of
Traditional Owners requires that for ceremonial events, we:

e identify, and liaise with, the relevant group of Traditional
Owners

e contact Traditional Owners well in advance of planned
ceremonial events and invite participation

e invite an appropriate representative of the Traditional
Owners to make a Welcome to Country statement

e formally acknowledge Traditional Owners.



Community engagement

SRW staff engage in a variety of ways with the wider
communities across our southern Victorian regions.

The Broadening Horizons program is a significant commitment
to developing relationships with our local secondary schools,
and promoting pathways into careers associated with the
water industry. SRW staff mentor groups of students who

are undertaking scientific, data or environmental research to
present at an annual expo for the school and wider community.

Our staff attend numerous community events to promote
awareness of rural water management. During 2017-18,
staff attended events such as Farm World at Lardner Park,
Sheepvention Field Days, East Gippsland Field Days, Silvan-
Wandin Field Day and Maffra Agricultural Shows.

In addition, SRW hosts numerous tours for local schools,
community groups, university groups and international aid
groups, particularly in our irrigation districts and at our large
dams.

We participate in Job Shadow day and other work experience
programs, which promote diversity and inclusion in our
employment campaigns.

During Water Week activities, we host children from local
primary schools on specifically designed tours in our irrigation
districts, and promote safe behaviours around our assets, such
as our dams and irrigation channels.

Sponsorship

SRW is committed to building its relationship with the
communities it serves in southern Victoria. One of the ways we
do this is through sponsorship of community events and group
activities.

Our sponsorship priorities target not-for-profit activities that:

° strengthen local communities
° promote sustainable environmental practice
o educate, particularly on water-related topics.

SRW provides sponsorship to community groups and
organisations, industry events or activities and to staff involved
in charitable events or extraordinary not-for-profit personal
endeavours.
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Recreational values

We acknowledge the strong association that leisure users
have with our public storages, and we remain committed to
developing plans for their ongoing use.

Recreational use of Blue Rock Lake has grown significantly
since the introduction of new community-approved boating
measures that have consolidated its place as a premier
Australian bass fishing destination. Since 2015, Blue Rock
Angling Club has expanded its membership to more than
1,000 members, and recreational users have continued to
enjoy the lake’s quiet amenity. Local Landcare and community
groups have also been involved in developing vegetation and
recreational walks along the foreshore.

Land and water management plans developed for Pykes Creek,
Merrimu and Blue Rock have identified future aspirations for
improved facilities. Further plans for other storages are being
developed.

Our staff attending public and community events, such as field
days, agricultural shows and school tours, also promote safe
recreational use of our public storages.

We maintain an active and responsive Pykes Creek Facebook
page, which provides an immediate method for keeping in
touch with recreational users who come from outside our usual
customer communication channels. We have used it extensively
to manage communications that relate to water levels, speed
restrictions and any closure periods.

The Maffra Weir diversion channel project was completed this
year, with a design that will incorporate a future fish ladder to
support the further development of recreational fishing in the
region.

Our website is kept up-to-date with all relevant information
about facilities, accessibility and any restrictions at our storages.
The front page of the website also carries prominent warnings
when there are any Blue-Green Algae bloom warnings.
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Our people

SRW employs 174 staff across its 20 southern Victorian work
sites. Employees work within irrigation, headworks, groundwater
and rivers, engineering, technical and corporate functions.

SRW trademark behaviours considered critical to success
include:

e United

e Customer first
e Ambitious

e Results driven
e Innovative

e Respectful.

A focus through 2017-18 has been leadership at all levels of
the organisation, delivering service excellence and stronger
outcomes for our customers.

The SRW Enterprise Agreement 2014 (EA) is the main industrial
agreement that regulates staff pay and conditions. The EA was
negotiated in 2014 and approved by the Fair Work Commission
for three years until the end of September 2017.

SRW strengthened its anti-discrimination commitment and
modernised employment conditions in the new 2017 SRW
Enterprise Agreement, which is continuing through the approval
process and expected to be ratified in 2018.

SRW also employs seven executives including the Managing
Director under contract conditions regulated by the State
Government Executive Remuneration Panel.

An Employee Consultative Committee (ECC) acts as the primary
consultative body about workplace issues that have significant
consequences upon the operation of our business, including
human resources policies and change management, and the
future directions of SRW.

Position descriptions are in place for each role. SRW'’s
selection process assesses candidates against advertised job
prerequisites and selection criteria, based on the merit and
equity employment principles established under the Public
Administration Act 2004. All new employees receive a formal
induction.

Pay and entitlements are administered in accordance with
signed employment contracts and approved industrial
agreements. Many of our people work flexibly and balance work
and family commitments.

We have provided additional leave and confidential support
to assist employees experiencing family and intimate partner
violence and have updated our policies and processes to
ensure they are gender neutral and inclusive. We have also
provided training for all staff in recognising the signs of family
violence and steps they can take.

www.srw.com.au
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People and Culture

Diversity and Inclusion

In 2018, SRW established a new Diversity and Inclusion
Strategy.

Our vision is to ensure all our people feel respected, valued
and included and have access to equal opportunity, which
encourages them to contribute at their full potential.

We want to attract and bring people to our workplace with new
and different perspectives and experiences, which will enhance
innovation and performance at SRW.

This strategy takes us beyond compliance, recognising diversity
and inclusion as a key business enabler and a business
imperative. Our strategy provides a roadmap to foster diversity
and inclusion in our workforce, helping us make positive
contributions to social inclusion and workforce participation.

We intend to achieve our goals by setting clear targets and
action plans to help us meet them. There are several workforce
targets we aim to achieve by 2020, and these will be the focus
of programs and activities outlined in our Action Plan.

To drive our commitment to action, we have identified five key
focus areas:

e Education and Communication
e Measurement and Reporting

e HR Policy and Practice

e Governance

e Leadership.

SRW respects and values the diversity of the workforce by
helping to prevent and eliminate discrimination on the basis of
race, colour, sex, sexual orientation, gender expression, age,
physical or mental disability, marital status, family or carer’s
responsibilities, pregnancy, religion, political opinion, national
extraction or social origin.

SRW celebrates Men’s Health Week, International Women'’s
Day, Harmony Day, International Men’s Day, NAIDOC Week,
International Day against Homophobia, Transphobia and
Biphobia, Wear it Purple Day and other significant cultural
events.

The People and Culture team leads the SRW Women's
Network, Aurora. Aurora’s annual conference attracts people of
all genders and from all levels of SRW. The 2018 Aurora event
was held in April, attended by more than 30 representatives
from across SRW.

The event included discussion about careers, values and
leadership, as well as mental and physical health and caring for
the environment. Former Victoria Police Detective Narelle Fraser
spoke about her life in policing and the ultimate loss of her
career through PTSD.



Jason Tuazon-McCheyne from the Equality Project presented
at Aurora. Jason has been actively involved with the Essendon
Football Club in working to tackle homophobia and created

the Purple Bombers in 2013. Angela Koukoulis from New View
Psychology delivered a wellness session with a focus on stress,
sleep, exercise, positive thinking and mindfulness.

The sessions were interactive, and the content was pitched to
build the capacity of participants to thrive at work and in life. As
in previous years, the men in attendance were all appreciative
of the opportunity to participate in the forum and be exposed to
the insights of the presenters and participants.

The Aurora network is a leading program for women in water
and welcomes attendance from the broader industry.

What have we done?

SRW’s commitment to diversity and inclusion is evident with
a range of measures in place to ensure SRW provides equal
employment opportunities, including policies and procedures,
seven trained internal Contact Officers, two LGBTI Contact
Officers and regular reviews of our compliance with legal and
government obligations.

e InFebruary 2018, SRW lodged its submission to the
national AWEI Pride in Diversity program to assess its
performance in LGBTIQ+ inclusion.

SRW was assessed in the Small Employer category and
awarded bronze status, one of only a handful.

For many organisations, it takes several years to achieve
bronze recognition. Bronze employers are considered
active employers in LGBTIQ+ inclusion with submissions
providing detailed evidence of work in this area over the
2017 calendar year.

e  SRW is an active member of Pride in Diversity and
promotes LGBTI inclusion.

e To encourage young people to consider a career in water,
we have continued our partnership with the Broadening
Horizons Gippsland Program to support Year 8 students
through an inquiry-based project and mentoring program

People and Culture

to improve student educational aspirations and to increase
their awareness of the diverse career opportunities in

the Gippsland region. SRW also hosts work experience
students from local secondary schools.

e The Aurora network is open to all women and focuses
on supporting, developing and empowering women in
their lives and careers. To attract more female applicants,
SRW has updated the recruitment templates to include
statements that encourage women to apply and highlight
our commitment to workplace flexibility.

e  SRW offers placement opportunities for university students
and works with people nearing retirement to transfer their
valuable knowledge to their colleagues at SRW.

Performance Development Planning

Performance Development Planning (PDP) continues to be

a major focus. The PDP program provides a forum for line
managers and employees to discuss key job objectives,
collaboration, behaviours and development. Training and
development needs are assessed, and actions put in place for
the year ahead.

SRW has continued its partnership with JMW to develop
leadership capacity among all staff who lead people. Programs
delivered are Leader of the Future® and Foundations for
Transformational Leadership®.

Some employees are studying higher level Certificate 3, 4,
diploma and university degree courses.

Employment and conduct principles

All SRW employees are required to meet the standards of the
Victorian Public Sector Code of Conduct, SRW’s trademark
behaviours and other workplace legislation. Respect and
collaboration are key drivers in the success of delivering SRW'’s
services, and people are acknowledged for high performance.

Diversity goals

Overall women at Southern Rural Water
Women holding executive positions

Women in SRW in the leadership group

Women in SRW holding engineering positions

or managers

Under 25 years

Women in SRW holding degree-required positions (other than engineering) NA

Women in SRW holding field positions *includes storage operators, water
service officers, field officers and compliance officers but not supervisors

Maintain or increase proportion of staff who identify as of ATSI decent

Baseline 2013 Target 2020 June 2018
20% >32% 30%

0% 50% 38%

NA >35% 26%

>40% 36%

NA >40% 22%

NA >15% 7%

4% >8% 4%

2% >3% 2%
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Breakdown of staff by function as at 30 June 2018

Category 2017-18 2016-17
Headcount =IE Percentage Headcount Percentage
Executive officers 7 7 1% 7 1%
Senior management 5 5 3% 4 2%
Administration staff 28 26. 16% 28 16%
Finance staff 8 7. 5% 7 4%
Operational staff 127 123 73% 125 73%
Total 174 171
Category 2017-18 2016-17
Headcount FTE Headcount
Male Female Male Female Male Female
Executive officers 5 2 5 2 6 1
72% 23% 86% | 14%
Reason for cessation of employment 2017-18 Staff service in excess of Male no. Female no.
10 years
% turnover of total staff 14% 10-15 years 32 12
Resignation (number of staff) 16 15-20 years 13 1
Retirement (number of staff) 20-25 years 11 4
Dismissed (number of staff) 25-30 years 0 0
30-35 years 2 0
35-40 years 1 0
Category Age Cohort 2017-18 40-45 years 4 0
45-50 years 2 0
Headcount FTE
151024 6 5.4
25 to 34 27 26.4 Category Classification 2017-18
35to0 44 49 45.73
45 to 54 50 48.47 Headcount FTE
55 to 64 35 34.44 Band A 30 27.98
65+ 7 6.84 Band B 50 48.8
Total 174 167.28 Band C 12 10.16
Band D 20 19.07
Band E 5 5
Band F 1
Total Remuneration 56 55.27
Package
Total 174 167.28

NOTE: No 'self-described' data has been collected for the 2017-18 period.
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Occupational Health and Safety

SRW continued to manage our Occupational Health and Safety
(OH&S) responsibilities in accordance with legislation and our
ongoing commitment to providing a safe work environment for
the welfare of our employees.

We completed a comprehensive external review of our OH&S
management system with the use of Hazcon Pty Ltd.

We continued to offer and deliver a successful health and
wellbeing program, which was conducted by Health at Work
with ‘Man-Up’ health information sessions, voluntary flu
vaccination and health and skin checks.

Consultation remains strong with staff through the Health,
Safety and Environment Committee and we completed six
meetings as per our schedule requirement, and we have worked
together to develop our three-year health, safety and wellbeing
strategy.

SRW continues to participate in the Victorian Water Industry
OH&S Network to discuss and share industry-related issues
and achievements.

Incident management

We recently introduced Risk Wizard software to assist in the
management of incidents when they occur. Incidents reported
across the corporation increased by 8.8 per cent in 2017-18.
Incidents include injuries and near-misses. In real terms, the
increase equates to an additional three reported incidents
compared with the previous year.

There was only one notifiable incident. Notifiable incidents are
those which require the OH&S Regulator to be notified.

OHA&S indicators for 2017-18

Indicator 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16
Number of lost time injuries for the year 2 2 &
Lost time injury frequency rate (per million hours worked) 7.3 6.4 9.5
Number of days lost due to injuries incurred during the year 2481 86 788
Number of medical treatment injuries for the year 4 4 3
Medical treatment frequency rate (per million hours worked) 14.5 12.7 9.5
Total number of incidents (excluding near miss reporting) 15 12 23
Number of First Aid incidents 9 8 19
First aid treatment frequency rate 32.7 25.4 60.0
Standard lost Claims exceeding employer liability (>10days) 1 2 1
Average cost per compensation claim $7,168.75 $20,371 $15,048
Number of reported hazards closed out 379 319 297
Number of workplace inspections completed 50 52 51

" Increase in days lost was due to one matter that continued as WorkCover LTI once employment ceased.
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Macalister Irrigation District (MID)
modernisation
Phase 1B Continues

Winter construction works on Stage 2 of the $60m Phase 1B of
the MID2030 modernisation program are progressing, with all
material procurement completed before the close of the financial
year. Work has advanced on the pipeline installation, which is
expected to be completed by mid-October. Phase 1B is being
delivered across four stages and will convert the northern half
of the MID’s Southern Tinamba supply zone from channels to
gravity pipelines, in addition to upgrading and automating the
channels in the southern half.

Over the life of the project, approximately 38km of new pipeline
will be installed and approximately 33km of channel will be
automated. The project is expected to gain water savings of

at least 9,700ML which, added to the Phase 1A program, will
further boost the MID’s production capacity.

The project is jointly funded by the Victorian State Government,
Federal Government and SRW MID customers. Stage 1, 1.55km
of the pipeline along with the inlet structure, was completed and
operational August 2017. The remaining future stages planned
are:

e  Stage 4: approximately 15km of pipeline to replace the
Mewburn Park channel system (2019)

e Stage 3: upgrading and automating approximately 32km of
channel in the Riverslea area (winter 2020).

Group meetings with customers, targeted at those involved

in each stage, are held at each substantive milestone, along
with email and web updates to keep the customers informed
about progress. Individual on-farm consultations involve
customers in the decision-making process to help inform design
development.

The project team has held initial information-gathering
consultations with all those involved in the Stage 4 pipeline
construction next year, which is essential to completing the final
design stage. Environmental, planning and cultural heritage
approval investigations and planning are also underway.
Consultation with Stage 3 (channel automation) customers is
expected to commence in September 2018.

The initial customer consultations have identified a high level
of engagement and preparedness for the project particularly
in terms of private, on-farm infrastructure planning and
development.
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Werribee Irrigation District (WID)
Modernisation

In April 2016, the Victorian Government committed $10.44m
towards the $31.3m project to pipe the WID. The funding,
matched by the same contribution from irrigators, ensured SRW
secured two-thirds of the funding for the project.

This project will help to secure the future of the WID by installing
39km of new pipeline to replace the old channels over five
years.

Once completed, the project will save around 5,000ML of water
a year, which is typically half of the annual river water use by our
customers.

Stage 1 (2.4km) is now completed and operational while Stage
2 is currently underway and is on track for completion in
September 2018. Stage 3 works will be completed in 2019.

Bacchus Marsh Irrigation District
(BMID) Modernisation

In April 2016, the Victorian Government announced it would
contribute $4.12m towards the $12.4m project. The funding

is matched by the same contribution from irrigators, ensuring
two-thirds of the funding for the project. SRW is continuing to
engage with the Federal Government to seek matching funding.

Our plan includes a staged change of the supply system to
remove the ageing main channel, which loses around 1,000ML
of water a year.

A new Maddingley pump station on the river has been
operational since 2016 and now supplies a new storage tank,
commissioned in May 2018. The tank supplies an existing piped
network and, together with 8.5km of new pipeline upgrades,
the system will be reconfigured to allow the main channel to be
decommissioned and water savings returned to customers and
the environment. The pipelines works will be completed in 2019.
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Reservoir upgrade works
The most significant projects in our $4.2m capital program:

* A $1.4m project to install a bypass channel at Maffra Weir
was completed for more accurate passing of downstream
flows. The new channel was used in the 2017-18 irrigation
season.

e Design reviews for Blue Rock, Glenmaggie, Narracan and
Rosslynne reservoirs have been completed. The total cost
of the reviews is about $0.8m.

¢ A $2.8m project to replace the spillway gate-lifting
equipment and the operating bridge at Maffra Weir has
commenced and is currently in the design phase.

e A $0.5m project to improve access to the northern inlet
wells for maintenance by reducing leakage into the wells
and installing a new access platform is currently underway
and expected to be completed by August 2018.

e A $0.4m project to replace the spillway gate lifting ropes
at Glenmaggie Dam and Cowwarr Weir is underway and
should be completed by September 2018.

e A $0.42m project to remove red lead and repaint the
spillway gates was completed at Lerderderg Weir in June
2018.

e A $0.25m project to address frequent rock falls along an
access track to the downstream end of the Lerderderg
tunnel was completed in August 2017.

e A $0.15m project to replace the guard valve at Pykes Creek
due to corrosion was completed.

e A $0.5m project to upgrade the sewage lagoons at Pykes
Creek Reservoir was completed in April 2018. The lagoons
treat the effluent from the recreation areas at the reservoir
as well as a nearby sub-division and were in very poor
condition.

¢ A $0.36m project to rehabilitate the large cone valve and its
controls at Merrimu Reservoir commenced and is expected
to be completed by September 2018.

e A $0.3m project to install an access track at Merrimu
Reservoir to improve operator safety commenced. A
planning permit has been submitted and it is expected to
be completed in June 2019.

e $0.2m worth of works have been completed in the valve
house at Rosslynne Reservoir to improve operator safety.
This included a new staircase and adding electrical power
to all valves to avoid the need for manual operation.
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Major Projects

Also, some long-standing required actions were completed.
These include an investigation into the stability of the secondary
spillway at Melton Dam, which concluded that no further works
were required. Anchor testing at Glenmaggie Dam and Yallourn
Weir was also completed.

The design reviews and risk assessments carried out at Blue
Rock, Glenmaggie, Narracan and Rosslynne have indicated all
of the dams are well within the Limit of Tolerability specified in
the Australian National Committee on Large Dams (ANCOLD)
Guidelines on Risk Assessment for Dams and were in good
condition. Some additional studies have been recommended
to clarify the risk better but these are unlikely to change the risk
position significantly. The additional studies will be prioritised
and carried out over the next five years.

Flood modelling

A flood prediction model was produced for Glenmaggie Dam
and was used in the flood event in early December 2017.

The model performed very well and assisted the incident
management team in its decision-making around releases from
the dam. The model was built internally by SRW staff using
information provided by the Bureau of Meteorology.

Local Government Dam review

SRW staff conducted a review of Local Government Dams for
the DELWP. The study involved about 30 dams that required
inspections, condition reporting and preparing documents such
as Dam Safety Emergency Plans and Surveillance Plans to
enable councils to be able to manage their dams better.

Emergency exercise

An emergency exercise was conducted in May 2018 to test
SRW’s emergency plans. The exercise focused on two areas.
The first was responding to a dam safety issue at Yallourn Weir
and the second was a widespread communications failure
while participants were responding to issues at the weir. The
exercise went very well. More than 30 SRW staff participated in
the exercise and displayed great enthusiasm and knowledge of
their roles. The emergency plans worked very well with some
further areas for improvement identified. DELWP, which was the
assessor of the exercise, provided a very positive report on the
exercise.
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Pricing submission

The ESC approved SRW’s submission with an overall rating of
‘Advanced’, and acknowledged that we listen to customers and
understand their priorities.

SRW will continue its modernisation program and improve
services for customers, without significant price increases,
under the pricing approved for 2018-2023.

Over the next five years, groundwater and river licence holders
across southern Victoria will see reduced fees, while irrigators
across southern Victoria can look forward to stable prices.

Several tariffs have now been rationalised by combining or
eliminating charges, and fees reduced, including the elimination
of the licence renewal fee.

Prices in the Macalister Irrigation District will remain steady,
rising only by inflation. The approved pricing provides for
completion of the current phase of modernisation and a $10m
contribution towards the final phase. SRW will continue to seek
additional funding to complete modernisation of the irrigation
district/;, to improve water security and provide improved
service to irrigators.

For the WID, prices will also remain steady, rising only with
inflation, while providing for completion of the current phase of
modernisation. SRW continues to seek additional funding to
complete modernisation of the irrigation district.

Following a price reduction over recent years in the BMID, future
prices will increase only slightly above inflation. This provides

a customer contribution towards the current modernisation.
SRW will continue to seek additional funding to complete the
program.

More than 7,300 SRW licence holders who access water from
rivers and groundwater bores, will see annual bills reduce by
2.3%, before inflation.

Our new corporate strategy includes outcomes for sustainable
water resources and has objectives to focus on climate
resilience and environmental improvement. We are committed
to finding opportunities to help our customers prepare their
businesses for climate resilience.

We have developed our Environmental Strategy 2018-2020,
which sets out the steps for SRW to meet its bold pledge to be
carbon neutral by 2025, which is 25 years earlier than the State
Government 2050 target.
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Regional Catchment Management
Strategies

SRW has five CM) partners across its region: Corangamite, East
Gippsland, Glenelg Hopkins, Port Phillip and Westernport, and
West Gippsland.

SRW continues to contribute broadly to strategy and biodiversity
management across its region. During the reporting period we:

e continued to collaborate with stakeholders on catchment
management issues. This included municipal councils,
crown land managers, individual property owners and
parties looking at undertaking use and development activity
in catchments

e continued strengthening of the licensing of surface and
groundwater

e produced local management rules for groundwater and rivers
e continued our program to meter all significant water users

e contributed to river monitoring through partnerships, such as
the Gippsland Regional Water Monitoring Partnership

e  contributed to local catchment plans such as the Macalister
Land and Water Management Plan and the Port Phillip and
Westernport CMA Regional Catchment Strategy

e revegetated SRW land, contributing to habitat connectivity
and biodiversity

e supported Victoria’s Water Recycling Action Plan through the
WID Recycled Water Scheme

e managed irrigation-induced salinity in the MID through the
Salinity Management Plan and the maintenance and operation
of groundwater control pumps

e participated in the consultation stage of crown land fire
prevention for the regional Strategic Bushfire Management
Plan

e attended the 2018 Catchments summit.

Victorian Biodiversity Strategy

SRW recognises the ecological linkages between different parts
of the environment (e.g. streams, streamside vegetation, and
the biodiversity they support) and is aware that our actions and
strategies influence biodiversity conservation.

SRW works with government departments, local government
and CMAs to support biodiversity conservation and protection
activities when undertaking works and projects.

SRW worked with Grow West and PPWCMA to help implement
the Federal Government’s 20 Million Tree revegetation project at
Merrimu Reservoir. Revegetation works provided the following
benefits to the site:

e reduced land degradation
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Environmental and Social
Sustainability

e reduction in pest plant and animals

e improved habitat availability and connectivity.

SRW is continuing to pursue opportunities to establish more
vegetation on its land.

Victorian Waterway Management
Strategy

The Victorian River Health Strategy provides a framework to
manage and restore our rivers over the long term.

Key elements of the strategy relevant to SRW are:

e facilitating the movement of water to its highest value use
e providing and managing water for the environment

e restoring flow-stressed river systems.

SRW supports the Victorian Waterway Management Strategy
through:

e complying with environmental obligations in bulk entitements
e operating the MID Nutrient Monitoring Program

e facilitating the delivery of environmental water

e responding to environmental incidents

e participating in the joint Gippsland Water and WGCMA

forums, advising on environmental water from Blue Rock Lake
and Lake Glenmaggie

e participating in the MID Sustainability Group, including a
recent review of the regional Land and Water Management
Plan.

SRW also carries out activities complementary to waterway
health at its storages, such as erosion control works, the
establishment of Native Vegetation Offset sites, and amenity
upgrades.

Regional Waterway Strategies

Regional Waterway Strategies are required under the Water
Act 1989 and identify high-value waterways and priority
management activities over an eight-year period.

SRW’s management area falls across five catchment
management regions, which have the following Regional
Waterway Strategies:

e East Gippsland Waterway Strategy 2014-2022

e West Gippsland Waterway Strategy 2014-2022

e Port Phillip & Westernport Waterway Strategy 2014-2022
e Corangamite Waterway Strategy 2014-2022

e  Glenelg Hopkins Waterway Strategy 2014-2022.

SRW continues to be involved in the review and implementation
of various sub-strategies.
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State Environmental Protection Policy
(Waters of Victoria) SEPP

The SEPP (Waters of Victoria) sets the framework for monitoring
Victoria’s waterways and assessing their relative health. It also
provides regulation and compliance in matters affecting water
quality throughout the state. The reviewed SEPP is currently in
draft form and is scheduled for release later in 2018. SRW has
been an active participant in the review process.

Within the SEPP, the MID was identified as a source of nutrient
pollution to the Gippsland Lakes. A specific requirement for
SRW to monitor and reduce total phosphorous (TP) loads
exiting the MID into the Gippsland Lakes was established in
the previous SEPP. The reviewed SEPP will include a new load
reduction target that will come into effect when the policy is
released.

SRW has operated a nutrient monitoring program since 2000.
During that time, the program has been adjusted from a drain-
based monitoring system to a river-based system. This has
allowed more accurate estimates of the TP loads from the MID,
and also takes into account upstream and non-irrigated sources
of nutrients. Data from the monitoring program has helped to
inform the new load reduction targets for the updated SEPP,
and the monitoring program will continue to be implemented to
track progress against the load reduction targets.

The reduction in outfalls from the modernised sections of the
MID have also assisted in reducing the carriage of nutrients to
the waterways and lakes system.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Net
Energy Consumption

In 2016, the State Government announced a long-term target
of zero net greenhouse gas emissions by 2050. As a result,
the Victorian Water Sector was required to submit emissions
reduction pledges and pathways to achieving the reductions.
The water sector is also expected to source 25% of its power
needs from renewables by 2020 and 40% by 2025.

SRW made an ambitious pledge to be the only water
corporation in Victoria to be carbon neutral by 2025. This pledge
reflects SRW’s commitment to a more sustainable future.

Compared with other water corporations, SRW is a relatively low
generator of GhG emissions, but there are still opportunities to
reduce our impact on climate change. Highlights include:

e We have more than 900 solar cells in the MID powering
automated systems.

e The electricity we purchase for our offices, depots and
water supply sites is ‘green energy’ derived from renewable
sources.
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e We have commercial contracts with energy suppliers to
operate hydro-electric schemes at Blue Rock Lake and
Lake Glenmaggie and we are looking at other opportunities
in our network to generate renewable energy.

e We mainly operate gravity-fed distribution systems, which
minimise our use of pumps and need for electricity.

e We are investigating rooftop solar options for our offices.

e We are investigating the potential to establish carbon
offset sites on SRW land or in partnership with other water
corporations and CMAs.

Greenhouse gas emissions and energy
consumption data reporting

In 2017-18 SRW has reported its environmental data using the
guidelines developed by the National Greenhouse and Energy
Reporting Scheme (NGERs) standards, making it consistent
with the Victorian water industry. The transition to the NGERs
reporting framework has caused some variation in SRW’s
2017-18 results compared with previous years. SRW'’s results
for 2017-18 indicate it is on track to achieve its goal of net zero
emissions across its business by 2024-25.

Lake Glenmaggie Native Vegetation
Offset Site

In 2016, SRW entered into a landowner agreement with DELWP
for 23.09ha of land adjacent to Lake Glenmaggie to become a
Native Vegetation Offset Credit Site.

As part of the landowner agreement, SRW committed to a 10
year management plan designed to improve the extent and
quality of Native Vegetation on the site and to protect the site in
perpetuity. Management actions on the site include the removal
and minimisation of weed species and the restriction of public
access to the site to eliminate rubbish dumping, firewood
collection, disturbance of vegetation by 4WD vehicles and
spread of weeds and pathogens.

An audit of the site conducted in May 2018 showed that all
woody weeds had been completely removed from the site and
the total cover of all herbaceous weeds had been reduced

to <1%. More work needs to be done in the coming year to
exclude threats such as firewood collection and damage from
dirt bike access.
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Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Performance Indicator

Tonnes of CO,-e

Baseline

2017-19
Target

2017-18
Result

Variance (%)

Commentary

Water Supply!

Vehicle Fleet?

Others

Offsets

190.71

1252.80

210.53

1158.00

275.00

1294.00

3.00

0.00

407.07

749.20

2.60

0.00

48%

-42%

-13%

-100%

Variance is primarily due to the groundwater
pumps and the new Maddingley pump
station. Some variance is due to the
transition to reporting under NGER's
Guidelines.

Variance is primarily due to the transition to
reporting under NGER's Guidelines.
Variance is primarily due to the transition
to reporting under NGER's guidelines. The
result reflects emissions from natural gas
usage. Electricity purchased as 'green
power" is sourced from renewable energy
sources and is carbon neutral.

SRW is investigating options for the self-
generation of carbon offsets to support
emissions reduction actions

TOTAL

1,654

1,572

1,159

-26%

1- Water supply includes Scope 2 emissions generated from irrigation pumping stations, groundwater pumps and irrigation channel infrastructure

2. Vehicle fleet includes Scope 1 emissions generated from pool cars, machinery and fleet used for work purposes

3. Other includes Scope 2 emissions from all other sites not included in water supply (offices, depots, recreation facilities etc.)

Energy Consumption

Performance Tonnes of CO,-e Renewable | Renewable | Commentary
Indicator Renewable Energy energy
(@) Total (b) © (,d) .(e) ) @ ") energy use | Generated | use target
energy | solar hydro.- wind | biogas | green | other | Total %) (h)/ for Export (%) by
use panels | electric | power power (@)*100 (MWh) 2025
(MWh)
Water 466.60 | 80.00 | 0.00 0.00 | 0.00 9.68 | 0.00 | 89.68 19.22% 0.00 100% Maddingley
supply pump station
(pumps & and the
weirs) groundwater
pumps do
not currently
purchase green
power
Other 920.18 | 80.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 | 463.26 | 0.00 | 543.26 59.04% 0.00
(office,
workshops,
depots,
etc.)
TOTAL 1,654 | 1,572 1,159 -26%
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Financial Management Compliance
Attestation Statement

[, Diane James, on behalf of the board, certify that the
Gippsland and Southern Rural Water Corporation has complied
with the applicable Standing Directions of the Minister for
Finance under the Financial Management Act 1994 and
Instructions.

Ot 6@»«%
Diane James AM

Chairman
Gippsland and Southern Rural Water Corporation

5 September 2018

Building Act 1993

SRW complies with the building maintenance provisions of the
Building Act 1993. The buildings it owns or leases comply with
these requirements.

Water Act 1989

There are no additional disclosures required to be made in the
annual report under the Water Act 1989.

Local Jobs First - Victorian Industry
Participation Policy Act 2003

The Victorian Government’s responsibilities in relation to Local
Jobs First are outlined in the Victorian Industry Participation
Policy Act 2003 (VIPP). In 2017-18 SRW had one strategic
project that was subject to VIPP reporting, the Macalister
Irrigation District MID2030 Phase 1B — Southern Tinamba
Modernisation. The ICN strategic framework recommended a
minimum local content for this strategic project at 70% for the
supply of pipeline and 97% for installation of the pipeline.

This recommendation was accepted by SRW and approved

by the Minister for Water. Tenderers for the works to date have
complied with the framework requirements and submitted
local industry development plans, which has achieved the local
content commitment of 95% and 99% respectively.

Compliance with the Carers Recognition
Act 2012

The Carers Recognition Act 2012 formally recognises

and values the role of carers and the importance of care
relationships in the Victorian community. SRW supports staff
with caring responsibilities through flexible work arrangements
and access to carers and other leave.
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Compliance

Compliance with the Protected
Disclosure Act 2012

The Protected Disclosure Act 2012 (PD Act) enables people to
make disclosures about improper conduct by public officers
and public bodies. The Act aims to ensure openness and
accountability by encouraging people to make disclosures and
protecting them when they do.

What is a protected disclosure?

A protected disclosure is a complaint of corrupt or improper
conduct by a public officer or a public body.

SRW is a public body for the purposes of the Act.
What is improper or corrupt conduct?
Improper or corrupt conduct involves substantial:
e mismanagement of public resources

e risk to public health or safety or the environment
e corruption.

The conduct must be criminal in nature or a matter for which an
officer could be dismissed.

How do | make a Protected Disclosure?

You can make a protected disclosure about SRW or its board
members, officers or employees by contacting IBAC on the
contact details provided below.

Please note that SRW is not able to receive protected
disclosures.

How can | access SRW'’s procedures for the
protection of persons from detrimental action?

SRW has established procedures for the protection of persons
from detrimental action in reprisal for making a protected
disclosure about SRW or its employees. You can access SRW's
procedures on its website at: www.srw.com.au/about-us/
our-procedures/.

Contacts

Independent Broad-Based Anti-Corruption Commission (IBAC)
Victoria

Address: Level 1, North Tower, 459 Collins Street, Melbourne
Victoria 3000.

Mail: IBAC, GPO Box 24234, Melbourne Victoria 3001
Internet: www.ibac.vic.gov.au
Phone: 1300 735 135

Email: See the website above for the secure email disclosure
process, which also provides for anonymous disclosures.
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Information and Communication
Technology expenditure

For the 2017-18 reporting period, SRW had a total ICT
expenditure of $3.2m, with the details shown below.

BAU ICT Non-BAU ICT Operational Capital
expenditure  expenditure expenditure expenditure
Total Total = A+ B A B

| 3.238m 1.388 0.000 1.388

Government advertisement expenditure

SRW’s expenditure in the 2017-18 reporting period on
government campaign expenditure did not exceed $100,000.

Competitive Neutrality Policy

Competitive neutrality requires government businesses to
ensure where services compete, or potentially compete with
the private sector, any advantage arising solely from their
government ownership be removed if it is not in the public
interest. Government businesses are required to cost and price
these services as if they were privately owned. Competitive
neutrality policy supports fair competition between public and
private businesses and provides government businesses with
a tool to enhance decisions on resource allocation. This policy
does not override other policy objectives of government and
focuses on efficiency in the provision of service.

SRW continues to comply with the requirements of the
Competitive Neutrality Policy.

Corporate water consumption

SRW’s corporate water consumption for 2017-18 was 1,728
kilolitres. Total consumption for the year per full-time equivalent
employee was 9.94 kilolitres. SRW uses water for amenities,
lawns, gardens, vehicle washing and miscellaneous uses as well
as for capital projects and construction.
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Compliance

Additional information available on
request

In compliance with the requirements of the Standing Directions
of the Minister for Finance, details in respect of the items listed
below have been retained by SRW and are available (in full) on
request, subject to the provisions of the Freedom of Information
Act 1982:

e details of publications produced by SRW about itself, and
how these can be obtained

e details of any major external reviews carried out on SRW

e details of major research and development activities
undertaken by SRW

e  details of major promotional, public relations and marketing
activities undertaken by SRW to develop community
awareness of the entity and its services

e details of changes in prices, fees, charges, rates and levies
charged

e astatement of completion of declarations of pecuniary
interests by relevant officers.

Additional information included in annual report

Details in respect of the following items have been included in
SRW’s annual report, on the pages indicated below:

e assessments and measures undertaken to improve the
occupational health and safety of employees (on page 28)

e alist of SRW’s major committees, the purposes of each
committee, and the extent to which the purposes have
been achieved (on page 12-13).

Information that is not applicable to SRW

The following information is not relevant to SRW for the reasons
set out below:

a declaration of shares held by senior officers (no shares
have been issued in SRW's name)

e  details of overseas visits undertaken (no board members or
senior executives took overseas work-related trips)

e astatement on industrial relations within SRW (there was
no industrial relations for the 2017-18 financial year).

To request information contact:

SRW

Freedom Information Officer
PO Box 153,

Maffra, Victoria, 3860
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Freedom of information

The Freedom of Information Act 1982 (the Act) allows the public
a right of access to documents held by SRW. The purpose of
the Act is to extend as far as possible the right of the community
to access information held by government departments, local
councils, Ministers and other bodies subject to the Act.

An applicant has a right to apply for access to documents held
by SRW. This comprises documents both created by SRW

or supplied to SRW by an external organisation or individual,
and may also include maps, films, microfiche, photographs,
computer printouts, computer discs, tape recordings and
videotapes. Information about the type of material produced by
SRW is available on SRW'’s website under its Part Il Information
Statement.

The Act allows SRW to refuse access, either fully or partially,
to certain documents or information. Examples of documents
that may not be accessed include: cabinet documents; some
internal working documents; law enforcement documents;
documents covered by legal professional privilege, such as
legal advice; personal information about other people; and
information provided to SRW in-confidence.

From 1 September 2017, the Act has been amended to reduce
the Freedom of Information (Fol) processing time for requests
received from 45 to 30 days. In some cases, this time may be
extended.

If an applicant is not satisfied by a decision made by SRW,
under section 49A of the Act, they have the right to seek a
review by the Office of the Victorian Information Commissioner
(QVIC) within 28 days of receiving a decision letter.

Making a request

Fol requests can be lodged online at www.foi.vic.gov.au. An
application fee of $28.90 applies. Access charges may also
be payable if the document pool is large, and the search for
material, time consuming.

Access to documents can also be obtained through a written
request to SRW's Freedom of Information team, as detailed in
s17 of the Freedom of Information Act 1982.

When making an Fol request, applicants should ensure
requests are in writing, and clearly identify what types of
material/documents are being sought.

Requests for documents in the possession of SRW should be
addressed to:

The Freedom of Information Officer, Hayley Johnson,
SRW

PO Box 153

Maffra Vic 3860
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Fol statistics/timeliness

During 2017-18, SRW received six applications. Of these
requests:

e il were from Members of Parliament
e nil from the media
e the remainder were from the general public.

SRW made two Fol decisions during the 12 months ended 30
June 2018.

e 1 decision was made within the statutory 30 day time
period

e 1 decision was an extended statutory 30-45 day time
period

e o decisions within 46-90 days

e no decisions in greater than 90 days
During 2017-18, O request was subject to VCAT.
Further information

Further information regarding the operation and scope of Fol
can be obtained from the Act, regulations made under the Act
and foi.vic.gov.au
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Bulk Entitlements

A Bulk Entitlement Order is a set of operating rules for a
reservoir.

At SRW we deal with the following Bulk Entitlement Orders:

Latrobe
Maribyrnong
Tarago

Yallourn Energy
Werribee

Thomson/Macalister

Because more than one organisation or group can have shares
(or entitlement) in the water being held in a reservoir, each
shareholder must follow rules about:

the volumes that can be taken from the reservoir, system or
waterway

costs of managing the system, and how they are shared.

At a number of reservoirs, SRW acts as the storage manager on
behalf of all shareholders.

As a storage manager, we:

allocate water (both increases and decreases) according to
the inflow and capacity shares held by shareholders

ensure that we meet the rules for passing flows
downstream for environmental purposes

release water to meet a shareholder’s request.

Passing flows are a vital part of our Bulk Entitlement Orders and
are met before allocation requests are supplied.

@ Southern Rural Water Annual Report 2017-18
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Bulk Entitlement (Thomson/Macalister - Southern Rural Water) Conversion Order 2001
The following information is provided in accordance with Section 20.3 of the Thomson/Macalister Bulk Entitlement Order.

Volume (ML)
At 1 July 2017 Volume of water held at Lake Glenmaggie ' 46,215
Share of Thomson Reservoir storage capacity (under Clause 9) ' 33,703
Annual 2017-18
a(i) Releases from the Thomson Reservoir to supply primary entitiements 11,264
aiii) Inflows attributed (under clause 10.1 and 10.2) 10,303
Transferred to Bacchus Marsh Irrigation District for emergency supplies 0
At 30 June 2018
(h) Volume of water held at Lake Glenmaggie ! 42,936
a (i) Share of Thomson Reservoir storage capacity (under Clause 9) ' 32,748
Annual 2017-18 Taken from waterway:
e (i) o Northern Channel 1 53,650
e (ii) e Southern Channel 114,341
a (iii) o Eastern Channel 1 34,396
e (iv) o Cowwarr Channel 1 8,960
e (V) e Southern Channel to Thomson Channel 4,372
(i) Water taken by the primary entitlement holders 188,904
Annual 2017-18 Water pumped to supply primary entitlement holders
g (i) . Lake Glenmaggie 0
g (ii) e  Thomson Reservoir 0
g (iii) o Macalister River 6,009
g (iv) e  Thomson River 14,433
g (v) ° Rainbow Creek 5,666
Environmental allocation (2017-18 season) 13,706
Environmental carryover (2016-17 season) 9,950
Total available to environment (2017-18 season) 23,656
Environmental release (including carryover) 15,884
Write off unused carryover (due to storage spilling) 0
Environmental carryover available (2018-19 season) 7,773
Bulk Entitlement Order
Annual 2017-18
(i) Credits granted (under clause 17) Nil
(k) Temporary or permanent transfers of a bulk entitlement or any other entitlement to SRW Nil
(1) Alteration made to Schedules 1 or 2 under sub-clause 8.1 Nil
(n) Amendments (minor) 1
(0) New bulk entitlements granted Nil
(D) Programs approved to date under sub-clause 18.2 Nil
(@) Programs approved to date under sub-clause 19.3 Nil
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Compliance

SRW is not aware of any failure to comply with the provision

of the bulk entitlement. To minimise the potential for breaching
compliance with environmental flows, we have developed a Risk
Management Strategy and action plans.

Diversion limit

Diversion limit modelling for the previous five years will be
undertaken in 2018 and reported in the 2018-19 Annual report
as per the Schedule 3a of the bulk entitlement.

Minor Amendment

SRW applied to the responsible Minister to make a minor
variation in the Bulk Entitlement to reflect the agreed approach
to varying the passing flows between Southern Rural Water and
the Victorian Environmental Water Holder and make some minor
wording changes to improve clarity. In addition, the volume of
water shares issued in respect of the Thomson/Macalister water
system in Schedule 1 has been updated to include the latest
volume of water shares resulting from water savings.

Bulk Entitlements

Actions

SRW has not experienced any difficulty in complying with
the bulk entitlement; therefore no remedial action has been
necessary.

Note 1. Daily volumes have been recorded at Lake Glenmaggie,
Cowwarr Weir, Wandocka (environmental flow), Maffra Weir
(environmental flow), Main Northern Channel, Main Eastern
Channel, Main Southern Channel and Cowwarr Channel and
can be provided upon request.

Bulk Entitlement (Latrobe Reserve) Order 2013

The following information is provided in accordance with Section 15.1 of the Bulk Entitlement (Latrobe Reserve) Order 2013:
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Annual Volume
2017-18 (ML)
(b) Volume of water taken by Reserve Holder from Blue Rock Reservoir under this entitlement Nil
(© The amount of water in the Reserve Holder’s share of Blue Rock Reservoir under this entitlement
1 July 2017 37,203
30 June 2018 37,415
(d) The amount of annual losses debited to the Reserve Holder’s share of Blue Rock 1,673
G The annual amount of any internal spill of water from or to the Reserve Holder’s share of storage in Blue 162 to
Rock reserve
Nil from
reserve
(f) The implementation of a metering program: The metering program used for the Reserve Holder is that used by
SRW for its bulk entitlement metering requirements
(@)} Any assignment of all or part of a water allocation available under this entitlement Nil
(h) Any transfer of all or part of this bulk entitiement to any person Nil
(i) Any amendment to this bulk entitlement. Nil
(i) Any failure by the Reserve Holder to comply with any provision of this bulk entitlement Nil
(k) Any existing or anticipated difficulties experienced by the Reserve Holder in complying with this bulk entitlement Nil

www.srw.com.au



Bulk Entitlement (Latrobe - Southern Rural Water) Conversion Order 1996

The following information is provided in accordance with Section 16.1 of the Bulk Entitlement Order 1996.

Annual 2017-18 Volume
(ML)
(e) The amount of water in Blue Rock Reservoir
178,057
. 1 July 2017 ’
w 168,198
° 30 June 2018
(e) The amount of water in Lake Narracan
1,124
1 July 2017 ’
© 1duy20 6,138
e 30 June 2018
) The amount of water in the Entitlement Holder's share of Blue Rock Reservoir - 2.10%, as at 30 June 2018 3816
(9) The annual amount of water taken by the Entitlement Holder
o Upstream of Yallourn Weir 121
o Downstream of Yallourn Weir 8,478
(h) The amount of annual losses debited to the Entitlement Holder's share of Blue Rock Reservoir (due to 167
evaporation)
(i) The annual amount of any internal spill of water to the Entitlement Holder's share of storage in Blue Rock 70.6
Reservoir.
() Any periods of rationing and the degree of rationing of Licence holders listed under Schedule 1 Nil

() Implementation of programs approved under sub-clauses 14.2 and 15.1.

e SRW has previously submitted an Environmental Management Plan to the Department of Environment,
Land, Water and Planning.

o SRW has submitted a metering plan for the Werribee system in line with the bulk entitlement guidelines.

(m) Temporary or permanent transfers of a bulk entitlement of all or part of the Bulk Entitlement Nil
(mA) Temporary or permanent transfer of licences to this bulk entitlement Nil
(0) Amendments to this bulk entitlement Nil
(o) The annual amount supplied to any group of Licence holders specified by the Minister:
o Drought Reserve 0
o Gippsland Water 1,401
° Loy Yang A 3,927
° Loy Yang B 3,042
e SECV 0
. SRW 403ML 403
e Tru Energy 3533ML 3,633
o Victorian Environmental Water Holding 11224ML 11,224
(@) Failures in complying with this bulk entitlement Nil
n Existing or anticipated difficulties by the Entitlement Holder in complying with the Bulk Entitlement Nil

The following information is provided in accordance with Clause 11.4 of the Bulk Entitlement Order 1996.

The Entitlement Holder has a network of meters installed within its low-quality water system that enables it to
determine the low-quality water usage by both the Loy Yang A and Loy Yang B power stations. This equipment is
checked monthly for validity and annually for signal integrity
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Bulk Entitlements

Bulk Entitlement (Werribee System Irrigation) Conversion Order 1997

The following information is provided in accordance with Section 18.1 of the Werribee Bulk Entitlement Order.

Volume (ML)
Annual 2017-18 | Volume of water taken by primary entitlement holders including outfalls:
e  Bacchus Marsh 2,016
o River diverters 173.3
o Myrniong 53.9
e  Werribee 5,247.4
(9) Releases necessary to supply transfers of primary entitlements 0
(h) Water taken from:
° Bacchus Marsh Diversion Weir 371
e  Werribee Diversion Weir 9,613.9
o Maddingley pumps 2,287
(h) Water taken by SRW from the system waterway at each of the diversion weirs:
° Lerderderg Weir to Goodmans Creek 1,250.3 (SRW's
share 125.0)
e  Goodmans Creek to Merrimu Reservoir 1,264.3 (SRW's
share 126.4)
o Werribee Upper Diversion Weir to Pykes Creek 2,730.8
(i) Volume of water taken by primary entitlement holders:
o High and low reliability water shares 7,436.7
e Myrniong 53.9
Bulk Entitlement Order
Annual 2017-18 Nil
(k) Credits granted (under clause 15) Nil
() Temporary or permanent transfer of the bulk entitiement Nil
(m) Bulk entitlement or licence transferred to the Authority Nil
(n) SRW applied the following restrictions to primary entitement holders in the Werribee and Bacchus Marsh
irrigation districts and licensed diverters on the Werribee River:
Month HRW LRWS Date effective
July 2017 5% 0% 07/07/2017
July 2017 10% 0% 18/07/2017
August 2017 15% 0% 15/08/2017
August 2017 25% 0% 12/09/2017
September 2017 30% 0% 12/09/2017
September 2017 35% 0% 27/09/2017
October 2017 40% 0% 24/10/2017
December 2017 45% 0% 19/12/2017
(s) New bulk entitlements granted Nil
(r) Changes to this bulk entitlement Nil
Compliance

e  SRW has previously submitted an Environmental Management Plan to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and
Planning.

e  SRW has submitted a metering plan for the Werribee system in line with the bulk entitlement guidelines.

e SRW complied with all provisions of this bulk entitlement.

@ Southern Rural Water Annual Report 2017-18 WWW.Srw.com.au



e SRW did not experience any difficulties in complying with this bulk entitlement.

e SRW has recorded daily volumes and can provide this on request. These include the daily flow passing each of the storages
including Pykes Creek Reservoir, Melton Reservoir and Lake Merrimu. If required, SRW will also report on the daily passing
flow on each of the following diversion structures: Upper Werribee Diversion Weir, Bacchus Marsh Diversion Weir, Lerderderg

Diversion Weir, Goodmans Creek Diversion Weir and Werribee Diversion Weir.

Bulk Entitlement (Tarago River - Southern Rural Water) Conversion Order 2009

The following information is provided in accordance with Section 15.3 of the Tarago Bulk Entitlement Order 2009.

Volume (ML)
‘ Annual 2017-18 ‘ Releases were made from the Tarago Reservoir to supply primary entitlements 1,507 ‘
Bulk Entitlement Order
‘ Annual 2017-18 ‘ Amendments Nil ‘

Compliance
e SRW has complied with the bulk entitlement.

e SRW is not aware of any failure to comply with the provisions of the bulk entitlement.

e SRW’s Bulk Entitlement Metering Program was approved by the responsible Minister in April 2012. No amendments were made in 201-18.

Bulk Entitlement (Latrobe - Loy Yang B) Conversion Order 1996

The following information is provided in accordance with Section 12.1 of the Bulk Entitlement Order 1996.

Volume (ML)

Annual 2017-18 ‘ Water taken by SRW at its pumping station 16,694
Bulk Entitlement Order

Annual 2017-18 | Temporary or permanent transfers of all or part of the bulk entitlement Nil

Temporary or permanent transfers of licences to this bulk entitlement Nil

Amendments Nil

Compliance

e In accordance with Clause 11.4, the Entitlement Holder has a network of meters installed within its low quality water system that
enables it to determine the low quality water usage by both the Loy Yang A and Loy Yang B power stations. This equipment is

checked monthly for validity and annually for signal integrity.

e There have been no failures in complying with this Bulk Entitlement.

e There are no existing or anticipated difficulties by the Entitlement Holder in complying with the Bulk Entitlement.

e  SRW has recorded daily volumes and can provide these on request:

a) daily amount of water taken by the Entitlement Holder from the waterway at the pumping station

b) daily amount of water returned to the system waterway or tributary streams from the works of the Entitlement Holder.
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Bulk Entitlement (Maribyrnong - Southern Rural Water) Conversion Order 2000

The following information is provided in accordance with Section 19.1 of the Maribyrnong Bulk Entitlement Order.

Volume (ML)
Annual 2017-18
a (i) Water released to supply licence entitlements 10
a (i) SRW’s share of Rosslynne Reservoir at 30 June 2018 793
a (iii) Inflows, taking into account evaporation and measurement discrepancies -79.1
a(iv) Allowances for transfer and operating losses 0
a(v) Water deducted for passing flow requirements 63.7
(b) SRW achieved full compliance with the passing flows Yes
(© Water taken from the waterway by primary entitlement holders 8.3
Bulk Entitlement Order
Annual 2017-18
(d) Temporary or permanent transfers from this bulk entitiement Nil
(e) Temporary or permanent transfer to SRW Nil
() Alterations to Schedule 1 or 2 Nil
(@) Temporary transfers within the system Nil
(h) Amendments to this bulk entitlement Nil
(i) New bulk entitlements granted Nil
Compliance

e  SRW has previously submitted an Environmental Management Plan to Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning.

e  SRW has submitted a metering plan for the Werribee system in line with the Bulk Entitlement guidelines.

e SRW has complied with all provisions of this bulk entitiement.

e SRW again experienced difficulties in complying with the bulk entitlement passing flow requirement at the Sunbury gauging
station due to the distance between the release point and the gauging site and the varying system losses during summer.
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Economic regulation

Economic regulation of SRW is guided by a range of legislation,
including the Essential Services Commission Act 2001, the
Water Industry Act 1994 as amended by the Water Legislation
(Essential Services Commission and other Amendments Act
2003) and other water industry legislation (including the Water
Act 1989, and the Environment Protection Act 1970). More
information on the regulatory framework is set out within

the Water Industry Regulatory Order (WIRO) made by the
Governor-in-Council.

Pricing principles

SRW operates on a full cost recovery basis, ensuring pricing
is sufficient to cover annual costs and to provide for future
investment needs. Pricing is founded upon the following
principles:

e SRW prices shall accord with Government and COAG
policies, with particular reference to National Competition
Policy.

e  Pricing shall meet the full cost of operation.

e  SRW shall set separate prices for each specific service
supplied.

e SRW prices shall be equitable and avoid cross subsidy.

e  SRW will engage with customer committees on pricing and
take into account their recommendations in making pricing
decisions.

e  SRW prices shall be set so as to contribute to the
investment needs of the business concerned.

Our prices are submitted to the ESC for determination on an
annual basis. On completion of the ESC’s determination, SRW
publishes prices in the '"Weekly Times, and communicates
directly to customers through newsletters and fact sheets.

Financial management

Long term financial viability is the key pillar of our financial
management. Finances are managed so that the organisation
as a whole is economically sustainable and that each business
unit fully recovers its own costs. The operations of SRW are
separated into four discrete business units:

e  Eastern Irrigation

e Western Irrigation

e Headworks

e  Groundwater and Rivers

Each business unit maintains its own financial records with an
expectation that revenues are sufficient to cover direct costs
and an equitable share of corporate and other shared costs.
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Financial Sustainability

This information is provided in an open and transparent manner
to our customer committees for consultation, along with being
available to the broader customer base.

Performance 2017-18

Our operating loss before tax was $9.97m compared to a
budgeted loss of $9.27m.

SRW prices are approved by the ESC to recover the full cost
of operation. While the full cost of operation includes funding
for the future investment needs of the business, our pricing
is designed to reimburse depreciation and capital charges
associated with regulatory assets only.

Regulatory assets exclude acquisitions and construction

prior to 1 July 2004, or assets funded directly by customer or
government contribution. As reported by the Comprehensive
Operating Statement, depreciation expense is largely associated
with non-regulatory assets. For the 2017-18 financial year, the
Corporation recorded $10.73m of non-recoverable depreciation.

The following table describes our financial position once these
non-regulatory charges are excluded, which reports a $2.03m
surplus for the year 2017-18 financial year compared to a
Corporate Plan budget of $2.87m.

The deterioration in our result compared to Corporate Plan is
reflected by:

e less expenditure on depreciation

e more expenditure on grant funded projects

e expenditure on major channel repairs

e more expenditure on legal expenses

e more expenditure on information technology expenses.

From the perspective of our main operating business units, our
financial results were an improvement on our Corporate Plan,
and prior year results, as discussed above. We expect this
outcome given stable, predominantly entitlement based revenue
streams, and an expenditure base that was not subject to any
significant unplanned cost pressures.
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Significant changes in financial position

Expenditure on capital projects reached $30.82m for the
financial year (2016-17 $22.35m).

The cash operating surplus of the Corporation is insufficient

to fund our capital expenditure program, and it is necessary
for SRW to utilise debt facilities to fund our capital expenditure
program. The Corporation increased debt facilities for the 2017-
18 financial year more than corporate plan assumptions.

Total Interest Bearing Liabilities increased by $6.57m in the
2017-18 year, and our cash balances decreased by $0.9m.
Together our net debt position moved from $14.4m to $21.94m.

Our net debt position is expected to increase to $51.5m over the
next four years (until the end of the 2021-22 financial year) as the
capital works program intensifies.

Major changes or factors affecting
performance

There were no major factors affecting performance other than
those discussed in this report.

Subsequent events which will affect
operations in future years

There were no subsequent events that will affect operations in
future years, other than those already discussed in this report.

Disclosure of Major Contracts

No major contracts were entered into for the 2017-18 year.
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Capital Plan Expenditure 2017-18

Business 2017-18
Expenditure
$'000

Eastern Irrigation

MID2030 Ph1A Reserve projects 843

MID Modernisation PH1B program 14,257

General projects 622

Western Irrigation

WID Modernisation 6,690

BMID Modernisation 3,558

General projects 122

Headworks

Blue Rock design review 190

Glenmaggie design review 230

Maffra Weir spillway/operating bridge replacement 173

Lerderderg Gate Painting & Roller & sealer 407

refurbishment

Pykes Creek sewage lagoons investigation works 520

General projects 2,279

Groundwater & Rivers

Metering 355

Other

General projects 78
30,819
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Consultancies

Each year we engage consultants to provide expert analysis
and advice, to facilitate decision-making, and provide skills not
currently available within our organisation.

Greater than $10,000

During 2017-18 we contracted 11 consulting firms for operating
contracts greater than $10,000 to provide advice, skills and
services. The total cost of these consultancies in 2017-18 was
$1,058,167. Please refer to the table below for greater detail.

For comparison, during 2016-17 we engaged 14 consulting

firms at a total cost of $729,837.

Less than $10,000

During 2017-18 we contracted three consulting firms for

operating contracts less than $10,000 to provide advice, skills
and services. The total cost of these consultancies in 2017-18
was $22,677.

For comparison, during 2016-17 we engaged two consulting
firms at a total cost of $11,615.

Consultant

Aither Pty Ltd

Beveridge Williams

Ecology & Heritage Partners Pty Ltd

Ecology & Heritage Partners Pty Ltd

Five consulting (VIC) Pty Ltd

Five consulting (VIC) Pty Ltd

GHD Pty Ltd
GHD Pty Ltd

GHD Pty Ltd

GHD Pty Ltd

Hydro Tasmania (Entura)

Hydro Tasmania (Entura)

Kellogg Brown & Root Pty Ltd (KBR)

Marsden Jacob Associates

Marsden Jacob Associates

Marsden Jacob Associates

RM Consulting Group (RMCG)

SMEC Australia Pty Ltd

University of New South Wales

Purpose of consultancy

MID Outlet tarrif reform - review
Blue Rock Survey Subdivision

Lindenow Water Security
Project environmental review*

MID Phase 1B stage 4
environmental review*

Lindenow Water Security Project
business case preparation®

MID Phase 2 preparation of
business case*

Investigate site 2 Lindenow*

Southern Victoria Irrigation
Design Concept*

Southern Victoria Irrigation
environmental assessment*

BMID Modernisation design

Lindenow Water Security
engineering assessment*

Blue Rock Dam design risk
assessment

MID Phase 2 feasibility analysis*

Lindenow Water Security project
review*

Southern Victoria irrigation
development review*
Consultancy - advice and
economic

Southern Victoria irrigation
demand assessment”
Design review of Lake
Narracan Dam

Dam Design review reports
audit

Start date

Feb-17
Jul-17
Nov-17

May-18
Oct-17
Apr-18

Feb-18
Aug-17

Oct-17

Nov-16
Oct-17

Feb-18

Dec-17
Nov-16

Nov-16

Nov-16

Aug-17

May-17

Jun-18

End date

Aug-17
Oct-18
Feb-18

Dec-18

Mar-18

Jan-19

Mar-18
Jan-18

Jan-18

Mar-18
Feb-18

Aug-18

Apr-18
Mar-18

Mar-18

Mar-18

Feb-18

Jun-18

Sep-18

Total
approved
project fee
25,000
77,897
49,320

15,950

48,200

73,920

13,600
184,412

36,000

475,405
40,000

19,400

136,363
104,229

35,921

128,580

108,155

116,734

53,159

Expenditure
2017-18

25,095
69,534
49,320

11,963

47,225

29,600

13,600
173,864

36,480

28,858
40,000

15,649

34,726
104,229

35,921

128,580

108,155

79,663

25,707

Future
expenditure

8,363

3,988

41,360

30,000

3,751

5,795

27,452

*These projects were externally funded
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Five year financial summary

Revenue 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fees and charges 27,285 26,978 25,931 25,474 25,123
Storage operator charges 3,882 3,714 3,710 3,678 3,427
Government grants 886 1,354 265 780 725
Other 2,320 2,933 4,403 4,819 2,009
Total revenue 34,373 34,979 34,309 34,751 31,284
Expenditure
Operations and maintenance 20,253 22,745 19,855 19,391 17,883
Other 8,603 8,570 7,850 7,748 6,145
Earnings before interest,taxation, impairment and depreciation 5,517 3,664 6,604 7,612 7,256
Depreciation 14,418 14,135 11,521 11,354 10,856
Finance cost 1,067 1,025 914 917 1,107
Total expenditure 44,341 46,475 40,140 39,410 35,991
Equity
Net operating statutory loss (9,968) (11,496) (5,831) (4,659) 4,707)
Movement in retained earnings (9,968) (11,496) (5,831) (4,659) (4,707)
Balance Sheet
Current assets 14,040 13,459 15,553 13,085 10,330
Non-current assets 1,254,579 | 1,240,229 | 1,273,315 | 1,236,808 | 1,236,329
Total assets 1,268,619 | 1,253,688 | 1,288,868 | 1,249,893 | 1,246,659
Current liabilities 17,890 15,738 13,844 9,605 9,888
Non-current liabilities 240,892 237,248 248,645 239,869 242,298
Total liabilities 258,782 252,986 262,489 249,474 252,186
Net cash inflow from operations 4,608 7,154 6,211 8,835 6,773
Payments for infrastructure, property,plant and equipment 28,950 19,280 13,646 13,127 16,018
Financial result reconciliation
Net operating statutory loss (9,968) (11,496) (5,831) (4,659) (4,707)
Add back non-regulatory depreciation and impairment 11,405 10,691 8,205 8,895 8,696
Less renewals charge (1,109) (1,061) (969) (901) (1,328)
Add non-regulatory asset transfers and write-offs 98 4,061 1,362 1,409 332
Add major projects expensed 1,599 921 2,087 1,175 791
Operating profit before statutory adjustments 2,025 3,116 4,854 5,919 3,784
Five year performance summary
Revenue 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Internal Financing Ratio 156.92% 3711% 46.34% 67.28% 42.28%
Gearing Ratio 2.24% 1.75% 1.50% 1.34% 1.43%
Interest Cover(Cash) 7.80 10.90 11.40 16.50 10.20
Return on Assets -0.74% -0.86% -0.42% -0.34% -0.34%
Return on Equity -0.69% -0.79% -0.40% -0.32% -0.33%
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How this report is structured

Gippsiand and Southem Rural Water Corp

Financial Statemants:

Notes to the linancial statements:

{the Cor

Comprohensive Oporating Statemant
Balance Sheat

Statemant of Changes in Equity
Cash Flow Statemant

1. About this repor
The basis on which he financial zhafements have been prepamd and complance with reponting regulations
L. Funding delivery of our services
Revenue recognised from service and uiage chages, grants and other sournces
Income from transactions
2.1 Service and usage charges
2.2 Chargeable works
2.3 Governmant grants and contributions
2.4 Fair valug of assets received free of charge
2.5 Sabe of water and entitiements
3. The cost of delivering services
Operaling expenses of the Cormparation

3.1 Our pecple
3.1.1 Employes benelits - Comprehensive Operating Statemant
3,1.2 Employes benelits - Balance Shest
3.1.3 Superannuastion

3.2 Repairs and maintanancs

3.3 Bulk water

34 Return of unspent government grant

3.5 Supplies and sarvices

3.6 Other operating expenses

4. Wey asssts available 1o support culpul delivery
Infrashucture, property, pland and equipment, and infmgible assels
4.1 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

4.1.1 Reconciliation of movements in carrying values of infr property, plant and
4.1.2 Fair value o ination: Mon-fi ial physical assets
4.1.3 Depreciation
4.1.4 Assat write-offs
4.1.5 Net gain on disposal of non-current assots.
4.2 Intangible assets
4.21 intangible asset write-offs.

5 Other assels and lkabilities
Wivking capdal balances and olver key assels and Fabilitios

5.1 Receivables
5.1.1 Movemnent in the provision for impaired receivables
5.1.2 Ageing analysis of contractual receivables

5.2 Payables
5.21 Ageing analysis of cont |peanyabl

5.3 Fair valug determination of financial assets and liabilities
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How this report is structured [continued) Page

B. How we financed our operations. T8
Bamowings, cash fiow information
6.1 Interest bearing liabilities L]
B.1.1 Maturity analysis of interest bearing liabilities. 78
£.1.2 Interest expensa T8
6.2 Cash Now information 78
6.2.1 Reconciliation of net result to cash flow from operating activities T8
6.2.2 Financing facilities 80
6.3 Commitments for sxpenditure 80
6.3.1 Total commitmants payable 80
&.3.2 Capital commitments 80
7. Risks, contingencies and valuation judgements 3]
Financial risk managemen!, contingent assels and Fabities a5 wel as foir valve deferminalion
7.1 Financial instruments specific disclosures 81
7.1.1 Financial instruments: Categorisation 82
7.1.2 Fimancial risk management objectives and policies B82-83
7.2 Contingent assets and contingent labilites 84
8. Statutory obligations 85
Tax, ervironmental contributions, dividends
8.1 Tax 1]
B.1.1 Income tax 85
8.1.2 Deferred tax assets and liabilities -]
8.2 Environmental contribution 86
8,21 Environmaental commitmant -]
8.3 Dividends 86
8. Other disclosures &7
9.1 Equity a7
8.1.1 Contributed capital ar
9.1.2 Assel revalualion reserne ar
8.1.3 Accumulated surplus a7
9.2 Events occurring after the balance date a7
9.3 Responsible persons ag
9.4 Related parthes. 88
9.5 Remuneration of executives 1]
9.6 Remuneration of auditors a9
8.7 Ex-gratia expense ]
9.8 Australian Accounting Standards issued that ane not yet effective 80-81
Appendix
A Statutory Cenification - financial statements a4
B Performance Report 93-96
C  Statutory Cenification - performance report a8
D Victorian Auditor-General's Report 100
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Gippsland and Southern Rural Water Corporation

Comprehensive Operating Statemant
For the financial year ended 30 June 2018

Revenus

Revenise from cperaling activilies
Service and usage charges
Chargeabie wedks

Govarnmant grants and contributions
Intarest incame

Oihar Income

Govemmant grants and contributions. for capital purposes
Fair value of assets receleed free of charge

Sale of water and enfitlements

Kt gain on dsposal of non-curment assels

Total revenue

wilks
Reatism of uispent govemnmant grant
Feérpairs. and mainbenance
Supphes and sefvices
Other operaling expenses
Depreciation of regulstory assst base
Dapraciation of ofher asssts
Asssl wite-offs
Intangible assel write-offs
Amortisaion
Total expenses

Kt result before tax
Incomi Lax renvernse

Ket result for the period

The abowe Comprehensive Op 3 58 should be read in conjunction with the accompanying nobes
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T4

25
415

431

a1

2T-2018

NE55

19,968

ZME-2017

30,800
a1
1354
187

Te2
85T
127

34,978

1059
423
14,728
1025
an
450
1,578
Ta07

3444
10,881
3818
45478
111,496)

3488
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Gippsland and Seuthern Rural Water Corporation

Comprehensive Operating Statement [continued)
For the financial year ended 30 June 2018

2017-2018 2E-2017
§000 5000
Mobes
Met result for the period 16.8585) {8.010)
Other comprehensive income for the period
Iems thal will nod be reclassified fo nel resul
Mt gain on revaluation of infrastruchene, property, plan and equipment 812 L] 1}
Impainment of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 812 (588) (35,978)
Incomee ta redating to these Rems B 170 10,783
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax (398) (25,185)
Comprehensive result ifEt EHE'IE

The above Comprehensive Dparating Statement should ba read in conjunclion with the accompanying notes
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Gippsland and Seuthern Rural Water Corporation

Balance Sheat
As at 30 June 2018

Assets

Current asssts

Cash and cash equivalents
Recehvables

Oiher non-financial assets
Assets classified &s held for sabks
Total current assets

HNon-current assets

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Intangible wssets

Total non-current assels

Tolal assats

Liabilities

Current liabilities
Payables

Intarest bearing Eabilitios
Emplayes benefits

Total current liabilities

Hon-gurrent labilities
Payabies

Interest bearing Eabilities
Emplayes benefits
Daferred tax Babilties

Total non-current Nabdlitles

Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity

Confributed capital
Assel revaluabion resarve

Accumulated surplus
Total equity

Thiz above Balance Sheot should be read in conjunction with the accompamying notes
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a2
1

411
42

a2

nz

a1
nz
812

11
812
913

2017-2018

6531

LE]
14,040

1252559
1,452
1254011

69,158

4,802

24,540
7
215.857

258,612

432858

557,200
19252

6814
3830
& 504

L%

2]
17,670
258
218,010
237 248

252,906

416,734
557 607
26,287
1,000,702
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Gippsland and Southern Rural Water Corporation

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the financial year ended 30 June 2018

Assot Revaluati fr. I
Notes Contributed Capital Reserve Funds Total
57000 5000 §°000 5'000
Balance at 1 July 2018 409220 582 882 34277 1,026,279
Net resull for the period ] 1] (B0 E.010
Oiher comprehensive incame ] (25,185) ] (25,185)
Total comprehensive income for the year [ (25,185) (B.010) (33,85
Transachors with the Stabe Gowernment in its capacity as owner AR 7518 Q o T.518
Balance as at 30 June 2017 416,738 E57 607 26267 1,000,702
Met reswil for the period 0 a (6.585) {8,985)
Cther comprehensive income [ 2] L] (368) o (268)
Total comprehensive income for the year [} =58 16,585} 7. 363)
Transfer lo/from accumulaled defict
TrangacBors with the Stabe Government in its capacity a5 owner 214 16,120 a o 16,120
Balance as at 30 June 2018 432 858 557, 209 19,282 1,009.439

The above Staterment of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompaming nabes
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Gippsland and Seuthern Rural Water Corporation

Cash Flow Statement
For the financial year ended 30 June 2018

Cash flows from operating activities

Roceipts

Receipts from service and usage charges

Receipts from State Governmaent 23
Interest recedved

Goods and Services Tax received from the ATO

Payments

Paymients to supplers and employees

Interest paid

Goods and Services Tax paid 1o the ATO

Hat cash inflow from operating activities 821
Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for infrastructure, property, plant and egquipmsant

Proceeds from sabe of infrastructure, property, plant and equipmant 415
Payments for intangible assets a2
Nt cash outflow from investing activities

Cash flows frem financing activities

Procesds Trom new barmowings ()

Rapayment of axisting borrowings

Procesds from conlributions by Slale Governmenl in its capacily as owner 211
HNat cash inflow from financing activities

Nat increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year [+

The above Cash Flow Stalement should be read in canjuncian with the accompanying notes,

i) 52.8m of the new borrowings was applied to repary a maturing loan of 52.8m at 30 June 2018
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2017-2018

323N
2708
30.733)
(745)

4608

(28.851)
(84}

0e-2017

33,805
1,354

3,067
(30,267)
(T84)
(T4

7154

(19,260)
593
(185)

(18,872)

B,580
{4,030y
7518
10,088
{1,850
9,113

7453
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1. About this nepor
Pababdah of the Corp
Gippsland and Southern Rural Water Authority {SRW or the Corporation) was establshed on 1 July 1955, by a Ministerial Ovder under section 58 of the Waler Act 1989, dated 30 June 1595, The Autharity's name was

changed on 1 July 2007 to Gippsland and Southem Rural Water Corporation under Section 851} of the Wisler Act 1588, inseried by Section 54 of the Waler Govenance Act 2006,
Thix business namae of the Corporation is Southorn Rural Water (SRW),

Thix Corporation ks @ nat for prodt entity cwned by the State Governmaent of Victoria, reported and domiciled in Victoria,
Basis of accounting

Thix financial report includes separabe financial statements for Gippsland and Southemn Rural Waber Corporation (the Corporation) & an individual reporting antity. This financial report ks a generad purposa financeal report that

corsists of 8 Comprehansive Oparating Stalement, Balance Sheel. Stalement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Slatement, directors” declaration and nobes accompanying hese stalements. for the pevicd ending 30 June 2013,
The general purpose Bnancial repar has been prapared in aocordancs with Australian Accounting Standards (AAS), Inberpeetations and ofther suthorilative pronouncaments of the Austrakan Accounting Standands Board, and

et requirements of the Financial Mansgement Act 1094 and applcable Minfsterial Daections, The Comporation is & not-for-pafl entity for the purposes of prepaning the financial stabements.

Where appropiiale. these ARS paragraphs appcable o nol-lof-profit entities have besn appled.

The accrual basis of accounting has been applied in the preparation of (hese Snancial statements whereby sssels, Eabilties, equity, income and expenses ane recognised in the reporting period Lo which they relate,
regardiess of when cash is received or paid.

The annual financial stabements were authonsed lor Bsue by the Gippsland and Southesn Rural Water Corporation Board of Direclors on S Seplember 2018,

The principal address is:
Gippsiand and Southern Rural Water Corporation

B8 Joherson Street

Maffra VIC 3550

Accounting policies

Accounting policies me selected and appied in o manner which ensures that the resuling financial information satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliabdity, thereby ing that the sut e of the :l
trarsactions or other events is reported,

Linkess stated. all ng policks appled ane weith those of the prior year,

Functional and presentation curmency

Ivemss included iin this imancial report are messured using the cumency of the primary economic ervircnmant in which the Corporation operates (the funcBional curmency), The financial mport s presented in Ausiralian
dallars, which s the Corporation's functional and prossntalion curmency.

Classification batweasn currant and nan-curramnt

Ini the determination of whether an assed or Eabilty i cument or non-curment, consideration is given to the time when each asset or Eabilty is expecied 1o be realsed or paid. The asset or Eability is classified as
current if it is axpected to be turned over within the next 12 hs, baing the Corp 5 Qp | cycle.

Rounding

Linkesss ofherwise stated, amounts in the reporl have been rounded 1o the nearest thousand dollars. Figures in the financial report may not squate dus 1o rounding,
Histerical cost convention

Thess financisl stabements have been prepared under he historical coat corvention, except for the revakestion of Arancial asssts, s classes of propenty, plant and equipmen.
Aceounting estimates

Judgamaents, estimates and assumpbions ane required 1o be made about Anancial information being presented. The significant |udgemants made In the prepasation of thisse Bnancial statomants aee disclosed in the
nodes whare amourts affected by those judgements are disclossd, Estimates and associabed assumptions an based on professional judpements decfved from historical sxperence and vanous cther tacions that are
bedlvied to b reasonakie under he circumstances. Actual results. may differ from these estmates. Revisions o accounting estimates are made in the pariod in which the estimate s revised and also in future pariods
heat mre aBached by the revision. Judgements and assumplions made by managemsant in apphsng Ausirakan Accounting Siandards. that have signiicant effects. on the Srancial sialements and estimabes relate to;

- estimasion of useful lves (Noto 4.1)

- the imipainmsent of assets (Nobe 4.1)

- racognition of defemed tax assets and kabilties (Note 8.1)

- Bcpnaed income (Note 5.1)

- emplcyes benedl provisions (Nobe 3.1)

- contingent assots and labdties (Mobe T.2)

- the tair value of assets (.o, infrastruchare assets). (Mate 4.1.2)
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§'000 §'000
Funding delivery of our services
Intraduction
This section provides addiional information about how e Corporation is funded and the accounting policees thal ane relevant for an understanding of the ilems recognissd in the financial stalsments.
Thi Cosporation harvests, stores and manages waler in reservoirs, This waber is then supplied to irgatons, urban waler corporations and powar g ars, of reteined for the go . The Conparation

also implements govermiment reguiations and policy for groundwater and suacewaber management in accordance with dedegated powers Trom the Waker Act 1868 . The Corporation derives the majority of
Its resvenus from chargpes for waber entitements. The majornity of these charges are a foed amaount per entitiernant, however vanabée usage charges ar appled in some of our imigatian districts,

Incomee ks recognised (o the extent it i probabls the economic benefits will fiow to the Corporation and the income can be relably measured a1 fair value. Where applicable, amounts dsclosed as income
are el af relums, allowances, duties and laxes.

Structure

2.1 Service and usage changes
2.2 Chargeable works.

2.3 Government grants and conbributions

2.4 Fair value of assets received free of charge
2.5 Saka of waler and anlilaments:

Income frem transactions

21 Service and usage charges
Service charges
Fined charges
WWaber service changes
Irvigation, dversion and groundwaler 22965 22548
Recycled waler 1258 1,328
Stcrage operator changes a2 374
Ciher charges
Bore construction, applcation fees, transfer fees and information statements 1.135 1,286
20,241 28,567
Water usaqe charges
Variable usege charpes
leviggation, dversion and groundwaler 18926 1,705
Recycled waler 488 1048
2414 1,813
Total service and usage charges 31655 30.E00

Fixesd water and serdice changes (including recycled waler and slorage operator charges) are recognised as revanue when levied.

Imigation, diversion and groundwaber charges are recognised as revenue when the mebers are read. Meter readings are undertaken progressively during the year and al end of each respeclive season,
wiich aligrs with the end of the financial year as thers are no further defveries after the and of season meter read,

Oihar charges revenus 8 recognised as the work is performed by the Corporation, rather than on receipt of the bone construction, application, transfer or information statement fees.
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2017-2018 2016-2017

$'000 5000
2.2 Chargeable works
Chargeabds works 405 B
Tatal chargeable works %05 B11
From tire to time the Corparation undertakes capital warks for its cusiomers. The cost of these works is included &5 a separate line of axpendilure and revenue in the Comprehensive Oparating Statersent, and are recognised as the work is performed.
2.3 Government grants and contributions
Crparating
Shale Goverrrnand
Local governmment authonity dam safety a 168
Macalister lrigasion District MID2030 phase 2 development 215 ara
Lindenaw Valley waber security 17T T
Southern Victorian imgation developmient kX 338
Diibayn il infrastiucture feasibiity study 0 100
Review tenants in comemon water shares & Q
Bore complation reports data entry 5 Q
South West Limestone GIMA cusiomer survey 15 a
MNon-oparating
Stale Govermmant
Blue Rock jeity upgrade 10 Q
Blue Rock flaating boat ramg ] i}
Total government grants and contributions B85 1,354
mnmmmhﬂmﬂm:mrﬂdnop-um:mmulunm-unr'nhnlh-DwmhnuhmmdﬂﬂnmﬁhﬂmmMmﬁdhrmmumwmmm
Canlribulions , whichisver & the sconer, ard disciosed in the Comprehensive Operating Stalerent s gov L grants and contributions, Howeved, grants and conlribulions received from the Stale Goverrnmen,

which were onginally appropriated by the Parkament s additions 1o net assets of where the responsible minislers have indicated are in the rature of cemens” contributions, ane accounted for &s Equity - Contriutions
by Cramars in accordance with FRD 1194 Transfers through Contributed Capital (Refer Mote 9.1.1).

24 Fair valie of asseis received free of charge
Infrastructure at fair value a a2
Taotal fair valire of assels received free of charge i To2

Conbributions. of rescurces recewed free of charge of for nominal consideration are recognised at their fair value when the Corporation cbtains conbrol over them, imespective of whether restrictions. or conditions
ang imposed over the use of the contributions.

2.5 Sale of water and entitfemants

Sale of crealed water shares (i) 567 588
Sale of water (i) 106 50
Sale of surface and groundwater Boences (i) 15 1
Total sale of water and entitlemants T4 [
Whare the responsible minister approves an amendmend to 8 Bullk Entitlement Order, nmllmﬂmaiﬂ of resulting new water entithements, the Corporation recognises this

revenis al the me these entitements ae sold. Total proceeds ane recorded in the Compreh Operaling Stabernent as revenue from non-operating activities,

(i In 2013, the Corporation comploted water seving projects from the MID2030 leading works and MID2030 Phase 18 projects in the Macalister Imgasion District, Wabter saving studies confirmed that the
project had saved 2,881 ML of water sach year. In October 2014 the farmer Minister for Water approved the amendment of the Thomsonhacakster bulk waler entitiement and the creation of these new waler
entitlaments. Far of the mnlmmmm 205 ML of high rekability shares and 110 ML of low reliabdity shares, was sold by auction on 28 Febnuary 2018. The proceads raised of $0.374m
have been recorded in the Comprehersive Op g Stat L as revenus, During the financial year, further entitiements were placed on the market with a shelf price. The proceeds raised of $0.153m have
mmalummmmmmmmmaum

() During 2017-18, the Corporation conducted sucons saling seasonal alocations from waber shanes hedd in the Macalster and Werribee water supply systems. The proceeds raised of $0.106m have baen
rmﬂld in the Comprehensive Operating Staternent as revenue,
() During 2017-18, the Corporation conducted one auction of unreguiated groundwater kcances, and alse sobd unreguiated groundwater and surfacewater Beences on the market with a shell price. The sales cccumed in tha following area;
= Parwan Groundwater Managerment Unit, which sold 48 ML of groundwater Boersed volume (via auction).
- Panwan Groundwater Management Lini, which sold 25 ML of groundwater boensed volsme (via shell price market).
= Curdies River, which sold 400 ML of surfacewater Boensed volume (via shelf price market).
The procesds raised of 50.115m have been recorded in the Comprehensive Operaling Stalermant &s revenus,
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The cost of delivering services
Introduction

This section provides addtional information about how the Corporation’s funding i appled and the sccounting pobcies that are relevant for an understanding of the fedrs recognised in the financial statements.

Structure

ER Cur poople
3.1.1 Employes benelits - Comprehensive Operating Stalement
3.1.2 Employes banefits - Balance Sheat
3.1.3 Superannusation

a2 Repairs and mainbenance

3.3 Builk wader

34 Refurn of unspent government grant

35 Supphes and services

36 Other operating expenses

kR Cur people

1.1 Employws benefits - Comprahansive Operating Statemant

Emplayes banafits

- malarkes and wages 100603
- annusal leave 1208
- long service leave 330
= employer superannuatian contribution 1437
- teqrninaticn benedt 48
- ather 1639
Total employee benefit costs 15,263

These expenses include all costs relaled to employment including wages and salanes, superannuation, finge benefits tax, leave enfillements, redundancy payments and workcover prémiums,

The amount charged 1o the Comprehensive Operating Stalement in respect of superannualion represents conbiibuticns made of due by the Corparation i the relevant superanuation phans in respect
to the services of the Corporation’s staff (both past and present). Superannuation contributions are made to the plans based on the relevant rues of each plan and ary relevant compulsory
superannualion requirements that the Corporation i required to comply with.

Termination banefits are payable when employment is lerminated before the normal netirement date, of whan an employss accepts an offer of benalits in exchangs for the temination of employment.

Tarmination benefits are recognised when the Corporation is demanstrably commitied to terminating the employment of curment smployess according o a detailed formal plan without possitility of withdrawal or providing

tefminalion benefits &s & resull of an offer made to encourage valurtary redundancy.
Banefits faling due more than 12 monghs aller the end of the reporting period are discounted io present value,
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5000 5000

1.2 Employes beneflis - Balance Sheat

Provision is made for benelits acoruing to employees in respect of wages and salafies, annual leave and long serdoe leave (LEL) Tor sendioes rendered o the reporting date and recorded as an expense

during the period the services are delvered.

Current provisions:

Annus laave

Unconditional and sxpected to sattle within 12 months
Uncondiional and expacted 1o seltle afer 12 months

Long service leave
Uncondiional and expected 1o seltle within 12 months
Unconditional and expected to setile aier 12 months
Prowisions for an-costs
Uncondiional and expected to sattle within 12 maonths
Unconditional and expected to settle afier 12 monkths
Total current provisions for employer benefits

Non-current provisions.

Long service leave

On-costs

Tatal non-current provisions for employes banefits
Tatal provisions for employes banefits

Wages and salarkes, amual leave and sick eave

935 37

122 76D
1,448 1,324
962 1,113
432 410
305 41
4,802 4 B4
288 218
49 40
ETH 259
£.119 £.153

Liabdlities for wages and salaies. (including non-manetary benefits, annual leave, accumulating sick leave and on-cosis) are recognised in the provision for employes benefits &s current Nabiities,

because the Corporation does nol have an unconditional rght 1o defer selflerment of these Eabilties,

Liabdlities for salaries and annual leave ane all recognised in the provision for employee benefits 8s ‘curment Babiities’ as per AASE 119 Employes Benefilz , because the Corporation does nol have an unconditional

right 1o dafer sottlermants of these Eabilties. Liabilties for salaries and annual leave are measured at:
- undiscounted valse — if the Corporation expects to wholly settle within 12 months; o
= present value - if the Corporation does nof expect to wholly sattle within 12 months.

Sick heve payments are made in accordance with relevant avwands, determinations and Corporation policy. No provision is made in the Financial Statements for unused sick leave entilements as these are non-vesting benefits,

Cn-costs

On costs, such as payroll tax and workers' compensation i
Long service lnave

Liabdlity for long sendce keave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employes benefis.

, it not employee benefits, They ane disclosed separalely as a companent of the provision Tor employes benefits when the employment 1o which they relste has occurred.

Uncondiional LSL (representing seven® of mode years of continuous sanvice) ks disclosed a8 a current ability, even where the Corporation does not expect 1o settls the kakaity within 12 months.

The Corporation does not have the unconditional right to deder the settliement of the enitiement should an employes take leave within 12 months,
The companents of this cument LSL kability are measured ak:

- undiscounted vahse — if the Corporation expects to wholly settle within 12 months; o

= present walue = if the Corporation does not expect to wholly setthe within 12 months.

Conditioral LSL is disclosed as & non-current kabilty. There is an uncondiional right to defer the settlemeant of the entitlsment until the employes has completed the requisite yeans of service. This non-cument LSL Eability

is measured al present valss,

Any gain or loss following revaluation of the present value of non-current LSL iabilty is recognised as a transaction, except to the extent that a gain or koss arises due o changes in bond inferest rates for which it s then recognised

in the Comprehensive Operating Statement.
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113 Superannualion
Thix Corporation’s obligatiors for conbributions to the Fund are recognised as an expense in the Comprehensive Oparating Statement when they are made or due,

The Corporation conbributes in respect of its employees to the Bllowing superannuation schemes. Contribuions: by the Corporation (excluding amy unfunded Eability payments) 1o the sup plans for the
financial year ended 30 June 2018 are detailed below:

20MT-2018 Contribution 2082017 Contribution
§°000 rate 5000 rate

Accumulation schemes:

{a) Vision Super Employer contribution 905 9.50% Bz 9.50%
(1] Other superannuation schemes Employer contribution 900 S.50% BS4 9.50%
Dwfined benafit schemes:

{c) Gavemment Superannuation Office - New Scheme Employer contribution &5 8.5% - 10.7% 96 8.5% - 10L3%
{dy SAFE - State Employees Retirernent Benalits Fund Employer contribution 5 13.30% 10 13.30%

Taotal employer contribulion 1,805 1,782

[In addition 1o the above contributions, the Corporation has paid unfunded ability payments to Vision Super fotalling 50 (201817 50)),

There were no contributions outstanding and no lans issued from or to he above schemes s at 30 June 2018,

Accumulation (items a - b)

Contributions 1o the accumulation plans are expensed as the contribuions ane paid or becoms payable

Defined Benefit (itlems ¢ - d)

The fallowing infonmation relabes 1o Vision Super Defined Benefl lunds only. Govermment Superannuation Ofce and State Employees Retrement Benefits Fund Defined Benefits information is reponed in the Bnandal repon of the Depatment of Treasury and Finance,
The Corporation does not use defined benall Bocounting because sufficient informaticn is not available. There i no proporional spit of the defined benedl katsities, assels of costs between the participating employeds as the defined benef

oblgation s a floating oblgaton betwean the participating employers and the only time that the aggregate oblgation is allocabed to speciic employars (s when a cal is made. As & resull, the level of paticipation of the Cerporation in the Fund

cannot be measwed as 8 percentage compared with other participating emplcyers. Theratore, the Fund Actuary is unabde to alocate benelit kabilties. assets and costs babween employers for the purposes of AASE 119,

Eunding amangentents
On the basks of the resuls of the 2017 interim actusarial imvestigation conducted by the Fund Actuary, the Corporalion makes employer contribulions to the Defined Benelt category of the Fund at rates deterrmined by the Trustes on the advice
of the Fund Muur'r Inud:lﬂm tha Buwuﬂmm’umlmhFuﬂlnmﬁn excess of the benefits paid a5 a consequence of retrenchment above the funded resignaticn or refiremant benaedt,

Matsﬂ.luru Z]"l?ﬂ'llrlﬂﬂm -nuwmllmmamnnmm:nuummnmmmhmmm Benafil category. The vested b&mltl‘lﬂ“ (VBI) was 103.1%. Because the VBl was above 100%, the 2017 inberim acluarial
imvestigation determined the Defined Benefil category was in a satisfaciory financial position and that no change was necessary to the Defined Benefit category's funding ammang from prior years.

Tao determine the VBI, the Fund Actuary used the following long-term assumgtions:

= Mt imvestmant returns 7.0% pa

- Salary inflation 4.25% pa

- Price inflation (CPI) 2.5% pa.

Vision Super has advised that the estimated VBI at 30 June 2018 was 106.0%.

The Fund's interim actuarial imvestigation as at 30 Juns 2017 identified the foliowing:

- A VBl surplus of $40.3 milion; and

= A total service Eability surplus of 5156 million.

The VBl surplus means that the markel value of the fund's assals supporting the dafined benalil cbigations excead the vested benefits thal the defined benalil members would have been enlithed to if they had all exited on 30 June 2017,
Th-wﬁsm MSMMIM thix current value of the assets in the Fund’s Defined Benefit category plus expected future contributions exceads the value of sxpected fusure benefits and experses.

-lil.il mlﬁl Imuﬁnﬁoﬂs bﬁfﬂ mﬂmtd for the Fund's position as ol 30 June 2018, H & anticipated that this actuardal investigation will be complsted in Decernber 2018,

Funding Calls

If the Defined Bene category |s in an unsstistactory fnancdal position at an actusrial ivestigation of the Defined Benedt category's VB! ks below s shortiall kit 81 any tme other than the date of the actuarial investigation, the Defined Benefl calegory has
a shortfall for the purpases of SPS 160 and the Fund is required 1o put a plan in place so that the shortfall is fully funded within thres years of the shortfall ecourring, The Fund monitors its VBI on a quarterly basis and the Fund has set its shortfall Bmit of 97%,

In ther event that the Fund Actisary detenmines that there is a shorttall based on the above requinement, the Fund's participating emgloyeds (ncluding the Corparation) are requined 1o make an employer conbribution to cover the shoriall.

Using the agreed methodology, the shartfall amount is apportioned between the participating employers based on the pre-1 July 1983 and post-30 June 1983 service Eabilties of the Fund's Defined Benefit category,
together with the employer's payroll at 30 June 1993 and at the date the shortiall kas been caloulated.

Due 1o the nature of the contraciual obligations betweaen the participating employers and the Fund, and that the Fund incudes ifetime pensioners and their reversionary beneficianies, it is unlikely that the: Fund will be wound up.
If there is & swpkus in ihe Fund, the swiphs cannot be returned 1o the particpaling employers,
In the event that a participating employer is wound-up, the dafined benefit oblgations of that emiployer will be transferred to thal employer's successar,
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2017-2018 2016-2017

000 5000
3.2 Repairs and maintenance
Repairs and maintenance 1,413 1578
Total repairs and maintenance T iaa — iE=m®

Routing maintenance, repair costs and minor renewal costs are expensed as incurred. Where the repair relates o the replacemant of a component of an asset and the cost exceeds the capitaksation threshold,
the cost i capitalised and depreciated.

33 Bulk water
Recycled water 1,384 1,088
Total bulk water 1,564 1,059

. e—————

Reeycled water s supplied by a contract between Melbourne Water and the Corparation Tor distribiulion ta customers in the Werribee Irrigation District.

34 Return of unspent governmant grant
Urspent gowarnment grant Q 450
Taotal retumn of unspent government grant [1] 450

In the 201 3-14 and 2014-15 financial years, the Corporation received 5450k from the State Govemment to fund a project for keensing local govemment dams. During 2016-17, the State Government
cancelled the orginal funding agreement, and requested that the funds be returned.

35 Supplies and services

Supples and senices

- Insurance il 451
- Mator vehicke operaling costs 662 -]
- Professional services 2,247 2,082
= Telecommunications. 388 64
- Gither sernvices 4,565 34
Tolal supplies and services 8,564 7,307

Supples and serdoes costs ane recopnised as an expense in the reporting period in which they are incurred, The carrying amounts of any imventones held for distribution are expensed when distributed,

16 Other operating expenses

Cther exparses

Operating lease rental expenses

- Liease payments B4 555
Tatal perating lesse rental sapenses ] 556
Cost of goods sold ! distributed

Ex grafia expense (rafer to Hobe 9.7) Q Q
Taotal other eperating expenses ] 556

Other operating expanses genarally represent the day-lo-day running costs incurred in normal operations and are deemed relevant for the understanding of this firancial repedt, They are expersed in the period in which they are incured.
The following specific accounting policies apply:

Operating lease paymants (Including contingent rentals) are recogrised on 8 strasght line basis over the lease term, except whare anather systematic basts is more representative of the Bme pattern of the banefits derved from the
s of the leased asset,
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Key assets available to support output delivery
Intraduction

Thir Corporation controls infrastructure and other assets that are ulilised in fuliling its objectives and conducting its activities, They represent the key resources that have been entrusted to the Corporation to be utiised for delivery of those cutputs,

Structuwre

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
4.1 Infrastructure, property. plant and oqupment

4.1.1 Recanciliaion of mevements in carrying vakies of infrastruciure, property, plant and equipment

4.1.2 Fair value determination: Mon-financial physical assets
4.1.3 Depreciation

4.1.4 Assat wiite-offs

4.1.5 Net gain on disposal of non-current assels

42 Irangile assels
4.2.1 Intangibde asset wiite-ofts

4.1 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
411 Reconciilation of movemends in carrying values of infrasiructurs, property, plant and equipment
Year ended 30 June 2018
Waber Machinary, fittings and Capital works in
Land infrastructure equipmient Pant Maotor vehicles Buildings progress Tatal
$'000 5000 $'000 §'000 §°000 57000 5'000 §'000
At 1 July 2017 FEE] 1,185,835 1,524 549 2462 3,553 14,357 1,238,159
Audditions - new assets a L] a L] 1102 L] 24,730 25,812
Audditions - asset renewal a L] a L] L] L] 4,076 4,076
Translens o 20,249 T30 116 L1} 33 (21,062) o
Impsinment o (568 o 0 L] ] 1] (564)
Assets witien olf 0 (B8) 0 o 0 o 0 (8}
Dispesaks 0 o 0 {11} (423} o 0 (433)
Dopreciation expense L] (12.930) {440) {141} (832} 268) e (14,408)
At 30 June 2018 29,873 1.1g2 468 1,814 511 2510 3254 210 1,252,550
A1 July 2T
Gross canying amount aame 1,158,578 4,566 1377 4.7 3,750 14,357 1,256,954
Accumuiaed depreciation 0 {12,843 (3,072) (B28) {1,855) {187y 0 {18,785)
Nat carrying amount FrED] 1,185,835 1,524 545 T 3553 14,357 1,238,159
At 30 June 2018
Gross canmying amount aame 1,218,261 5,383 1,445 4313 anT 2,1 1,285,099
Accumuked deprecition 0 {25,773 (3,568 (1§32} {1,803} {4E3) 0 (32,540)
Mat carmying amount 879 1152 48 1,814 513 2510 EFE] FFRL] 1,262,559
Yoar ended 30 June 2017
Water Machinery, illings and Capital works in
LLand infrastructure equipmaent Plant Maitor vehicles Buildings [PCgresS Taotal
$'000 000 $'000 5000 §'000 000 §'000 §'000
At 1 July 2016 27 692 1,224 560 1,216 450 2620 2875 11,330 1,270,544
Additions 2,187 ] 1] o 1002 ] 18,727 21,916
Translems 1] 13,815 565 39 o 1,080 (15, 700) ]
Transleds ta hekd for sals 1] ] 1 ] L] (201) 1] (201)
Impainment 0 {35,078) 0 o 0 o 0 (35,978)
Assets wiitlen olf 0 (3.819) 0 o 0 o 0 {3,819)
Dispesaks 0 o {1 {36} (431} o 0 (463)
Deprecialion expense 0 {12,843) {257y (104} (720) (202 0 {14,135)
AL30 June 2017 EXE] 1.185 835 1524 L] ZA62 3553 14,357 1,238,150
— — S— — R
At 1 July 2016
Gross canrying amount 27 B2 1.224 860 4,108 1,47 4334 24878 11,330 1,276,287
Accumuiated depreciation - 1] ] EEJ tﬁﬂ- “-?E} _l} 0 m
Mel cadrying amount 27,862 1,224 660 1,218 450 2620 2876 11,330 1,270,844
AL 30 June 2017
Gross canrying amount 29,879 1,198,878 4,598 1377 4317 3750 14,357 1,256,954
Accumuiated depreciation o (12.843) (3,072 {28 {1.855) {en 1 (18,765)
Ml carrying amount 28,879 1,185,835 1,524 548 2482 3,553 14,357 1,238,158
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inittal recagrition

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment represent non-cuiment physical assets comprizing land, buiklings, waler and drainage infrastructure, plant, equipment and mobor wehicles, wsed by the Corporation in s
oprations, Hems with a cost or value in sxcess of 52000 (2017; $2,000) and a useful ife of more than cne year are recognised as an asset. All other assels acquired are sxpensod,

Ineens of infrasineciune, property, plant and equipment, afe measwed inilially &l cost and subsequently revalued st fair value less sccumulated depreciation and impairmend. Where an asset is acquired for no or nominal
cost, the cost i its fair value at the date of acquisition, Assets transfemed as part of a machinery of governmant change are transferred at their camying amount.

Thie cost of constructed non-financial physical assets includes the cost of all maletals used in construction, direct labour on the propect and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overheads.

The cost of leasehold improvemants is capitaised and depreciated over the shorer of the remaining term of the lease or their estimated usoful fves. At balance date, leasehold improvements
are amonised over a 10 year pericd (2017: 10 years),
Suhsequent measuremant

Infrastructune, property. plant and equipment ane subsequently measured at Tair value less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Fair value i determined with regard to the asset’s highest and best wse (considering
legal of physical restricions imposed on the assel, public announcements of commibments made in retation to the inlended use of the asssl). Reder 1o Note 4.1 2 for fair value disclosures.

Ravalualion of non-current physical assets

RevaluaSors are conducted in accordance with FRD 103G, Scheduled revaluation is underiaken every five years with an annual assessment of fair vakee to determing ifit is matedally different 1o camying value.
If the: difference lo carmying value is greater than 10 per cem, & management revaliation is undertaken while a movement greater than 40 per cent will nommally irmobee an approved valuer (usually the
‘Valwer-Genaral Victana) to pericem detailed assessment of the fair value. If the maovement in fair value since the st revaluation is kess than of equal to 10 per cent. then nd change is made to camying amaounts.

Revaluaion increments are credited directly 1o equity in the asset revaluation resense, except that, to the extent that an increment reverses a revaluation decrement in respect of thal class of assel previously
recognised &s an axpensa in determining the nat result, the increment is recognised as revenus in determining the net resul,

Revaluaion decrements an recognised immediatoly a5 an sxparse in the et result, except that, to the sxtent that a credit balance exists in the assel revaluation reserve in respect of the same class of assats,
they are debiled lo the assel revaluation resarve.

Revalualion increases and revaluation decreases relating bo individual assets within a class of infrastruciie, propery, plant and equipment afe alfsel against one anclher within that class but are not offset in
respect of assets in diferent classes. Asset revalation resanves are nol transfamed to accumulated surplstdesoal) on derecognition of the relevant esset.

4.1.2 Fair value determination: Nen-financial physical assets
Significant judgrment: Fair value measirsments of assets and Tabilities

Fair vakie determination requines judgement and the use of assumplions, This section discloses the most signiicant assumptions used in determining fair values. Changes 1o assumplions could have a materal impact
on the resuits and financial postion of the Conporation.

Fair walue i the prica thal would be receiced to sell an assel or paid 1o transfer a Babilty in an orderly ransaction betwean markel participants al the measuremeant dabe.

Consistent with AASE 13 Fair Vaiue Measuwremend , the Corparatian datenmines the polbcies and procedures Tor both recuring Eair vaks messurements such as infrasiruciure, proparty, plant and equipment, financial
Insirusments and for non recuering Eair valee measurements swech as assets held for sale, in accordance with the requirements of AASE 13 and the relevant Financial Reporting Directions.

Fair valire hiscarchy

Al assets and Babilities for which far value is d or disclosad in the ial slal s are cabegorised within the fair value Reranchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level inpul that is sigrificant
to the Eair value messurement a8 & whoba:

- Lewel 1 — Quoled (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for dentcal assels of kabiites
- Lewel 2 — Valuation techniques. for which the kowest level input that & significant to the fair value measuremant s directly or indirectly obsenvable; and
Lewel 3 — Valuation techniques Tor which the lowest level input thal i significant 1o the fair value measuremend is unobsencable.

For the purpose of fir value disclosures, the Corporation has defermined classes of assets and abilies on the basis of the nature, characieistics and risks of the asset or Babilty and the level of the fair value
hiararchry as explained above.
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Non-financial physical assets

?ﬂi walue measurement hierarchy for assets as at 30 June 2018

Carrying amount

Fair vahe measurement at end of reporting peniod using:

as at 30 June 2018 Level 1 () Ll 2 (i) Lewed 3 ()
F000 000 5000 5000
Land af fair value
Mon-speciaised kand 5458 1] 5,459 o
ialisod land 24,420 0 _o 24,420
Total of kand al Fair vake 28 878 [1] 5,458 24 420
Buikdings af fair valwe
Non-5 oulidi 3254 '] '] 3,254
Total of buildings at fair value 1354 [] [1] 3254
Water infrastructure &l fair valus
Resorvoirs and weirs BaB0T2 L] 0 98,072
Tunmnsks 54 228 1] a 54,228
Irrigation channets and pipes 184,404 ] 0 184,404
limigation draing 45,893 1] Q 45,603
I structures. meters and 209,791 ] 1 208,71
Tobal of waler infrasireclure o kair value 1,192 488 [1] [4] 1,192 488
Machinery, Bttings and egquipment al fair value
Machinery and tools 424 0 0 424
Compiter equiprent 822 L] 1] or7]
Fusmiture and it 469 Q Q 458
Total of machinery, Mings and equipsent o1 tar vake 1,814 0 0 1,614
Motor vehicles and plant at Tair valus
Maotor vehickes 2510 L] 1] 2510
Plant 513 '] 0 513
Tatal of matar vethicles and plant at fair value 3023 [] a 3,023
‘Fair value measurement hierarchy Tor assets as at 30 June 2017 Carrying amount  Faif vale measurement al erd of [eporing pedicd using.
as at 30 June 2017 Level 1 ([ Level 2 ([ Level 3 @)
000 5000
Land al fair value
Mon-spaciaksed kand 5459 1] 5,459 v]
Specalsed land 24.420 ] 1] 24420
Total of kand At fair vake 20,870 1] 5459 24,420
Buildings at Fair valse
Non-specialised bulldi 3553 '] '] 3553
Tatal of buildings at fair value 1553 [] [1] 3,553
Water infrastiuciure al Tair value
Reservoin and weirs 696,748 ] 1] 606,748
Tunmnéls 54,301 L] a 54,301
Irigation channets and pipes 177,758 ] 1] 177.758
Irrigation drains 46,345 1] a 46,345
Irrigaticn structures. meters and pumps 210,883 L] a 210,683
Total of wales infrasireciure o tair value 1,185,835 1] 4] 1,185,835
Machinery, Bitings and equiprment al fair value
Machinery and tooks 485 ] 0 495
Compuies quipamant 514 0 0 514
Fusniture and fittings 516 ] 1] 518
Total of meachinery, Wings Brd eqUIpTsen 81 tair vake 1,524 0 0 1524
Muolor vehicles and plant al Tair value
Mator vehickes 2462 L] 1] 24682
Piant 549 0 0 549
Tatal of motar vehiches and plant at fair valse 011 [] [1] 3011
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Motes:
(i} Classified in accordance with the lair value hierarchy, see Nobe 4.1.2

There have been no transfers between bevels during the period,
The Valuer General Victaria (VGV) is the Coporation’s independent valuation agency in relaion 1o valuation ol property, plant and equipment and inlrasiruciune.
The Corporation, in conjunction with VG, monitors changes in the fair value of property, plant and equipment and infrastneches through relevant data sources bo determine whither revaluation i requined,

Nar-specinized land

Far non speciaksed land, an indepandent valualion was perfarmed by e Valwar-Gensral Viclona (VGEV) o determins the kil value using the market approsch. Valstion of the assels was determined by
analysing comparabie salkes and allowing lor share, size, lopography, location and other rebevant factors specific to the asset being valued. From the sales analysed, an appropriate rale per squans metre o
per hectane has been appled 1o the subject asset. The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2016,

To tha extent that non-specialised land does not contain significant, unobsenvabile adjustments, these assets are classified as a Level 2 under the market approach.

Nan-speciatised buldngs

An independent valuaion of non-specialised buldings was performed by VGV and used depreciated replacement cost to estimate Tair value. The effective date of the valuation is 20 June 2018,

As depreciation adjustments ane considened as significant, unobsencable inputs in nature, the buildings are clrssified as Level 3 fair value measuremants,

Speciaized land

The market approach is akso wwed for specialized land, akhough ks adjusted for the community senvice obdgation (CS0) to reflect the speciaksed nature of the land beng vahsed.

The CSO adjustment is a relection of the valuer's assessmenl of the Impact of restrictions associaled with an asssl lo the exterd that is also equally applicable 1o markel paricipants, This appreach is in kght
of tha highest and best use consideration requined for fair value measurement, and takes into account the use of the asset that i physically possible, legally permissible, and financially feasible. Az
ndjustrents of C50 are considered as significant unobsencable inputs, spedalised kand is classiSed as Lovel 3 assols,

C50 adjustments to land vakes have taken inko account the planning restrictions apphying to their use, as well &s the restriciions and mpacts of the existence of water infrastructure essets (drains, channels
and resenoirs), bul not the value of those assets (which are separalely recorded as infrastruclune assels). In the case of kand used for reservoirs, the valuation performed by VGV recogrises an associalied
S50 by vahung land above the full supply kevel at 80% of swrounding land vales, and below the full supply bevel at 5% of adjacent tand walue,

An independent valuation of the Corporation’s specialised kand was performed by VG, The valuation was perfonmed wusing the market approach adjusted for G50, The effective date of the valstion is 30
June 2016,

Waler infrastructure

Watter infrastructure is valued using the depreciabed replacemant cost method. This cost represents the replacement cost of the asseticomponent afer applying depreciation rales on a usatul life basis.
Replacement costs relate fo costs to repiace the cument sendce capacity of the asset. Economic obeolescence has also been factored into the depreciated replacemant cost calculation.

Whera it has not been possibéa o examing hidden works such as structural frames and floors, the use of reasonalle materials and methods of construction have been assumed bearing in mind the age and
nature of the balding. The estimated cost of reconstruction includes structare services and finishes as applicable,

An independent valuaton of the Corporation’s water infrastructure was. performed by WGV, Water Infrastructure assets are valued by VGV at fair value. As the Coporation is categonsed as not-for-proft, fair value s sssessed as
depreciated replacemant cost. The effective date of the valuaion is 30 June 2016, Important aspects to this valuation approach were:

- Replacemant cos is d e on an “Chplii Modern Equivalent’ basis, This assessment calculates replacement cost by reference 1o the lowest cost at which the gross fulue
economic benefils of that asset could clrently be Sbiained, In Ihis way, value is not stiribuled 10 Sxcess capaety, over design of redundancy.
- Dep s calculated using a straight line methedology, and in crder to determine the depreciated walue, condifion nenis are used 1o calculate the ining useful kfe

As depreciation adjusiments ane conssdened as sigriicant, unobsenalbile inputs in nature, water infrastructure is classifed as Level 3 fair value measuremants,
Machinery. IlTings and eqrinment

Machinery, fttings and equipment ks held al fair value, When machinery, iftings and equipment is specialsed in use, such that it is rarely sokd other than as part of a going concern, kair vake is determined
using the depreciated replacemant cost mathod.

As deprecialion adjustments are considered as signiicant, unobsencable inputs in nature, machinery. fitings and equipment are classifed as Level 3 fair value measurements.
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Malor vehiches and planf

Vehicles are valued using the depreciated replacement cos! method. The Corporation acquires new vehickes and wsually dsposes of them belore the end of their economic e, The process of acquisiion, use
and dispasal in the market i managed by experienced fieet managers in the Corporation wha set relevant depreciation rabes during use to reflect the wilisation of the vehicles.

Plant is hedd at fair value. When plant is spocialised in use, such that it is rarely sold other than as part of a going concem, fair value is determined using the depreciated replacement cost method.
As depreciation adjustmsents are considered as signilicant, obsenable inputs in nature, motor vehicles and plant are classified as Level 3 lair value measurements.

Thare were no changes in valustion techniques throughout the pericd to 30 June 2018,

For all assets measured at fair value, the current use is corsidered the highest and best use,

Fair vale azsessments

The Corporation conducted fair value assessments at 30 June 2018 of all asset clrsses, with no material movement identiied since the 2017 valuations,

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

A reconcilation from the opaning balances to the closing balances for fair value measurements catagorised within Level 3 of the fair walue hararchy, disclosing seporately changes during
the period.

Raconciliation of Level 3 fair valus at 30 June 2018
Opening Disposals and
Assat typs Additic Transfers write-cff Depreciation) Impairman Revaluation Closing balance
Specialsed land ml 0 0| [0 u| 24 420
Hon-speciak 1331 [] j 3,254
Resanvors and weirs 4,945 0| (3.621) 0 £08 072
Tunnels ] 0 181 _0 0 E¥1)
Imigation channels and pipes 10,363 [0 (3.285) [ 0 184 404
Irrigation draivs [i] Eg '5% [1] 45,653
ITigation SITUCILNES. MELers and pumps 4, [ il i 208,701
Machinery and tooks FE] [} 04 0 [F)
Computer equpment Ba7 o] 0 77
Fumniture and fttings | 50 | a7 [i 459
Molor vehicles 1.1% i (422} (632) 0 2510
Plart 118 [RER| (141} EI 513
Reconcillation of Level 3 air value (3-000) at 30 June 2017
| Dizposals -1d| |

Asset yps Additio Transters wirite-off D Rewvaluation Closing balance
Specialised land [1] o 1] 24,420
Hon- ked 7 0 i 3553
Rasanoirs and weirs 7627 o [ GG, T48
Tunnils ]| o [{ 54 301
Irrigation channels and pipes 1,853 qi ) 0 177.758
Imgation draers 4 (515} g [T
Irrigation structunes, mesers and pamps. 4,281 (2,540} 0 210,683
Machinery and toos gl 2'.I_TI {1} [} 485
Computer equpment 210 [1] | 514
Fumniture and fttings lﬁ 329 [} [{ 516
Malor vehicles 1, [ (431} 0 2,462
_Plant of FEL | 26 | 548
Notes:
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Description of significant uncbservable inputs 1o Lavel 3 valuaticns (i}

Asset class Fair value at  Fair value at
30 June 2017 30 June 2018
[$°000) (§'000) Valuation technigue [il) Significant unobservable inputs (i}
Speclalised land 24,420 24,420 Market / Adjusted Community Senvice Obligaiion (S50}
adjustment to markel value
Non-specialised buildings {52) 3,553 3,254 Deprecialed replacement  Bulkding cosl, cost approach using best
cosl available evidence from recognised buliding
cost indicatons and of quanily Suneyors
and examples of current cost
Resarvoirs IJ-'i B50,748 851,285 Eq;wcilld replacement  Cost per resenaoin
(=0
Usarful e of resernvoirs
Weirs (8] 48,000 46,803 Depreciated replacement  Cost per weir
oSl
Useful He of weirs
Tunnels (3} 54301 54 728 Depreciated replacement Cost per funned
oosl
Usatul e of tunneds.
Irrigation channels 152 B35 140,640 Deprecialed repiacement  Gost par melne of chanmel
oost
Usaful e of imgation channets
Irrigation pipes 24 823

34,558 Depreciated reptacement  Cost par melre of ppeine
oDEl

Usetul e of imgation pipes

www.srw.com.au
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Description of signficant unobservable inputs to level 3 valuations (i}
Assel class ir value at air value at

30 June 20T 30 June 2018
[$°000) ‘000 Valuation technigue (i) Significant uncbservable inputs
Irrigation drains 46,345 45,003 Depreciated replacement  Cost per metne
i1

Usaful kfe of irigation drains

Irrigation sir ters and purm; 210,683 209,701 Depreciated repacement  Gosl per url
cost

Usalul Bfe of irmgalion structures

Machinery and tools 435 424 Depreciated replacement  Cost per unt

Usaiful ife of mackineny and tooks

Computar equipmant 514 7] Depreciated replacement  Cost per unit

Useful e of compuier equipmant

Furniture and fittings L3 485 Depreciated roplacemant  Cost per unit

Usaful bfe of fumiture and Bitings.

Motor vehicles 2462 2,510 Deprecialed replacement  Gosl per Uil

LUsaful ke af molor vehickes
Plant 545 513 Depreciated replacemant  Cost per unit
1]

Usah e of plant

Noles:
(i) These significant unobsenable inputs remain unchanged from 30 June 2017,
(i} listrations on the waluation techniques, significant unobsenvable inputs and the related quantitative range of those inputs ane indicative and should not be direcly used without consultation with VGV,
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d4.1.3 Dapreciation
Depreciation is distinguished by:
- regulabed mssel base: expandilune that is recoverable rom customens within prices. authorised by the Waler Industry Regulsieny Ovder; and
- cther assets: depreciation of sssels actuined or constructed prior to 1 July 2004, or assets furded directly by customers or gowermment contribution.
Al non-cument physical assets that have a finite usefu e are depreciated. Where assets have separate identifiable components. that have distinct useful Ives andior residual values, a sepamte depreciation rate is
determined for each component.
Physical essets with indefinite useful bves are not dapreciated, and this includes:
- slorage it
tunnels and ofher sxcavalions
irmgation channel excavation and base material; and
drain excavations,
Land is mot depreciated.
Muodor vehicles are depreciated on a diminishing balance basis, owver their estimated useful ife, commancing from the time the asset is held ready for e,
Depreciation of other assets is calculated wing the straight line method to allocabe their cost or revalued amounts, net of their residual valees, over their remaining estimated wseful ves, commencing from the
tirree the arssel i held ready for use, The assets residual values and uselul ves ane reviewed and adjusted il appropriale, al each balance date.

Lisahul Ives within each assel class are corsisbant with the previous year and fall within the Tollowing ranges:

|El.luﬂ'.lult [Periods
Buildings 10 to 50 years
Water Inlrastuchune
embankments 350 years
Storage spilkvays 100 years
Storage discharge control structures 180 years
|_Storage civl works 50 yoars.
Siorage mechamecal and ekecirical 25 years
[rrigation pipes 50 to 90 years |
Irrigalion siiechaes, melers and pumps 25 o 75 years
I on channels

Irrigation channel excavation and base maberial
Earthen slofsge embankments
Tunnesl and cther excavations
Drain excavalions

|Plani. equipment and ather
Machinery and To0k
B

| Computer aquipmednt
Fuanure and fittings
Mabor wakicles
Piant

The estimated usefd kves, reskdual values and degreciation method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting penicd, and adjustments made whete appropriate. [
Leasehold improvemaents ane depreciated over the shorer of the lease term and their wseful Fees.

fmpakment
Non-inamcal sssats, incuding fems of Property. Plant and Equipment, ane lested for impainment whenever there ts an indication thal the assel may be impained.

The assels concemed are lested as bo whether their carrying value excesds their recoverable amount. Where an assel's carmying valse excesds s recoverabls amount, the difference s written off,
excepd to tha extent that it can be debited to an asset revaluation suplus amount applicable to thal class of asset.

If there is an indication that theve has been a reversal in impairment, the carrying amount shall be increased to its recoverable amount. However this reversal shouid not increase the essel’s camying amount above
what would have been determined, net of depreciation or amoriisaion, if no impairment loss had been recognissed in prior years.

The recaoverable amount for most assets is measued af the higher of deprediated replacement cost and fair value less costs to sell, The recoverable amount for assets held primarily to generate net cash inflows is
measured at the higher of the present value of fulure cash flows expecled (o be oblained from the assel and fair value less cosls 10 Sell,
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2017-2018 20182017
5000 5000

4.1.4 Azsel write-offs
Aszsels fransismedivitien off
Wiitten down valse of transferred assets =] 1,038
Whitten down value of iransferred assels represents the transier of ownership of imgation drains 1o landholders & part of the Corporaion’s
nutrignt reducion actiities. Drains were transferred at no cost to landholders undier this program,
Witten down value of assets writhen off 1] 2,78
As assets, or companents of assels ane replaced, the Corporation charges the writhen down value of the replaced or scrapped asset 1o the
Comprehansie Operating Statemant within this category.
Total asset wrile-olfs &8 3EID
4.1.5 Net gain an disposal of mon- i
Thiz net gain on disposal of essets includes. the following specilic net gains and expenses:
Proceeds from sale of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 805 583
Written down value of disposed infrasirucire, propedty, plant and equipment (633) {6
Met gain an disposal of assets 172 127
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4.2 Intangible assets

Year ended 30 June 2018
AL July 2017

Additions

Transfer

Assals wiitlen off
Amortiabian

AL 30 June 2018

At 1 July 207

Cost (gross carrying amourd)
Accumulated amorisation

Met carrying amount

At 30 June 2018

Cost (gross carrying amourd)
Accumulaled amarisation

Mel carying amount

Year ended 30 June 2017
AL July 2016

Additions

Tranafer

Amuortisation

AL 30 June 2017

At 1 July 2018

Cost (gross camying amount)
Accumulated amorisation
MNat carmying amount

At 30 June 2017

Cost (gross camying amount)
Accumulaled amorisation

Met carrying amount
Recognilion

Implementation in
Software Waler allocation PrOgress Tatal
5000 5000 5000 5000
1,602 255 213 2,070
L] 1] B4 B4
124 ] (124) 0
0 (28) 1] (26}
(678} o 0 (676}
1,050 220 173 1,452
81z 255 213 8,500
(6.520) ] 1] (6.520)
1,602 255 213 2,070
8248 29 173 8,848
(7.196) o o (7.196)
150 = iz 1=

Implementalion in
Soltware Waler allocation prOgress Tatal
5000 §000 5000 5000
2 255 105 2471
0 1] 185 185
kel 1] m ]
(588} ] 1 (556}
1,602 255 213 2070
8,045 255 105 B.40%
(5.834) ] 1] (5.834)
2111 255 105 2471
8122 255 213 5,550
(8,520 o 0 18,5200
1602 255 213 2070

Intangibde assets represent identifiable non-maonetary assets withoul physical substance.
Purchased intangibde assets are initially recognised al cost. When the recogrition criteria in AASE 138 Intangible Asseds i met, internally generated intangible assets are recognised at cost. Subsequently, intangitée
assals with finibe useful Fves are caried al cosl less accumulated amortigation and accurmulated impairment losses. Depredation and amortisation begins when the assel i available for use, thal is, when i i in the

lecation and condion necessary for it 1o be capable of operating in the manner intended by managerment. JAASE 138.74-T5; FRD 1094)

An irlemally generated intangible asset arising from development {or Fom the development phase of an irternal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of ihe Tollowing are demansirated:
a) the technical feasibiity of comgleting the intangibls a=set o that i will be avalable for use of saks;
b) aninbention to complete the intangible asset and wse or sell it

€} the abilfy to use or sell the intangible asset;

d) the intangible asset will generate probable future economic banedfits;

&) the availabidity of adequate lechrical, financial and cther resources Lo complete the developrent and to use of sell he infangible asset; and
1 the abikty be measune relably the expenditune attibutable 1o the inangible asset duing its development. [AASE 138.57]
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20M7-2018 2082017

5000 5000

A summary of the polcies appled io the Corparation’s inlangible assals ks &s lollows:

Soltware
Useful Fves Firite _
Amorization method used 3 1o 10 years siraghl lne
Intarnally_gonerated ! scqueed Arquired Acquired
|impainmen assessment [ Recoverable amounl lesting Annially and where an indicabor of impairment exisls Annually tesbed and whera an indicator of empairment exisls
Water allocalion

The Corporalion holds a water alocalon within the Thomson Resansoir. This follows the purchase of 300001 of water alocation from Macalkster Irmgation District waler share owners in June 2018, The Minister
for Water assigned this water allccation of 3,0000L 1o City West Wialer and Western Water for storage undil the Corporation disects the delivery of the watber,
Thiz water allocation was acquined by the Corporation to enable the sale of new water allocations o Werribes and Bacchus Marsh irmgators.,

Amortization

Charge far the period

- Software 676 588
Total amortizion 676 586

Intangible assets with finite useful fves are amoriised a5 an expense on a systematic basis (typically siraight-ine), commencing from the Bme the assel is available for use, The amortisation periods are reviewed and
adjusted il appropriale sl each balance date. Inlangible assats with indafinite usebul ves are ol amontised. However, all intangible assets are assessed for impainment annually as outlinsd bakow,

Impairmend of infangible 0s5eis

Intangible essets with indefnite useful lves (and intangible sssets not yet avallable for use) ane tested annually for impainment and whenever there is an indication that the ssset may be impaired,
Intangible assets with finite useful Fves are lested for impairment whenever an indicalion of impairment is identified

Thia policy in connaction with testing for impairment is outined in section 4.1.3.
421 Intangible azsel write-offs

Wiliitlen down value of inlangible assets wiitlen off 26 1]

The Corporation halds a waber allocalion within the Thomson Resendoir, This waler allocalion was assigned lo City Wiest Water and Western
Water in 2015-18, The Corporation has assessed the currend holding of this allocation, and has writlen down the value of waler allocation lost.

Total intangible asset write-offs F [1]
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2017-2018 2016-2017
5000 5000

& Dther assets and Rabilities
This section sets out those assets and abilties that arose from the Corporation's operations and the delivery of services.
Structure
51 Receivables
5.1.1 Movement in the provision Tor impaired receivables
5.1.2 Ageing analysis of contractual receivables
52 Payables

5.2.1 Ageing analysis of contractual payables
53 Fair walue detenmination of Bnancial assets and labililies

51 Receivables

Contracieal

Trade receivables 3,418 2,584
Provision for impained receivables (B3 (133
Accrued income 2514 2114

Statutory
GET Input tax crodit receivablos 1,082 16

Taotal current recelvables 6,909 5181

Tolal recelvables 6,909 £ 181

Receivabdes consist of contracheal receivables. such 83 deblors in relation to goods and services, and accrued service and usage charges. They are initially recognised at fair walue plus any directly attributalbie transaction costs.
Subsequent to intial measwement they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, kess any impairmant. Trade receivables are due for settlement no mare than 28 days from the date of recognition
Tor waler wility deblors, and no more than 28 days for obher deblons.

Conlractual recaivables ane classiied as financial instruments and calegorised as loars and receivables.
Accrued income consists of revenus sarmed during the firancial year in relation to vasiable usage charges in the Corporalion's irfigation districts, This revenue is biled early in the next financial year,
a1 Movemnent in e provision for impaived recelvables

As at 30 June 2018, current receivables of the Corporation with a nominal value of $102,688 were impaired. The fotal value of the provision for impaired receivables i 5132718, which includes a $30,050 general provision
for the non-recoveny of unspecified customer debl,

Movement in the provision for impaired receivables

‘Balance at beginning of the year 133 133
Provision for impained receivables recognised during the year a a
Receivables writlen olf during the year s uncollectible {3n o
Unused amount reversed {13 ']
Balance at end of the year B3 133

Recedrables are essessed for bad and impaired receivables on a regular basis. & provision for impaired receivables is recognised when there 5 objective evidence that the debts may not be collected and bad debis are writlen
off whan identified. In assessing impaimmeant of statlory (non-contractual) Snancial assets, which are not financial instruments, professional judgement is applied in assessing materalty using estimales, averages
and other computational methods in accordance with AASE 136 Impaiment of Assels |

A provision is made for estimated irrecoverable amounts from the sale of goods when there s objectve evidence thal an individual recerable B impained. The increass in the provision for the year is recognised in
thix nt result,

Bad debts considered as wiitten off by mutual corsent are classified as a transaction expense. Bad debts not wiitien off, but included in the proavision for empained recelvables, ans classiied as other economic flows in
ther net resull,
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512 Agweing analysis of contractual receivables

Thiz ageing of these receivables is a5 Tollows:

Pasl due bul not
Mol past dus and
Carrying amount Less than 1 marth 1-2 mants 3 monthe - 1 year 1-5 years
not imipained

ELLEY| 5000 £000 51000 Foog]
2018
Sale of goods and serdoes 1423 a1 281 136 1,899 428
Diber receivables 0 0 0 o 0 0
Total 3423 881 201 138 1,690 [F
207
Sabe of goods and sendces 2,884 B4 121 2 1.805 842
Oiber receivables 0 0 0 o 0 0
Total 7,884 7] 121 232 1,605 B

Mo inlerest s charged for the first 28 days from the imvoice dabe, Thereafler, inberes! is changed al 8.1 par cent on the oulstanding balance, The average credil period for sales of goods / serdces and for obher
recedvables i 28 days. Thers ane no material financial assets that are individually determined to be impaired.

Past dus but not impaired trade recelvables relate to & number of independent custcmens for whom there s no recent history of default. Excluding a small ramber of recycled waler charges,
the Corperation's credit fisk Tor waber cuslomers is mitigated by the Water Acf 1859, where cutsianding trade receivables are secured by a charge agains! the associated kand or water shade,
Thi Corporation considers that undarhying land and waler share assets within each imigation district provide adequate market value 1o support cur trade receivable balance.

The oller amounts within receivables do nol contain impained assels and ane nol past due. Based on credil hslony, it is expected that these amounts. will be receved when due.

These are no financial assets thal have had their terms renegatiated 50 a8 o prevent them fram being past due or impained, and they are stated at the carmying amounts as indicated.

2017-2018 2E-2017
§'000 5000

52 Payables
Contracival
Trade credtons 8891 6534
Delerred revenue * 240 137
Advances for capital and other works 132 138
Statutory
Fringe Benalits Tax payabie 5 105
Total current payables 9,158 6914
Total 5 9,158 6,914

* Deledred revenue balance represents our estimate of unearmed income Trom our Licensing Applications business, which will be recogrised as income as applcations are completed.

Payabdes consist ol

- contractual payables, classiled as financial instruments and measured at amortised cost. Trade creditors rpresent Eatilties for goods and senvices provided to the Corporation prior to the end of the financial
year thal afe unpaid; and

- statulary payables., thal are recognised and measised similaiy o conlraciual payabies, but ae ol classibed as inancial instruments and not included in the category of Tinancial kabiltes at amonised cost, because
thery do not anse from contracts.
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521 Ageing analysis of contraciual payables

Waturily cates
Carrying amount | Mominal amount | Lees than 1 manth 1-3 monthe 3 manths - 1 year 15 yoars S+ years
5000, s000] 000 5000, so00| $000) |
2018
Supplies and senvices 9063 9,083 9,043 20 Q o Q
Other payables 1] o o o a o o
Total 0,063 9,083 9,043 20 0 0 0
2017
Supplies and services 5,806 5,806 6,767 42 Q o Q
Other payables o 1] o o a o o
Tolal 6,800 6,800 8,767 [F] 0 0 0
53 Fair value determination of financial assets and liabilitfes

Thi fair values and nat fair values of finandial assels and kabiltios are delermined as follows:

- Lawal 1 - the fair value of financial instrumant with standard tenms and conditions. and traded in active Bquid markets ane defermined with reference to quoted market prices;
- Level 2 = the fair value is determined using inpuls other than quoted prices that ane obsernvable for the nancial asset or Bability, either directly or indirectly; and

- Lewel 3 — the fair value ks determined in accordance with genarally accepled pricing modals based on discounted cash flow analysis using unobsenable market inputs.

The Corporation currently holds a range of firandal instrurmants that are recorded in e Bnancial Slatements wherne the carmying amounts ane A reasonable approximation of tair value, aither due bo their short-term
nature of with the sxpactation that they will be paid in full by the end of the 2018-19 repoding period,

These financial instruments includea:

[Financial azsets Faancial habilses
Cash and deposits Payables:
Receiables: For supplies and services
|Sale of goods and services Amaunts payabie o government and agencies
Other receivables Other payables
Tarm deposits Interest bearing Iabifties:
Bank overdraft

Due to the short-term nature of the finandcal essets and kabilities held by the Corporation, thelr camying vales 8 assumed to approximeate thedr fair valse.
The Corporation’s financial assets and Eabilities are classified as Level 1 under the fair value hierarchy, apart from receivables and payables, which are classified s Lovel 2 undor the fair valse hierarchy,
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How woe financed our operations.
Introducton

This section provides information on the sources of Snance ulilised by the Corporation during s operations, alang with interes? expenses (the cost of borrowings) and other informatian related to financing activities
ol the Canparation.

This section includes disciosunes of balances that are financial instruments (such as bomowings and cash balances). Note 7.1 provide additional, specific financial instrument disclosures.
Structure

6.1 Interest baaring Rakilties
6.1.1 Malurity analysis of inerest bearing Iabiites
6.1.2 Inferes! experse
8.2 Cash flow information
6.2.1 Reconciliation of ned result 1o cash flow from operafing activities
6.2 2 Financing facilithes.
6.3 Commitments for axpenditure
6.3.1 Total commitrmants payable
5,32 Capital commitrments

6.1 Interesl bearing liabilities

Current interest bearing liabilities

Treasury Comporation of Victorka (TCV) - Linsecured 3930 3,830
Total current intenest bearing liabilities 3,930 3,630
Non-current

Treasury Comporation ol Victoka (TCV) - Unsscured 24,540 17,670

Total nen-current interest bearing liabilities 24540 17.670
Total interest bearing liabilities 2B.AT0 21,800

Interest bearing kabidities ane initially recognised al the fair value of the consideration recened kess directly altributable transaction costs. Inlenest bearing Eabifties ane subsequently measunsd ab amanised cosl.
Any differsnce batween the iniial amount recognised (net of transaction costs) and the redempion amawt is recognised in the Comprehensive Opermting Statemant over the paricd of the interest bearing abiities, using the effective interest method.
Interest bearing Eabilities ane classified as curment iabdliies wnless the Corporation has an uncondiioral right to defer setthement of the Eability for &l keast 12 months afler the balance date.

Current inberest bearing kabilties are all hald with TCV, either as:
= An e’ al call debl Tacility which has no fxed lerm lo maturity
- Fixed - Semi Annual Credit Foncier faciities with repayments of inberest and principal twice annually
- Fined - Rate tacility with repayments of interest twice annually and a final 52.5m maturity in June 2018

Maon-current inberest bearing kabilties are all held with TGV, either as:
- Fixed - Semi Annual Credit Foncier facility with repayments of interest and principal (5130k) twice annually and a final 53.18m maturity in June 2020
- Fiwed - Sewmi Annual Credit Foncler facilty with repayments of interest and principal (5210k) twice annualy and a final $2.14m maturity in June 2021
- Fixed - Sermi Annual Credil Foncier Tacilty with repayments of inlenest and principal (S50k) twice annually and a final $2.60m maturity in June 2022
- Fixed - Seamd Annual Crec Foncler facility with repayments. of interest and principal (575k) twice annually and a final 52.5m matuity in June 2023
- Fiked - Semi Annual Credil Foncier facility with repayments of inlerest and principal (S25K) twice annually and a final $0,83m maturity in Jure 2024
- Fixed - Semi Annual Crodit Foncier facilty with repayments of interest and principal ($50k) twice annually and a final $0.44m maturity in June 2025
- Fixed - Raabe facility with repayments of interest bwice annually and a final 51.5m maturily in June 2025
- Fixed - Semi Annual Credit Foncier faciity with repayments of interest and principal ($50k) twice annually and a final $2.20m maturity in June 2026
- Fixed - Semi Annual Credil Foncier facility with repayments of interest and principal ($75K) twice annually and a final $1.50m maturity in Jure 2027
- Fixed - Seamd Annual Crect Foncier facility with repayments of interest and principal (350k) twice annually and a final 52.00m maturity in Jus 2028

These debl taciiies are provided by TCV consistent with the Financial Accommodation issued by the Treasurer of Victorda to the Corporation, in accordance with section B of the Borrowing and fmvesfrment
Fonvers Act 1887 .

Thiz borrowings are not directly secured by assets of the Corporation but have the benefit of the Treasurer's guarantes to TGV dated 25 Apeil 2002
The borrowings are in Austrakan dolans and accordingly the Coporation does not face a foreign exchange sk in relation 1o thess balances,
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&1.1 Maturity analysis of interest bearing Nabilities

Moty diales
Carrying amount | Nominal amount 1-3 monlhs 3 months - 1 year 1 - 5 years 5+ years
$000 $000 $000 51000 §000 $000
28470 20226 T15 3215 14,420 10,120
Treasury Conporation of Viclona (TCV) 21,800 22,750 565 3,385 11,400 6,570
201M7-2018 20182017
§'000 5'000
8.1.2 Inferast expense
Cahar infarest axpensa T 54
Financial sccommodation levy 267 M
Tolal interest expense 1,067 1,025

Interest expanse inchsdes costs incurred In connection with the borrowing of funds. Interest costs include interest on bank overdrafts, short tenm and long term borrowings, amcrtisation of discounts. or premiumes

redating bo barrowings, finandal accommodation bevy and fnance lease charges,
Interesl expanse i recogrsed in the penod in which it i incurred.
B2 Cash flow information

Cash and deposits, including cash equivalents, comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, deposits at call and those highly bquid investmants with an original maturity of three months or less, which ane held

for the purpose of mesating shor-term cash commitrnents rather than for investment purposes, and which ane readily convertible to known armounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

For cash fiow statement peesantation purpeses, cash and cash equivalents include bank overdralts, which are included 8s curment borrowings on the balance sheet, &s indicated in the reconciliation below.

Cash on hand 2 3
Cash al bank 2,807 2,109
D al call 3622 5351
Balance as par cash flow staternent 6,531 7463
621 Reconciliation of nel resull fo cash flow from operating activities
Nat loss for the pericd before income tax {9,968) (11,456)
Non-cash movements:
Depreciation and amortisation 15,004 14,722
Imipainment Q o
Gain on sale of fixed assots 17y {127)
Wiritten down value of translenmed assels a 1,033
Wiitton down value of destroyed, lost or de-commissioned assets 124 2,781
Movements in assets and labilities:
INCrease in invenioncs (1) L]
IncreaseiDecraase) in cument recivables (943) 372
Dwcreass in other curment essets 125 8
Increase in provision for employes benslits 179 7
IncreasaiDecrease) In payables 180 204)
Net cash flows from operating activities 4,608 TA54

Balances reporied in the 2016-17 Annual Financial Stalements have been re-stated so thal Nel cash flows from operaling aclivities is reported comectly as 57,154k (2018-17: 14 458K), which agrees with the reported balance in the Cash Flow Statement.

The following non-cash movements were re-siated: Criginal amaount

Impaimment
Wiritlon down value of transTemed assets.
Wiritten down value of destroyed, lost of de-commissioned assets
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201T-2018 20182017
5000 5000
622 Finaneing facilities
Unzecured bank overdraft facility, reviewed Ity and payable at call
Amount used o 1]
Amount umsed 2 :
Total ] ]
Unsecured loan facilities with various maturity dates through to 2018-19 and which may be
Amount used 28470 21,800
ol g 8230 5,150
Total 6,700 27,
6.3 Commitments for expenditure

Commilments Tor filure expandiure include Oparating and Cagpilal comemitments arising from contracts. Moles 5.3.2 and 8.2.1 provide details on Capial and Envireamental commitments, respectively.

Thise comimitments are recordied below at their nominal value and inclusive of GST. These future expenditures coase to be disclosed as commitments once the related Eabilities ane recognised in

the Balance Sheel.
£.2.1 Total commitments payable

Nominal Amounts: 2018 Less than 1 year 1 to § years Crver § years. Tatal

§000 5000 000 §000
Qparating and lease commitmants payabie 2,388 4858 808 15,296
Total commitmants (inclusive of GET) FETT] 4,858 8,109 15,396
Lows GST recoverable 27 445 ke 1,400
Total iments [exciutive of GET) 2172 4453 7372 13,508
Namiral Amounts: 2017 Less than 1 year 1 to S yoars Croar § yoars. Tatal

§000 5000 000 000
Oparating and lease commitments payabhs 1407 1.040 3 2470
Total commitments (inclusive of GST) 1,407 1,040 3 ZATD
Less GST recoverabla 128 95 2 225
Total commitmaents (exclusive of GST) 1,279 945 il 2,245

&.3.2 Capital commitmenis

Capital commitrents anising from contracts. These commitments ane recorded below at their nominal valee and inchusive of GET, These future expenditures ceased 1o be disclosed as commilments cnce the related

liabilities are recogrised in the Balance Sheet.

2098 Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years Croar § yoars Tatal
S000 5000 000 000
Capital expendiise commitments payabilk 16,043 16822 0 10,885
Tolal commitments (inclusive of GST) 16,043 3622 0 18,565
Less GST recoverable 1458 320 0 1,788
Tolal commitments (exclusive of GST) 14,585 3.293 [] 17 877
w7
Capital expendire commitments payable 3077 2 0 3,188
Tolal commitments (inclusive of GST) 3077 ] 0 3,166
Less GST recoverabds 280 8 L] 288
Total commitments (exclusive of GST) 2,797 [ 0 2878
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T Risks, contingencies and valuation judgements
The Corporation is exposed to risk from its activites and outside factors, In addition, # is often necessary to make judgements and estimales associated with recogniion and measuremaent of Bemes in the Snancial
stalements. This section sets out inancial instrurment speciic information, (including exposures 1o financial risks) as well 83 those ilems that are contingen in ralure of require a high kevel of judgermeant bo be applied,
which for the Corporation related mainly for fair value determinaticon.
Structure
71 Financial instruments specfic disclosures
T.1.1 Financial instruments: Categorisation

7.1.2 Financial risk managemant objectives and policies
T2 Contingant assets and contingent kabelties

T Financial instruments specific disclosures
Introdiction
Financial instruments arise oul of conlraciual agreements that give rise Io a inandal assel of ene entity ard a financial Eability or equity insinement af another entity.
Catepories of fnancial instruments
Loans and recelvables and cash are financial instrument assets with fiwed and determinabde payments that are not quoted on an active market. These assets and labilities are intially recognised at fair value
plus any directly attibutable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial measurement, loans and receivables are measuwed al amortised cost using the effective interest method (and for assets, kess any impairment].
The Corporalion recogrises the folowing assets in this calegory:

- eash and deposits

- mecaivables (exchading statutory receivables).
Financial kabilities al amartised cost are initially recogrised on the date they are originated. They are initially meagured al fair value plus any directly atiribulable rangaction cosls, Subsequent 1o initial recognition,
these financial instruments are measwed ol amorized cost with any difference bebween the initial recognised amaunt and the redemplion value being recognised in profit and loss over the petiod of the interes! bearing
linbslity, using the effective interest rate method. The Corporation recognises the following Eabiiies in this category:

- pirpables (exchuding statutory payables), and

- borowings (inchsding Sinance |ease Eakslites),
Daerecognition of financial assets
A financial assel (or, whene applicable, a part of a financial asset or pant of a group of similar financial assets) s derecogrised when:

= the rights 1o receive cash Bows from the assel have expired; of

- the Corporation retains the right to receive cash flows from the assel, but has asswmed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through' amangement: o

- thee Corporation has transfemed its rights to recaive cash flows from the asset and either:

- has transfemed substantially all the risks and rewards of the ssset; of
- has neither trarsfarmed nor retained sukstantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Corporalion has neither trarsfemed nor relained substantzally all the fsks and rewards o transfermed control, the assel is recognised Lo the extent of the Corporation’s conlinuing imvolvement in the assel.
Impairment of Arancial assels
At the end of each reporting period, the Corparation assesses whelher there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of Bnancial assets is impaired. Al financial instrument assets, except those measured
at fair value Brough prodit of less, are subject to annual review lor impairment.
The allowance ks the difference betwesan the inancial asset’s carmying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective inberest rate. [AASE 13058 70 AASE 7.B5(0
In assessing impairment of statutory (non-contractual) financial assets, which ane not financial instrements, prafessional judgement is applied in assessing matedality using estimates, averages and other
computational methods in accordance with AASE 136 Impainment of Asseds . Impainmen] losses are recognised in the Comprehensive Oparating Siatement. Impalrment losses recognised in the Comprehansive
Cperating Statemant on equity instrumaents classified as available for sale are not reversed through the Comperehensive Operafing Statement.
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AR Financial instrumenis: Calegorisalion Conbractual Bnancial assels loans Confractual firancial abiites

Talal

and recelvables and cash at amortised cost
2ma 000 5000 000
Contractual financial assets
Cash assets and deposits al call 851 L1} 8,531
Receivables
Sale of goods and sandces 5,847 o 5847
Tolal contraciual linancial assels 12,378 [] 12,378
Contractual financial liabilities
Payables
Payables and accrualk o BA31 8831
Adwances for capital and other works 1} 132 132
Barrawings
Intarast baaring Eabditios a 28,470 28470
Total contractual financial liabilities [:] ar.533 a7,533
Caontractual inancial assets oans Contraciual inancial kabiities Tatal
and recetvables and cash af amortised cost
2T 5000 5000 000
Contractual financial assets
Cash assets and deposits at call T8 0 TA83
Receivables
Sale of goods and senices 4 B85S o 4 Bas
Tolal contractual financial assel 12,378 [1] 12,378
Contractual financial liabilities
Payables
Payables and accruals a BAT1 BET1
Advances for capital and olher works o 138 138
Borrowings
Interest bearing Eabilities a 21,900 21,800
Total contractual financial labilities [] 28,709 28,709

T2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Corporation’s activities expose it lo a varkety of financial risks: markel risk, credil risk and bquidity risk. This nole presents informabion aboul the Cosporation’s exposure bo each of these
risks, and the objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk.

The Corporation's Board of Directors has the overall responsibilty lor the establshment and oversight of the Corporation’s risk management Iramework. The Corporation’s overall risk
managament program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial parformance of the Corporaticn.  The Corparation
uses different methods 1o measure diflerent types of fk 1o which it i2 exposed. These methods include sensitivity anakysis in the case of inberest rale, and olher price risks and ageing
analysis for cradit risk,

Risk managemant is monitored by the Audit, Risk and Governance Committes under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Board provides written principles for overall risk
management, s well as policies covering speciic areas, such as credl sk, we of Gnancial instruments, and investment of excess Squidity.

Specifically, ine Corporation manages Tinancial sk by adoption af a Treasury Management Policy thal is consistent with Stale Govemnment Treasury Management Guideines. The Treasusy
Management Guidelines conform with the Bomowing and invesiment Powers Act (BIF Act] , which provides statutony corporations thelr autharity to borrow and Imvest.

DTF requirements diciate that all new borrowings must be approved by the Treasures of Victoria. Annually, a Financial Accommodation approval is provided by the Treasurer which is
consistent with the Corporation’s budget planning, and cash requiremants, At 1 July 2017, the Corporation held a Financial Accommaodation approval for $45, 70m of bomowings (1 July 2018
$27.05m of bomewings).

In accordance with OTF guidance, in order to minimise credit risk eoposune to the Corporation, the Treasury Management Polcy §mits investment of surplus funds to financial instituions
approved by DTF. During the 2017-18 financial year surplus. Tunds were invested with the National Austraka Bank and the Treasury Conparation of Viclorka only,

Crodli risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial koss 1o the Corparation as a result of a customer or courferparty 1o a financial instrument failing to meet its contractual obligations. Credd risk arises
principally from the Corporation’s recedvakies.

Thiz Corporation’s eaposune bo credit sk s influenced by the indwvidual characterstics of each customer. The receivable batance consists pencipally of imgation customers, lange
commercial and publc seclor erterprises supplied under a bulk enlilement order, as well as Stale Government depariments, Molwilhelanding the ongoing maritaring of these debls, the
Corparation considers recoveratsity as vimualy certain given covenants established by the Waler Act 7089, and the credit worthiness. of the State Govermnmment.

An analysis of the sgeing of the Corporation's recevables ol the reporting date has been provided in Nede 5.1
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Corporation will not be able 1o meet its financial cbbgations as they fall duee, The Corporation’s policy is o seltle inancial obbgations within 30 days and in the
event of dispute make payments within 30 days from the date of resolution,

The Corporation manages quidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking faciities and resenve borrowing facilties and by conineously monitoning forecasts and actual cash flows,
and matching the malusity profiles of inancial assets and francial kabsities, Annually, the Corporalion completes a Corporate Plan which includes financial estimates lar a fve year panad,
This plan incarporates a cashilow forecast that then faciitates. applcation to OTF for any necessary Financial Accommaodation. Financial Accommodation establshes the Comporation’s
approval bo establish bomowang faciBties, A1 30 June 2018, the Corporation had not accessed $8.22m (2017: $5.15m) of this Financial Accommodation.

In Bght of the Cosporation's planned Capital expendilure pragram, and our ongaing need for debt funding 1o suppedt his program, the Corporalion's ability to mest Eabilties as they Tall due is
redant upon the issue of & sutable Annwal Bormowing Approvad by the Treasurer.

The Corporation’s financial Babilty maturities have been dsclosed in Mobe 6.1,

Marked risk

Markat risk is the risk that changes in market prices will aflect the fair value or future cash fows of the Corporation’s financial instruments. Markel risk comprises of foreign sxchange risk,
interest rate risk and olher price risk. The Corporalion’s exposung bo markel sk is primadily through interest rate risk. There is no exposune (o foreign exchange rsk and insignificant kevel of
exposune o ofher price rsks,

Objectives, policies and processes used lo manage these risks ase disclosed In the paragraphs. below:

a. Interest rate risk

The Corporation's exposure fo marked interest rates relates primarily io the Corporation's funds imvesbed, and bormowed, with the Treasury Corporation of Viclora, Both investrmend of funds
and shodt-lem bormowings are held at vanabls marke! rales, The Conporaion’s non-cumant boimowings ane at fived inferest rabes.

The Corposalion has minimal expesure to inferest rate risk through its hokling of cash essets and other financial assels. The Corperation manages this fisk by mainlairing a conservative

imeestmant portfolio whereby vestment of surplus funds is restricted to DTF approved financial instruments that offer fied or Boating interest rates ted to prevailing market mies,
Interest rale sk on borrowed funds ls managed by enlering inlo debt iaclilies with a balanced temm profile 1o aveld a conceniration of maturities. In Ehis way, the Corporalion’s aggregate
intorest rate is an Average of recent market rates, which Bmits exposure 1o interest re-pricing in any one peviod.

b. Foreign exchange risk

The Corporation has no exposure io changes in the forelgn exchange rate,

e, Other price risk

The Corposalion has o significant exposure 1o clher price Hsk.

Marked risk sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis bekow has taken into conssderation past performance, fulure expectations, sconomic forecasts and managemsant's knowledge and expakence of the financal
markets. The Corporation baleves that a movement of 1% in interest rates is reasonable over the naxt 12 manths.

_ Interast rate Inderest rate risk sensithity
Weighled
30 June 2018 AVErage Flaating interest rate Fiwed inberest rabe | Mon-interest bearing| +1%  Result +1%  Equity -1%  Resull -1% Equity
Carrying interest rate % 5000 S000 000 $000 5000 5000 $000
[Financial Assels
Cash assets and deposits at call 853 251% 6529 0 2 65 85 85) (65)
Receivables 5,847 0 o 5,847 4] 4] 0 o
12378 8 o[ L BE ]| [1:1] &5
Financial Liabilities
Payables and acciuak 8931 0 o 8,931 o 0 o o
|interest bearing kabdities 28470 ITE% 0 28470 0 0 0 0 0
(Advances for capital and ather works. 132 0 o 132 o 4] 0 o
37,559 1] mﬂ‘ EX [ [ [ [
Totai 25.155) 553 28470 E214)] & | 5l iE5)
[+] amount | Inderest rate risk sensithity
WergHied U ey
30 June 2017 AVErage Flaating Inberest rate Fioed inberest rabe | Mon-interest beaning| +1%  Result +1%  Equity 1% Resull 1% [Equity
Carrying smount | interest rate % 000 5000 000 5000 000 S000 $000
([Financial Assers
Cash assets and deposits al call 7463 251% 7460 0 3 75 5 75| 75
Receivablos 4,855 0 0 4,865 o _a o _o|
12,328 7,460 [ 4,868 75 75 75} 75}
Financial Liabilities
Payables and accruals 8,809 o o 6,809 o Q o o
Inberest bearing Rabdities 21,900/ 4.68% 0 21,900 0 ] kL] (39) (35)
Achvances for capital and other works [1] a 0 a 0 ﬁ?l a L]
%ﬁ ] F] 5,50 EE
[Total (16.381) 7,460 1941 L 3 |

www.srw.com.au

Southern Rural Water Annual Report 2017-18



7.2 Contingent assets and contingant labilities

Confingent assets and confingent liabiities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet, but are disclosed by way of a note and, if quantifiable, are measured at nominal value, Confingent assets and Babilities are presented
inchsive of GST recetvable or payable respeciively.

Contingent assets

Confingent assets are possible assets that arse from past events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the cocumence or non-pecurence of one of more wncertain fulure events not wholly within the control of the entity,

The Corporation has no contingent assets al 30 June 2018 (2017 nil)
Contingent liabilities
Confingen] kabilities ane:
+ possible obligations that arise from past events. whose existence will be confiemed only by the ccowmence of non-pccurrence of cne or more uncertain fubure events not wholly within the control of the entity; or
« present obligatians that arise om past events bul are nol recognised because:

-t is nof probable that an outflow of resources embodying ecanomic banafits will be required to settie the obligations; or

= he amount of the cbligations cannol e measured with sufficient reability. |
The Corporation has no contingent Babilties at 30 June 2018

Contingent liabiities sl 30 June 2017
Marri River

During 2015, the Cormporation received an injury claim for damages that cccurred 8t Jubiles FPack, Woodford (Morth of Wanmambool). The Cosporation ks one of seven respondents. Whils the Corparation is
unaible to refiably estimate the Snandal effect, if any, which may adse from this matber, an adverse judgement is Emited by an insurance deductible of 550,000,
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8, Statutory obligations
Intreduction
The section included dsclosures in relation lo the Corporation’s statutory obligalons,
Structure
BA Tax

B.1.1 Income tax
8,12 Deferred tax assets and labilties

B2 Emvirenmental contribution

B.2.1 Envirgnmantal commitmant
B3 Dividends
8.1 Tax

811 Income fax
The Corporation is subject to the Mational Teax Equivalent Regime (NTER), which is adminstered by the Ausiralian Taxation Offica.

The income Lax expense of revenue for the perod ks the sxpected tax payable or receivabls on the current perod’s taxable income based on the natonal corporabe income tax rate of 30%, adjusted by
changes in defermed tax assets and kabilities atiributable to lemporary differences betwean the tax bases of assets and labiltes. and their canmying amounts in the financial stalements. and to unused tax lsses.

Income statement

Cument tax 4] 4]
Mowament in defermed tax 2.983) (3.485)
E.E; E E
Tax reconciliation
Met resull bafora incoma tax {9.968) (11,456)
Tax at the Australan tax rabe of 30% (2017: 30%) [2,5950) {3,449
Tax affect of amounts which ane not deductible in calculating tacable income
Sponsorships and entertainrment 7 9
Adjustrment in respect of income tax of previous year Q (48]
Incomi 12 revenise E.E; 3 ﬁi
Income tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Nt gain on revalmation of inlrastreches, property, plant and equipment Q o
It of infraxstructute, property, phant and equipment —_— — 35578
Income ta revenue (sxpense) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income at the Australian tax mbe of 30% (2017; 30%) (70 (10,763
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812 Dwfarred fax assets and Habilities

Daferred tax assets and iabiites are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to apply when the assets are recoversd or liabiities are settied, based on those tax rates which are

enacted of substanSally enacted, The relevant lax rates are appled to the cumulative amounts of deduclible and taxable lemporary differences 1o measune the defermed lax assel or iability. No defermed lax assel
or Eability is recognised in relation to these temporary differences if they arose in a rarsaction that at the time of the fransaction did not affect either accounting profit or taxable profit or loss. Defermed tax assets

are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax lsses only il @ is probable thal luture tacable amounts will be available to uliise those lemporary differences and ksses.
Thiz Corporation's delamed tax kabilities exceed the level of defered e assets and therelore a net deferred tax liabdity has been disclosed in the Balance Sheet.

Dwterred tax assels
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable fo:
Employes entitlemeant provision 1535 1,546
Benafit of canmy fonward tax losses 116,106 116,285
117641 117,841
Oiffsed against defered lax abdilies (117 E41) (17.841)
[] 1]
Deferred tax Rabilities
Thi balance comprises temporary differences attributabie to:
Cumulalive depreciation and amorisation 83,961 a7, 144
Rewanue in advance L] Q
Ned gain on revalsation of infrastructure, property, plant and equiprmant 239,517 239,707
Ciftset from deferred tax assets (117.641) (117.841)
215,857 219,010
Maovement in deferred tax liabilithes
Carrying amount 1 July 216,010 233,289
Debited ta olher comprehensive income (170} {10,783)
Dwebited to the et result 54 405
215,857 218,010
B2 Environmental contribution
‘Environmental contribution levy [ET] 473

Thix Wader indusiry (Environmental Contributions) Act 2004 (the Act) amended the Water fndustry Adl 1984 to make provision for envircnmantal contributions to be pakd by water authorifies. The Act establshes an obligation for authorities

o pay inbo 8 consolidated furd annual contributions for the first period, from 1 Oclober 2004 to 30 June 2008 in accordance with the pre-established scheduls of payments, which sets out the amounts payable by each Corporation.

The contribution period has been extended until 30 June 2020,

The purpase of the enviranmental contribuion is sef out in the Acl, and the funding may be used for inanding initiatives that seek fo promote the sustainable management of waler or address waler-related iniiatives,

Thi Corporation has a statutory obligation to pay an envirenmaental contribution 1o the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning. This coniribution is recogrised as an expense during the reporting period as incunmed,

a1 Emvironmental commitmant
At 30 June 2018, the Corporation had an sutstanding envirenmental contribulion commitmant, to be paid as follows:

Less than 1 year 1 to § years. Qvir & yoars Taotal
2018 $000 $000 §000 $000
Emironmental contribution lewy 541 541 [1] 1,082
Total commitments (inclusive of GST) 541 541 1] 1,082
Less G5T recoverabde 0 [} Q o
Total commitments (exclusive of GST) 541 541 1] 1,082

8.3 Dividends

An oblgation to pay a dividend only arises afber consuliation with the portlolo Minister and the Treasuner and a formal detenmination i made by the Treasurer. A the date of this repart. the Corporation does not expect 1o pay

a dividend in respect of the 2017-18 inandial year,
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9 Gther disclosures

This saction includes additional material disclosures reguired by asccounting standands of othensise, for the understanding of this financial report.

Structure

8.1 Equity
0.1.1 Coniributed capial
§.1.2 Asset revaluaion reserve
8.1.3 Accumulated surples
8.2 Evenis ooccuring afer the balance date
B2 Responsible: parsons.
0.4 Redated parties
9.5 Remuneration of executives
L] Remuneration of auditors
ar Ex-gratia expense

9.8 Australian Accounting Standards issued that are not yet effective

8.1 Equity
8.1.1 Comiributed capital

Contributed Capital
Balance at 1 July

Capital trans:actiors with the State Government in it capacity 85 owner ansing from:

Contribution - Macakster Irigation System (MID2020 Phase 1b project)

Contribitian - Waribse lirigaton System (Moderrisatian peoject)

Contribution - Bacchus Marsh lrigation System (Modemisation project)

Balance 30 June

416,718 409,220

12,750 3600
2,000 2,750
1,370 1,168

412 8538 416,738

Additions to net assets thal have been designated as conbributions by owners ane recognised as contributed equity. Other transfers that are in the nature of conlributions. or distributions: (capital repatriation) have been recognised s contributed equity.

2.1.2 Assel revaluvation resene

Assel revalualion resene

Agsel impairment

Assel impairrent and wilte-olf - tax (a1 30%)
Ravaluation increment on non-curment assats
Clesing balance

8.1.3 Accumulated surplus

Accumulated surplus at beginning of reporting period
Me resull for the period
Accumulated surplus at end of reporing period

8.2 Events occurring after the balance date

201718
Land Buidings Water Infrastnucture Total
5000 5000 5000 000

14,764 1721 541,212 557 847

0 0 (5E8) (558)

o o 170 170

0 o D 0
14,764 1721 540814 557269

201617

Land Buidings Water Infrastructure Tolal

£000 5000 £000 000

14,764 1,721 566,307 562882

o ] (35.978) {35.978)

0 o 10,793 10,793

0 ] b 0

4764 7721 EIFIF; 557687
26,267 34277
- )11}
19,282 26,267

Mo matters of crcumstances have arisen since the end of the reporing period which significantly affecled or may significantly alfect the sperations of the Cerporation, the results of those operations, of the slate of altairs

of the Conparation in future financial years.
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9.3 Responsible parsons

In accardance with the Ministerial Directions issued by the Minster for Finance under the Financisl Management Act 1094 , the Tolowing disclosuses are made regarding responsible persons for the repodting period.

Thiz responsibls Minister during the 201 7-18 reposting pedicod was the Hon Lisa Meville MP, Minister for Water, Remuneration paid to the responsible Minister ts shown in the Snancial statemants of the Department of Pasiiamentary Services,
The: names of persans who were direclons of Gippsland and Southem Rural Wister Corporalion al ary lime during the financial year are as folws,

Narre Title Peviod of appointment during the 2017-18 reporting period
Mambers of Corparation Board:

Ms D James AM Chairman 1 Oclober 2017 to 30 June 2018
Ms D James AM Deputy Chalsman 1 July 2017 to 30 September 2017
Mrs K Caklvert Deputy Chairrman 1 October 2017 o 30 June 2018
Mrs K Calver Derector 1 July 2017 to 30 September 2017
M= N Clesary Dareclar 1 Juby 2017 bo 30 June 2018

Kr M Maloud Dirwctar 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018

Mirs N Pya Daresclar 1 Juby 2017 bo 30 June 2018

Mr T Swingler [Directar 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018

Mr A Hume Directar 1 Oclober 2017 to 30 June 2018
Ma P Maddy Dérector 1 Oetober 2017 to 30 June 2018
Mr T Burgi QAM Chairman 1 July 2017 to 30 September 2017
Mr G Rodda Managing Director and Accountabla Officer 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018

Mr G Parker (General Manager Customer Service) acted in the position of Managing Direcior and Accountable Oficer from 1 July 2017 - 3 July 2017, and also 23 September 2017 - 2 Cclober 2017,
Ms: J Giarmini (Manager People and Culture) acted in the position of Managing Direcior and Accountable Officer from 23 Decombaer 2017 - 1 January 2018,
Remuneration
Remuneration received or receivable by the responsible persons in connection with the managemaent of the Corporation during the reporting period was in the range: $500,000- 5509 999 (540,000 - 5549999 in 2018-17),
a4 Related parties
The Corporation ks a whally owned and controlled entity of the State of Victora.
Relatod parties of the Corporation include:
= all kay management personnal and their close family members and personal business interests (controbed entities, joint wenhues and entities they have significant influsnce over);
- 8ll cabimsl minstens and their close family membsans;
= all departmants and public sector enfiies that are controlisd and consolidated info the whole of state consolidated financial stalements; and
- and conirolled business nlerests

All related party transactions have been entered into on an arm's length basis,

Significant transactions with governmant-related sntities

During the year, the Corparaion received funding of 527,51 milion (2017: $15.45 milion) and made payments of $4.70 million (2017 $5.23 million) with the following gor lated entities:

The Depanment of Erdnonment, Lard, Water and Planning - received contribuled capital funding of $16.90 milion in relation 1o modermisation of imgation disticts (refer Notes 8011 and 2.3)

The Department of Ecanomic Development, Jobs, Transpor and Resources - recefved contributed capital funding of $0.11 milion in relation 1o improving boating facilties (refar Note 2.3)

Treasury Corparation of Victoria - received loan accommodation funding of 510,50 million in relation Lo the Corporation’s capital expenditure requirements (refer Note 8.1)

Treasury Corporation of Victora - made repayments of loan accommodation funding of $3.93 millon in relation 1o the Coporation's capital expandiee requiremants. (refer Mobe 5.1}

Treasury Corporation of Victoria - made payments. of interest on loan accommodation funding of $0.77 milion (refer Note §.1.2)

Koy managemant persomnad (KMF)

Key managemend persannel are thase parsons having auihority and respensibity for planning, directing, and conlroling the actviies of the Corparation, direcily of indirectly, this comprises Independent Directors ard the Managing Director.
Koy management persannel (as defined in AASE 124 Relaled Party Disclaswes ) inchudes the Portiolio Minister and all Directors Ested under responsible persons in Mote 9.3 who have the authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and confreling ihe activities of the Corporalion directiy or indireclly, during the Bnancial year,

Thiz compensation detailed below sxchudes the salarkes and benefits the Portfolio Minister receives, The Minister's remuneration and allowances is set by the Parlamentary Safares and Superannuation Act 1968 and is

reponied within the Department of Parkamentary Services' Financial Report.

Compensation of KMPs __ __ —
Shor-term employee benafits 555 455
Prat-gamployrment bemnlits £ 40
Cther long-1erm benefits 8 L]
Tolal [ EF

‘Hates: Note that KMPS are aba reponed in he disclosure of remaneration of executive afcers (Note 9.5).

Transaciions with key management personnel and other relaled parties

Given the beeadih and depth of Corporation activlies, relsled parties transact with the Viclorian public seclor in a manner consisient with olher members of the public e.g. stamp duly and other government fees and charges. Fusther emplaymenl of processes
within the Victorian pubdic sector occur on terms and conditions consistent with the Pubée Administretion Acf 2004 and Codes of Conduct and Standards issued by the Victonan Publc Sector Comimession. Procurement processes oocur on lemms and conditions.
cormislent with the Victosian Govemment Precurement Board requirements. Culside of normal cilizen type bransacons with the Cosposation, there were no related party Iransactions thal invalved key management personnel and their close family members.,

Mo provision has been requined, nor any expense recognised, for impairment of receivables from related parties.
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2017-2018 2016-2017
5000 5000

9.5 Remuneration of executives

The numiber of executive officers, ather ihan the Mirister and accountable offcers, and their botal remuneration dusing ihe reporting petiod are shown in the table below, Total annualised employee squivalants provides

a measure of full time equivalent executive officers over the reporing peried.

Remunaration comprises amployes benalits in all forms of consideration paid, payable or provided by the entity, or on behall of the entity, in sxchange for services rendered, and is disciosed in the following categaries.
Sho-lem emplyes benafits include amounts such a8 wages, salares, bonus payments, annual laave or sick keave thal are usually paid or payabls on a regular basis, as well s non-monetary benefils such as allowances and
free or subsidised goods or Sarvices,

EBost-employreend beneflits include pensions and ofher retvament benalits pald or payable on 8 decrete basts when employment has cessed.

Daher long-leem banalits include long service lave, other long-service banelit or deferred compensation,

Termination benefits inchude lermination of employment payments, such as severance packages,
Total rermunération

Remuneration _ _

Shot-eim employee banehts 1,002 (7]
Post-armgloyrnent benefits 100 78
Cthar leng-term bonefits 18 22
Total remuneration 1,211 Bag
Total number of executives [ ]
Total annualised employes equivalent 82 (K
Notes:

(1} The totad number of execulive oficers includes persons who meet the definition of Key Management Personnel (KMP) of the entity under AASE 124 Refaliad Panty Désclosures and are also reporbed within the relabed partees note disclosune (Mobe 9.4)
(i} Annisalised smplayes equivalent is based on the time fraction warked aver the reporting period,

8.8 Remuneration of auditors
Victorian Auditor-General's Office

Audit of the financial statements 43 Fr
Tatal remunaration of auditors 43 4
a7 Ex-gratia expanse

Property damage experses (i) [i] [i]
Tatal ex gratia exg 3 o

In accordance with FRD 114 Dizcloswe of Ex-Gratla Expenzes the Corporation musi diesclose in aggregate the total amount of materkal (greater than $5000) experses.
{1y Payments lor water damage to proparties dus to pipeine leaks (nod being in settement of a legal kabilty).
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9.8 Australian Accounting Standards issued that are not yet effective
Thiz falowing AASS become effective Tor reporting perods commendng afier the operative dales stabed:
Carigin new Austrakan Accounting Standards (AAS) have been published that are not mandatony for the 30 June 2018 repedting period. DTF assesses the impact of all ihese new standards and advises the Conporation of their

applicabilty and early adoption where applcable,

Standards arizing from A458 15

Trade recehables thal do not have a signiicant finandging component, ane to be
measied al their transaction price, 8l initial recognition,
Dividends are recogrised in the profit and koss only whan: [

the entity's right o recedve payment of the dividend s esiablishid;

it is probable that the sconomic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
1o the eniity; and the amount can be measured relably.

Topic Key requiremants. Effective date [Estimated Impact
AASE § Fnancial Inzfruments The kery changes introduced by AASE § include the simpifed requiremants for 1 January 2018 The assessmant has identified that the amendmants ane likely
e classification and measurement of financal assels, a new hedging [bo res it in earlier recogrition of impairmment losses and al more
‘aceounting model and & revised impaiment loss moded o recognise reguiar inbervals,
impairmnent losses eariier, 85 opposed 1o he cusment appreach thal recognises While there will be no signilicant impact arising Irom AASE 9,
Empairmant only when incurmed. |there will be & change to the way financial instruments ane
ciscloaad.
AASE 2010-T Amendments fo Ausfralan The requirements Tor classitying and measuring financial Eabilities were 1 January 2018 Thir assessment has identified that the Snandal impact of
Accounting Standards arizing from AASE 9 added 1o ARSE 9. The existing requirements for the classification of available for sale (AFS) assets will now be repored
(Dwcember 2010) financial Eabiles and the abilty o use the fir value option have been |trough other comprehensive income (OC1} and no longer
retained. However, whene the Tair value oplion i used for Snancial rscycled to the profit and loss,
labilties the change in fair value s accounted for as foliows: Changes in own credit sk in respect of kabdities
= the change in fair vale atifibutable 1o changes in credd risk is degignated ab faw value through profit and loss will now be
[ J in cther comprehensive income (OC1); and prasanted within other comprehensive income (OC1),
- oither tair value changes ane presanted in profit of loss, If tis approach Histige accounting will be maone closaly aligned with
croates or enlarges an sccounting mismaltch in the profit or loss, the commaon risk management practices making it easier 1o have
eflzct of the changes in credit sk are albo presented in prolit or loss, an efective hedge.
AASE 2014-1 Amendmenls fo Ausfralian Amends vanous ARG 1o relic the ARSE s Gecision 1o defer he 1 Janusary 2018
Accounting Standards mandalony application date of AASE 9 1o annual reporting perkods AASE D bo the 2018-19 reporting peried in accordance with
[Parf E Financia! Instrumaents] beginning on or after 1 January 2018; as a consequence of Chapler §; the transiticn requirements.
and 1o amend reduced dsckosure requirements. _ _
AASE 2014 T Amendments fo Ausirafian Accounfing Amends vadous A8Ss to incorporate the consequential amendmaents. arising 1 January 2018 The assessment has indicated that there will be no sigrificant
Standards arizing from AASE 9 from the issuance of AASE 9. (impact for the public sector,
BAGE 15 Revenoe lrom Conbracts with Cuslomers Thee care principie of AASE 15 requires an ety 1o rECognRse revene 1 January 2019 The changes in TECogrilion fegqu % in
when the entity satisfies a performance obligation by transferring & AASE 15 may resull in changes to the timing and amaount of
promised good of Service 1o & customer. ravanis recordad in the financial stataments. The Standand
will alsn require additional disclosunes on senvice revenus
and conbract modifications,
AASE 2014 5 Amendments fo A usiralen Accounling MMmmmuuuammmmmﬁTﬁnum 1.1“".'2_{]11'.“&&;] mmmmmm«;uﬂmaﬁﬁgﬂuu

amendments 1o AGSE §

[Decembar 2000) and AASE 9
(Docembaer 2010} apply 1 January 2018,

(impact for the public sector,

Accounting Standards — Deferral of AASE 15 for
Noi-for-Profif Enlities

ncil-for-profit entities from 1 January 2018 to 1 January 2019,

AASE 2015-0 Amendments [0 A iralan This slandard delers he mandalory eflecive dale ol ARSE 15 kom 1 January 2018 This amerding slandard will deler (e appication perod of
Accounting Standards — Effective Dafe of A458 15 1 Jamusary 2017 to 1 January 2018, AASE 15 for for-profil entities to the 2018-18 reparting

_ in Bccordance with the transition requsements.
AASE H018-T Amendments io Ausfralian This standard defers the mandatory effective date of AASE 15 for 1 January 2019 Thiss amending standard will defer the application perod of

AASE 15 for pot-for-profit entites. 1o the 201520 reporing
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Standards — Ausfralian Implemantation Gusdance for
Mal-far-Profif Enfilfies

implementaion guidance io assist not-for-profit entities in applying the
respective standands 1o paricular Iransactions and events.

Tople Kay requirements Effective date Estimated Impact

[AASE 2076-3 Amendments o Ausiraian Accouniing This Standard amends AASE 15 1o clarily requirements on sentifying 1 Janiary 2018 [The aszessment has indicated that here will be no signiicant

Standardy — Clarifications fo AASE 15 performance obligations, principal versus agent considerations and the timing impact for the public sector, other than the impact identified
of recognising revenue from granting & beence, Tor AASE 15 above,

The amendments requine:

@ promise 1o transfer 10 & custorner & good o Service that ks ‘dstinct’ 1o be
recognised as a separate periormance oblgation;

+for items purchased online, the entity is a principal if it obtairs control of the
good o service priar to rarsfeming o the customes; and

+far Beences identified as being distinct from other goods or senvices in a
contract, entities need to defermine whether the Fcence transfers fo the
cUsiomer aver tima (rght to use) or at a point in time (nght o access).

|AASE 2016-4 Amandments o Ausiralian Accoumiing The standard amends AASE 136 impaimend of Azsafs 10 remove 'IJﬂ'II.ﬂrgIEH'B | T assesament has indicated that Thane = minimal impact.

Standards — Recoverable Amount of Non-Cash rafaronces to using depreciated replacement cost (DRC) &s 8 measuns Given the specialised nature and restrictions of public sector

-Generaling Spacialised Assels for Nol-for-Frof of value in use for not-for-profit entities, A ets, (he existing use i3 presumed Bo be the highest and

|Erdities bl use (HBLY), hence curment replacement cost under

|AASE 13 Falr Valre Measurement ks the same as the
deprecialed replacement cost concepl under AASE 136
[AASE 16 Leases The key changes inroduced by AASE 16 include the recognition of most 1 January 2019 | The assessment has indicated that as most opersting keases.
aparating leases (which are curmently not recagnised) an balance sheel. will coma on balance sheel, recognition af the right-af-use
aasels and Base kabilies will cause nel debl 1o increase,
Rathar than expensing the lease payments, depreciation of
fighl-of-usé assats and interest on lease kabilties will ba
recognised in the income statement with marnginal impact on
hier operating surplus,
_ _ _ No change for kessans.

AAEE 1058 Income of Nof-for-Profit Enfities This Standard will replace AASE 1004 Confribufions and establishes 1 January 2019 The assessmant has indicated that revenue from capital
principles for ransactions hal are not within the scope of ARSE 15, grants thal are provided under an enforceable agresmant
whara the consideration to acquire an assel is significantly less than fair that have sufficiently specific oblgations, will now ba
walse to enable not-for-profit eniities 1o further their objectives. dafered and recognised as performance obligations ane

aattsfed. As @ result, the timing recogndion of revense will

— — — — — change. - -

[AASE 2016-B Amandments fo Ausiralan Accoumiing This Standard amends AASE D and AASE 15 1o include regquirements and 1 January 2018 The assesament has indicated that thene will be no significant

ampact for the public sector, other than the impacts identified
ar AASE 9 and AASE 15 abova.

The following accounting pronouncements are also isswed but not effective for the 201 7-18 reporting period. At this stage. the preliminary assessment suggests they may have insignificant impacts on public
sechor reporting.

20171 Amendments fo Ausiralan Accoumiing Sfandands - Transfars of §
AASE 2017-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Further Anmueal

Moles:

Far the cument year, given the number of consequential amendments 1o AASE § Finencial insfruments and AASE 15 Revenue from Condracts with Custormers . the standardsfnterpretations have been grouped together to provide a mone

redevant view of the upcaming change.
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GIPPSLAND AND SOUTHERN RURAL WATER CORPORATION
Statutory Certification

The attached financial statements for Gippsland and Southern Rural \Water Corporalion have been prepared in
accordance with Standing Directians 5.2 at the Financial Managerment Act 1994, applicable Financial Reporting Directions,
Australian Accounting Standards including Interpretations. and other mandatary professional reporting requiraments.

We furthor state that, in our opinion, the information sct owt in the Comprehensive Operating Statement, Balance Sheet, Statcment of Changes in
Equity, Cash Flovr Statement and accompanying notes, presents fairly the financial transactions during the year ended 20 June 2018 and the
financial position of the Corporation as at 30 June 2015,

AE at the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars included in the financial statemenis to be
misleading orinaccurate.

We authorise the attached financial statements for issue on 5 September 2018,

Dars 6«%/\0@ e

Ms Ciane James AR

Chairman

Gippsland and Southem Rural Water Corporation
Dated an 5 September 2018

qa

Mr Clintan Rodda

Managing Director

Gippsland and Southem Rural Water Corporation
Dated on 5 September 2018

Mr Stuart Wiigglesworth

Chief Financial Officer

Gippsland and Southem Rural Water Corporation
Dated on 5 September 2018

@ Southern Rural Water Annual Report 2017-18

www.srw.com.au



VAGO

Independent Auditor’s Report Victorian Auditor-General’s Office

To the Board of the Gippsland and Sputhern Rural Water Corporation

Opinion | have audited the financial report of the Gippsland and Southenn Kural Water Corporatian
[the corperation) which comprises the:

. balance sheet as at 30 June 2318

. comprehensive operating statement for the year then ended

. statement of changes in cquity for the year then cnded

. cash flow statement far the year then ended

. notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies
- statutory certification.

In my apinion, the financial repcrt presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the corporation as at 30 lune 2013 and its financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accardance with the financial reporting requirements of Part 7 of
the Financial Management Act 1054 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards,

Basis for | have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit dct 1994 which incorporates the

Opinien Australian Auditing Standards. | further describe my responsibilities under that Act and
those standards in the Auditor’s Responsibitities for the Audit of the Finonclel Report section
of my repart.

My independence iz established by the Constitution Act 1975, My staff and | are
independent of the comporation in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Pratessional and Ethical Standards Board™s APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Frofessiorol Accounfonts (the Cade) that are relevant to my audit of the finanoial report in
Victaria. My staff and | have also fulfilled cur cther ethical responsibilities in accardance
with the Code.

| helieve that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis far my apiman.

Board's The Board of the cnrporatinn is resprnsible for the preparation and fair presenfation of the
responsibilities  financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Financial

for the Murogement Act 1994, and for such internal control as the Board determines is necessary
financial Lz enable the preparation and fair presentation of a financial report thal is ree rom
report material misstatemnent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financlal repart, the Board |5 responsible for assessing the corporation’s
ahility to centinue as a going cencern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
coneern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it is inapprapriate to do so.

tMelbaurne Y

audit.vic.govau  www.audityvic.gov.au
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Auditor's
responsibilities
for the audit
of the financial

As required by the Audit Acf 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinign on the financial
report based on the andit. My abjectives far the andit are ta abtain reasonable assorance

about whether the financial report as a whele is free from material misstatement, whether
due ta frand ar error, and to issue an auditar’s repart that includes my opinian. Reasanable

report assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arize from fraud or error and are
censidered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonahbly be expected
ta influence the econamic decisions of users taken on the hasis of this financial repart.

Az part of an audit in accardance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise

prafessianal judgement and maintain professicnal scepticism thraughout the audit. | also:

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial repart, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive ta those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate te provide a basis for my
opinian. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting fram errar, as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery,
intenticnal emissiens, misrepresentations, or the cverride of internal centrol.

. chtain an understanding of internal centrel relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not far the purpose
of expressing an opinicn on the effectiveness of the corporation’s internal centrol.

- evalbate the apprapriateness of accounting policies used and the reasanableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board.

- conclude on the appropriateness of the Board's use of the going cancern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence ohtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related ta events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the corporation’s ahility to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial repart ar, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
madify my opinian. My canclusions are based an the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of my auditar's report. However, future events ar conditicns may cause the
corparatian to cease ta cantinue as a going concern.

- evaluate the averall presentation, structure and content of the financial report,
including the disclesures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the Board regarding, among cther matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal contrel that | identify during my audit.
MELBOURNE Paul Martin
7 September 2018 os delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria
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KPi
Number

F1

F3

Fd

FT

PERFORMANCE REPORT

201817 2017-18 2017-18 % Variance o prios % Variance 1o
Result Result Target year Netes target Notes

Kay Performance Indicator

Cash Interest Cover

Dt cosmtng cash fioes before ned interest and i times 108 7B 8.2 -28.4% 1 15.2% T
Med inferes! paymaents.

Gearing Ratio
Total Dbt (including Frmnce Lesses) x 100 1.75% 2.25% 2.10% 28.5% 2 7%
Tortad Bt

Internal Financing Ratic
oA operging cagh o x 100 37A1% 15.92% 22 30% 57.1% 3 -28.6% 8
et capital sxpanditrs

Current Ratic
Curmend gusety times 0.85 0.8 038 -8.3% 105.3% 9
Curment liabiitees (mochuding long-iam smployes p and revers in adance)

Retum on Assets
Eaimings tefors nef interest and ax = 100 -0.86% -0.Td% -0.40% 14,05 a4 -850 10
Aamrage aussty

‘Return on Equity
st profit afte tax x 100 0.75% 0.85% <0, 60 127% 5 13,0% 11
Aererage total egquty

T i, T, Deprecaion e Amoraso x 100 10.84% 16.668% 22 40% 53.50% & -25.5% 12
Total reverue

Hotes:
Significant variances fo prior year
1. Cash Interest Cover
A deterioraton of 28.4% has resulled from lower net operating cash flows before net inberest and tax by $2.55m, resulting from:
. Less receipls from senvice and usage charges ($1,44m)
LLess recedgts from service and usage charges s due to an increase i customer debd at 30 June 2018 from higher water usage charges, and lower fees for recoverable works,
. Less receipls from Stabe Government (50,47m)
. Mare paryments to suppliers and employees. ($0.64m)
Mare payments 1o suppliens and employees is due lo additional grant funded expenditure caried over from 2018-17, and unplanned major channel repairs and legal sxpenses
Remedial action for the detedoration to the Cash Interest Cover:
The faciors influencing the changes 1o the Cash Interest Cover are sither caused by timing, of were one-olf and nol expacted ta recur. As there i no change to the
underlying financial activities of SEW represented by these factors, no remaedial action s proposed.
2. Geating Ratio
A deteraration of 28,5% has resulled from:
. an increass in debt by $12.62m
Anincrease in debl is caused by 2017-18 capital expenditure in excess of operating and government contribution cash flow ($12.82m)
Remiedial action far the deterioration to the Gearing Ratio;
The change i the Geanng Ratko since 2016-17 |8 dwa to the increase in dabd. This increase in debt from ongoing caplial expenditure in excess of e cperating cash surplus was
identified within the Corporate Plan. As the change is fully consistent with the SRW strategy. no remedial action is proposed by SRW.
3. Intemal Financing Ratio
A deteriaration of 57,13 has resulled from lower net opernating cash fiow of 52.55m (see Note 1) and an increase in capital expenditure of $5.67m resulting from our capital expenditure program:
Remedial action for the detedoration to the Inbernal Financing Ratio:
The deterioration to Internal Financing Ratio since 2018-17 is due o the increéase in capital expendiure since 2016-17, and the neduction in nel aperating cash fiow,
Thes increase to capital expendiure was kentibed within the Corporate Plan, and & a3 & resull of ow targe program of rigation modernisation works. Once these works are completed SRW capital expendiure
is expacted ta return io levels consistent with our cash Now suphis from operaling activilies, Accordingly, no remedial aclion is proposed,
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Significant varlances to prior year (continged)
4, Rueturn on Assels is lower dus to an improvement in Earnings before net interest and tax
An improvement 1o Eamnings bafore net interest and tax by 51.57m frorm peior year, resulling from:
. Reduced assets witlen off expense (53.70m)

Thir reduction in assats wiitlen off results from irmgation modermisation works and associaled planned decommissioning of redundant assets (conducted largely in 2016-17).

. Increased senice and usage charges (50.85m)

The increass in service and usage charges results from greater usage changes during 2017-18.
These imgrowemeants ware offset by:
. Reduced assets recelved froe of charge (50, T9m)

This decriass in assels received free of charge resulls from a contributed assel in the Bacchus Marsh Irgation District during 2016-17 (nil in 2017-18).

. Incroased operating experses ($1.83m)

The increasa in operating expenses from additional grant funded expenditure, major channel repains, legal experses and information technalogy costs.

. Increased expendture on depreciation ($0.37m)
Ther increase in deprecialion cxpense results from the increase in the capital expenditure program,
5. Return on Equily is lowes due lo an improvement in Net resull aler tax
An improvement fo Ned result after ta by $1.03m from peior year, resuling from:
. Reduced essets wiitten off expense (53.70m)
. Increased senice and usage changes (50.88m)
These improwemeants ware offset by:
. Reduced assels received free of charge ($0.T8m)
. Increased operating experses ($1.83m)
. Incroased axpenditure on deprociation ($0.37m)
. Greaber incomi ta revenue ($0.54m)
Ther increase in income tax revenes is due 1o a lower net loss before tax
6. EBITDA Margin is higher dwe o an improvement in Earnings Before Inleres!, Tax, Depreciaion and Amorisation
An improvement 1o EBITDA by $1.04m from pricd year, resulting from:
. Reduced assels witlen ol expense (53.70m)
. Increased senvice and usage charges ($0.88m)
These improwermeants ware offsel by:
. Reduced essets received free of charge ($0.7m)
. Increased operating expenses (51.83m)
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Significant varfances fo farget
The 2017-18 targed is derved from the 2017-18 Corporate Plan of the Corporation. Since the 2017-18 Carparabe Plan was Sinalised, the fallowing changes o the projection have occurned:
7. Cash Interest Cover
A deterioration of 15.2% has resulled from kower net operating cash fows before net interest and tax by §3.33m, resuling from:
. Less receipts from senvice and usage changes ($0.72m)
Less recelpts from service and usage charges i due to kwer charges than budgeted for recoverable works and higher customaer debt
. More paymaents to suppliens and employees (52.80m)
More payrnents to supplens and employess (s due 1o increased progect related operating expenses, and a reduction in employee provisions
Remedial action for the deterioration to the Cash Interest Cover;
The faclans influencing the changes 1o the Cash Inferest Cover are unpredictabile and relabed bo timing, Given these faclors, and (hal there will be no change in
underhying financial position, cur remedial action ks Bmited to & review of our budgeting approach for project related expanditure.
B, Irtemmal Financing Ratio
A deterioration of 28.8% has resulled from lower net operating cash fiow of $3.32m (see Note T), offset by lower capital expenditure than target of $8.50m,
Remedial action for the deterioration to the Internal Financing Ratio:
Remadial actions for the deterioriation to net opevating cash flow are described by Mote T,

8. Current Ratia
An improvemant of 0.40% to target has resulled as we did not plan to hold advanced funds. for modernisation works on deposit at 30 June 2018,
10, Return on Assels is lower due o a deteriodation in Eamings befone Net | t and Tax from targed

A deterioration to Earmings belore net interest and tax by 51.08m from target, resulting from:
. Increased service and usage charges (S0.4T)
The increass in senvice and usage changes results from greater vasiablie revenus charged during 2017-18,
. Less axpenditure on depreciation (50.88m)
The decreass in depreciation expenss resulling rom less capilal expenditure than budget
These improvemants waere offset by:
. Increased operating axperses (52.42m)
The increasa in operating expenses from additicnal grant lunded expenditure, major channel repairs, legal expenses and indormation technalogy costs.
Remedial action for the deterioralion to Eamings belore nel inenest and Lax:
The reducion in eamings before net interest and tax compared to the Corporate Flan budget is primarily due to addiional progect related expenditure, offset by increased service and usage charges.
Thie 2017-18 additional expenditure is based on operational and contraciual needs during the peiod. The variance is due to the nalure of expenditure nol being known al the time of prepasing the Corparate Plan,
Futura budgeting processes will e improved to allow for the uncemain expenditune types.
11. Return on Equity i lower due to a deledanation in Nel proSt after tax
A deterioration 1o MNet profit after tax by 50.50m, resulting from:
. Increased senice and usape changes (50.47)
. Less expenditure on depreciation (50.89m)
. Less other iransactions ($0.56m)
These improvemants waere offset by:
. Increased operating experses (52.42m)
Remodial action for the deterloration to Net proft after tax:
The reduction in Met profit afler tax compared 1o the Corporate Pan budget for 2017-18 is due 1o the same transactions as described by Mote 10 above, and SRW has
sccepled remedial actons consistent with these descriptions.
12. EBITDWA Maegin s kower due to a deteriosiafion in Eamings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation
A deterioration to EBITDA from targe by 51.95m, resulling from:
. Increased senvice and usage charges (50.4T)
Thess improvermants wane offsel by:
. Increased operating experses (52 42m)
Remedial action for the deterionation to EBITDA when compared o the Corporate Plan
The reduction in EBITOA compared to the Corporate Pan budged for 2017-18 is due o the same transactions as described by Notes 10 and 11 above, and SRV has
accepled remedial actions consistent with these descriptions.
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PERFORMANCE REPORT

201817 2718 2017-18 % Variance 1o prior %% Varance 1o
WATER SERVICE PERFORMAMNCE INDICATORS Result Result Targed year Muales targed INotes
Key Performance Indicator
‘Rural water supply deliveries
Humber of grders delred x« 100 80.15% B0.27% 9288% 0.1% -2.8%
Tietal rmnbir of ofdars
Unavailability of Domestic and Stock supply
DCuration that domestic and sock senvics is unsvalabie in encess 0.00% 0.00% 0.0% 1 0% 2
x 100 92.70% 89, 58% S0.80% “3.0% -9.5% 3
Significant varfances to prior pear
1. Thies indicator i mol appicabls.
Significani variances to farget
2, Thes indicator i nol applicable.
A Whilla parformance has deteriorated from last year, & number of process related factors provented us from achieving our ambiious target of 95.80%. We are now investigating automation
and process improvement to further improve performance so that the target is achieved in 2018-18,
201617 201718 2017-14 % Variance to prior % Variance to
CUSTOMER RESPONSIVENESS PERFORMANCE INDICATORS Result Resul Targed year Holes targed Noles
Hay Performance Indicator
“Billing Complaints
Number of complaints per 1000 cupoman nuamibar 0.200 0,100 0.100 50,00 1 0L 1
Moles:
1. While the percentage decreased from 2016-17 and larget appears significant, as this represents 1 new complaint only, This remains a very low number of complainis to the Conporalion and no furiher action is proposed,
201617 201718 2017-14 % Variance to prior % Variance to
ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS Result Resul Targe yoar Mates targed Notes
Key Performance Indicator
Total net CO2 emissions
st onnes COZ equivpient tonmes 1.200.0 1.156.0 15720 -3.5% 1 -26.3 2
Notes:
1, The decrease in et CO2 emissions since 2018-17 i a resull of less emissions. from our motor vehicle fleet, The decrease in CO2 & due 1o a change in the categorsation of vehick: feet usage, Proviously SRW has included personal use

of vehicles in its own emissions data. Dunng the development of the DELWP (Department of Ervironment, Land, Water and Planning) Pledge it was idantified thal emissions from personal use shoukd be separabed from SRWs emissions.
The 2016-17 comparative result has been restated to pre-offset emissions to enable consistency of reporting in ine with the new NGER (Mational Greenhouse and Energy Reporting) guideines by remaving the greenflest offsets.

F3 Performance has improved from last year, and we exceeded our COZ2 targel. This is mainly due to process related improvemsants in relation o transitioning to the new NGER (Mabional Greenhouse
and Engrgy Reporting) guidelines. Further work is currently underwary 1o improve environmental outcomes and ensure thal SRW's target af O ned emissions by 2025 is med,
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GIPPSLAND AND SOUTHERN RURAL WATER CORPORATION

Statutory Certification

We certify that the accompanying Performance Reparl of Gippsland and Scuthern Rural Water Corporation, in respect of the 2017-18 financial
year, is presaented fairly in accordance with the Fnancial Managemend Acf 1994

The Perfermance Report outlings the relevant perfarmance indicators for the financial year as determined by the Minister for Water and 85 set out
in the 2017-18 Corparate Plan, the aclual and enmparative results achieved for the financial year against predetermined performanes targets fe
these indicatars, and an explanation ol any signiticant varance between the actual result and the performance targets and/or hetween the actual

results in the current year and the previous year.

A5 at the date of signing. we are not aware af any circumstances which would render any particulars in the Perfirmance Report o be misleading or

inaccurate.

Oara flamac

Ms Diane James AW

Chairman

Gippsland and Southem Rural Water Corporation
Dated an 5 September 2018

qa

Mr Clintan Rodda

Managing Director

Gippsland and Southem Rural Water Corporation
Dated on 5 September 2018

www.srw.com.au

%

LI A o,

Mr Sluarl Wrigalesworll

Chief Financial Officer

Gippsland and Southem Rural Water Corporation
Drated on 5 September 2018
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VAGO

Independent Auditor’s Report Victorian Auditor-General’s Offics

To the Board of the Gippsiand and Sawthern Rural Water Corporation

Opinion

Basis far Opinion

Board's
responsibilities for
the performance
report

Auditor's
responsibilities for
the audit of the
performance
report

Level 31/

| have audited the accompanying performance report of the Gippsland and Southern
Rural Water Corporation (the corporation) for the year ended 30 June 2018, which
comprises the:

. financial performance indicaters

. water service performance indicatars

. custoner responsiveness performance indicators
. enwviranmental performance indicators

. statutory certification.

In my apinion, the performance report of the corporation for the year ended 30 June
7M1R presents fairly, in all material respects, in aceordance with the performance
reporting requirements of Fart 7 of the Finoncial Manogement Act 1994,

| have conducted my audit in accordance with the Avdif Act 1294 which incorparates
the Australian Standards an Assurance Engagements. | further describe my
responsibilities under that Act and those standards in the Avditor’s Responsibifities
Jor the Avdit of the performunce report sectivn of my report.

My independence |s established by the Conséitution Act 1975, My staff and | are
independent of the corporation in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Acoounting Professional and Cthical Standards Board's A2CS 110 Code of Cthics for
Prafessional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the
performance report in Victorla and have also fulfllled our other ethlcal
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

| belleve that the audlt evidence | have chtalned is sufficlent and appropriate to
provide a hasis far my opininn.

The Board is responsible for the preparation and falr presentation of the
perfarmance repart in accordance with the parformance reparting requirements af
the Financial Management Act 1934 and for such internal central as the Doard
determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the
statermnent of performance that ls free from materlal misstatement, whether due to
fraud ar error.

As reguired by the Audit Act 1954, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the
perfarmance repart based an the audit. Wy ohjectives for the audit are to abtain
reasnnahle assurance abrut whether the peiformance report as awhole is free from
material misstatament, whether due to traud or error, and to izsue an auditor's
report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian
standards on Assurance Frgagements will always detect a material misstatrment
when it exists.

Cellins Sireet, Melkourne Yie 3000

T 032 8601 7000 enquiries@auditvic.govou  wywwaudit.vic.gov.au

Southern Rural Water Annual Report 2017-18

www.srw.com.au



www.srw.com.au

s staternents can arise frown fravd or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the ageregate, they could reasenably be expected to influence the
decisians nf users taken an the hasis of this performance report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance
Engagements, | exercise professicnal judgement and maintain professional
seeptivism throughout the audit. | also:

a identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of performance repart,
whether due to fraud ar error, design and perform audit pracedures
responsive to these risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
apprupriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
fram error, as fraud may invalve collusian, forgery, intentichal amissions,
rnisrepressntations, or the averride of internal cuntrol.

» obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in arder to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not tor
the purpaose of expressing an apinicn on the effectiveness of the corporation’s
internal cantrol.

a evaluate the overall presentation, structure and cantent of the performance
repart, including the disclosures, and whether performance report represents
the underlying events and results in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the Board regarding, among other matters, the plannad scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficicncics in internal cantral that Lidentify during my andit.

MZLBOURME Paul Martin
7 Scptember 2018 o5 defegete for the Auditor Generol of Victorio
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Disclosure Index

The Annual Report of Southern Rural Water is prepared in accordance with all relevant Victorian
legislation. This index helps to identify our compliance with statutory disclosure requirements.

| Requirements \ Legislation \ Page reference |

Declarations in Report of Operations

Responsible Body’s declaration ‘ FRD 22H ‘ 04 ‘

Section 1 - About us

Message from the Chairman and Managing Director 02-04
Manner of establishment and ministers FRD 22H 05
Vision, Mission and Values MRO 05
Nature and range of services provided FRD 22H 06-09
Objectives functions, powers and duties FRD 22H 06-09
Irrigation districts FRD 22H o7
Groundwater and Rivers FRD 22H 08

Section 2 - Governance

Organisational structure and corporate governance FRD 22H 10
Governing board FRD 22H 11-12
Audit committee membership FRD 22H/SD 3.2.1 10
Board committees FRD 22H 12-14

Section 3 - Letter of expectations reporting

Letter of expectation reporting MRDO7 15-18

Section 4 - Engaging with customers and stakeholders

Engagement objectives MRDO7 19
Customer engagement MRDO7 19-20
Stakeholder engagement MRDO7 20-22
Community engagement MRDO7 22

Section 5 - People and Culture

Public sector values and employment principles (Our People) FRD 22H 23-24
Employment and Conduct Principles FRD 22H 24
Diversity Action Plan (workforce inclusion) FRD 22H 23-24
Workforce Data FRD 22H/FRD 29C 25
Executive Officer data FRD 15E 25
Occupational Health and Safety FRD 22H 26

Section 6 - Major Projects

Macalister Modernisation FRD 22H 27
Werribee Modernisation FRD 22H 27
Bacchus Marsh Modernisation FRD 22H 27
Reservoir upgrades FRD 22H 27-28
Lake Glenmaggie Native Vegetation Offset Site FRD 22H 31
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Disclosure Index

Requirements \ Legislation Page reference

Section 7- Environmental

Regional Catchment Management Strategy MRD 03 30
Victorian Biodiversity Strategy MRD 03 30
Victorian Waterway Management Strategy MRD 03 30
Regional Waterway Strategies MRD 03 30
State Environmental Protection Policy (Waters of Victoria) SEPP MRD 03 3il
Greenhouse Gas and energy reporting MRD 06 31
Office-based environmental data FRD 24D 31-32

Section 8 - Other Disclosures

Financial Management Compliane Attestation SD5.1.4 35
Compliance with Water Act 1989 FRD 22H 33
Building Act 1993 FRD 22H 8e)
Local Jobs First - Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003 FRD 25C 33
Compliance with the Carers Regulation Act 2012 FRD 22H 33
Compliance with the Protected Disclosures Act 2012 FRD 22H 33
Corporate Water Consumption FRD 22H 33
Competitive Neutrality Policy FRD 22H 33
Government advertising expenditure FRD 22H 338
Additional information FRD 22H 33
Freedom of Information FRD 22H 34
ICT expenditure FRD 22H 33

Section 9 - Bulk Entitlements

Thomson Macalister MRD 014 36
Werribee River MRD 04 39
Maribyrnong MRD 04 4
Latrobe MRD 04 38
Latrobe Reserve MRD 04 38
Yallourn River (Loy Yang B) MRD 04 40
Tarago River MRD 04 40

Section 10- Financial Sustainability

Economic regulation Nil 42
Pricing principles Nil 42
Financial management Nil 42
Five year financial summary FRD 22H 45
Five year performance summary FRD 22H 42-43
Significant change in financial position FRD 22H 43
Major changes or factors affecting performance FRD 22H 43
Subsequent events which will affect operations in the future FRD 22H 43
Capital Plan expenditure 2017-18 FRD 22H 43
Major contracts FRD 22B 43
Consultanciesi FRD 22H 44
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\ Requirements Legislation Page reference
Financial Report
Financial statements required under Part 7 of the Financial Management Act 1994
Statement of Changes in Equity SD 4.2(a) 55
Operating Statement SD 4.2(b) 52-53
Balance Sheet SD 4.2(b) 54
Cash Flow Statement SD 4.2(b) 56
Compliance with applicable Australian Accounting Standards and other authoritative pronouncements SD 4.2(c) 57
Compliance with Ministerial Directions SD 4.2(c) 57
Rounding of amounts SD 4.2(d) 57
Accountable Officer’s declaration SD 4.2()) 04
Compliance with Model Financial Report SD 4.2(f) 50-98
Accounting for dividends FRD 03A 86
Early adoption of authoritative accounting pronouncements FRD 07B 90-91
Disclosure of ex-gratia payments FRD 11A 89
Disclosure of major contracts FRD 12B 46
Long service leave, wage inflation and discount rates FRD 17B 61
Accounting for State Motor Vehicle Lease Arrangements prior to 1 February 2004 FRD 20A *
Disclosures of responsible persons and executive officers in the financial report FRD 21C 88
Significant changes in factors affecting performance FDR 22H 46
Accounting for VicFleet Motor Vehicle Lease Arrangements on or after 1 February 2004 FRD 26B *
Presentation and reporting of performance information FRD 27C 95-98
Standard requirements for the publication of Annual Report FRD 30D 1-103
Financial reporting directions - framework FRD 100A 57
Inventories FRD 102A 54
Non-current physical assets FRD 103F 64-72
Borrowed costs FRD 105B 79
Impairment of assets FRD 106A 71
Investment properties FRD 107B *
Intangible assets FRD 109A 73-74
Cash flow statements FRD 110A 56
Defined benefit superannuation obligations FRD 112D 62
Investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates FRD 113A *
Financial instruments — general government entities and public non-financial corporations FRD 114B 82
Contributions of existing non-financial assets to third parties FRD 117A *
Contributions by owners FRD 119A 87
Accounting and reporting pronouncements applicable to 2017-18 reporting period FRD 120K 90-91

* Nothing to report
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Contact details:

Southern Rural Water
88 Johnson Street
Maffra, VIC, 3860

1 Tower Road
Werribee, VIC, 3030

132 Fairy Street
Warrnambool, VIC, 3280

Suite 1, 307 Maroondah Highway
Ringwood, VIC, 3134

Phone: (03) 5139 3100
1300 139 510

Fax: (03) 5139 3150
Email: srw@srw.com.au

Website: WWW.Srw.com.au

About this report

This Annual Report has been prepared for the financial year 1 July 2017 to 30
June 2018.

This report is printed on Revive Laser paper. This paper is:

» Made in Australia by an ISO 14001 certified mill. No chlorine bleaching occurs
in the recycling process

» FSC Recycled Certified

= Certified carbon neutral under the Department of the Environment’s National
Carbon Offset Standard (NCQOS), an Australian Government initiative.

Through the Spicers ‘Recreate’ program, sales of Revive Laser support
Landcare Australia and the restoration and replanting of landfill sites
throughout Australia.

© State of Victoria, Southern Rural Water 2016. This publication is copyright.
No part may be reproduced by any process except in accordance with the
provisions of the Copyright Act 1968.

ISSN 1837-1992

Disclaimer: This publication maybe of assistance to you but Southern Rural
Water and its employees do not guarantee that the publication is without flaw
of any kind or is wholly appropriate for your particular purposes and therefore
disclaims all liability for any error, loss or other consequence which may arise
from you relying on any information in this publication.
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